Z7CIAL

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT
2017-18






BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sri. Pinarayi Vijayan (Chairman)
Dr. TM. Thomas Isaac

Adv. V.S. Sunilkumar

Adv. Mathew T. Thomas

Sri. K. Roy Paul

Smt. A.K. Ramani

Sri. Yusuffali M.A.

Sri. N.V. George

Sri. C.V. Jacob

Sri. E.M. Babu

Sri. V.J. Kurian (Managing Director)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Sri. K. Roy Paul (Chairman)
Smt. A.K. Ramani

Sri. E.M. Babu

CSR COMMITTEE

Dr. .M. Thomas Isaac (Chairman)
Sri. C.V. Jacob

Smt. A.K. Ramani

Sri. V.J. Kurian

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Sri. K. Roy Paul (Chairman)

Smt. A.K. Ramani

Sri. E.M. Babu

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Sri. K. Roy Paul (Chairman)

Sri. Yusuffali M.A.

Sri. N.V. George

COMPANY SECRETARY
Sri. Saji K. George

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Sri. Sunil Chacko

AUDITORS

M/s. Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants, Paliam Road,
Ernakulam 682 016

24% Annual Report 2017-18

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT LIMITED

CIN: U63033KL1994PLC007803

REGISTERED OFFICE
Room No. 35, 4™ Floor,
GCDA Commercial Complex,
Marine Drive, Cochin, 682 031
Tele Fax: 0484-2374154
Email: cs@cial.aero

Website: www.cial.aero

CONTENTS

Notice (ENGlSh) ......cceovreiiiiiieeees 02
Directors’ Report (English) .......cccccooiiniiniiiinnn, 13
Notice (Malayalam)...........cooeieieneniiece e 42
Directors’ Report (Malayalam).............cccccevevevennen. 52

Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor's Report .........ccoveiiiieieieee e 66
Balance Sheet.........ccoceiviiiiiiiicce 74
Statement of Profit & LOSS .......ccccovveiieniennen, 75
Statement of changes in equity.........cc.ccoverrenne 76
Cash Flow Statement..........cccccovveviiieiiencineeen, 77
Notes 0N accouNnts ........ccccevereeiciciccec e 79

Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor's Report ........cocooveiiiciiee e 119
Balance Sheet.........cccocevviiiiiiiiscee e 125
Statement of Profit & LOSS ......cccovevveieieicrciin, 126
Statement of changes in equity..........cc.cccvvnnnne, 127
Cash Flow Statement...........cccccvevvveiiciicnnn, 128
Notes 0n accounts .........cccevereieiciecieseee, 130
Route Map ..o 170

Attendance Slip & Proxy FOrm .........ccccvvviincnnn. 171



Cochin International Airport Limited

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office : 35, 4™ Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex
Marine Drive, Cochin 682031. Phone 0484 — 2374154
Website: www.cial.aero, E-mail : cs@cial.aero CIN : U63033KL1994PLC007803

NOTICE (REVISED) OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24" Annual General Meeting of Cochin International Airport Limited will be
held on Saturday, the 29* day of September 2018 at 04.00 p.m. at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts
Avenue, Ernakulam 682 020, to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended on that date, Annexures and Schedules thereto and the report of the Directors and
Auditors of the Company.

b) the Audited Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31t March 2018 and report of Auditors.

To declare dividend on the paid up equity shares of the Company for the year ended 31t March 2018.

To appoint a Director in the place of Dr. T.M. Thomas Isaac (DIN: 0000507439) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in the place of Adv. Mathew T. Thomas (DIN: 0001176734) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors and fixation of remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and the Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) the
retiring Auditors M/s. Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam (Firm
Registration No: 001488S) be and is hereby reappointed as the statutory auditors of the Company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual
General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force, Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (DIN: 0002863821), who was appointed
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as an Independent Director and who holds office of Independent Director for a period of 3 years
with effect from 18" August 2015, being eligible and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013 signifying his
intention to propose Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as a candidate for the office of a Director, be and is
hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and
to hold office of Director for a second term of 3 (three) consecutive years with effect from 18" August
2018 and upto the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2021.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force, Smt. A. K. Ramani (DIN: 0007188269), who was appointed as
an Independent Director and who holds office of Independent Director for a period of 3 years with
effect from 18" August 2015, being eligible and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013 signifying his intention
to propose Smt. A. K. Ramani as a candidate for the office of a Director, be and is hereby re-appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office of
Director for a second term of 3 (three) consecutive years with effect from 18" August 2018 and upto
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2021.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Article 108(2)(A) of the Articles of Association of the Company and in
accordance with the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013 the Company has
received a notice in writing along with a deposit of rupees one lakh from a member under Section
160 of the Companies Act 2013 proposing the candidature of Sri. M.A.Yusuffali (DIN: 0000364677)
as the office of Director, the consent of the members be and is hereby given for the appointment of
Sri. M.A.Yusuffali (DIN: 0000364677) as non-retiring Director for a period of 5 years from the date of
this Annual General Meeting.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that Sri. C.V.Jacob (DIN: 0000030106) in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing along with a deposit of rupees one lakh from a member under Section 160 of
the Companies Act 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director, and who is eligible for
appointment as a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company and the period
of office of Sri. C.V.Jacob shall be liable to determination by retirement by rotation.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules 2014 as amended, M/s. BBS & Associates, Cost Accountants, Ernakulam (ICAI
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Firm Registration No: 00273) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31%t March 2019 be paid a
remuneration of Rs.1,50,000 plus applicable taxes.”

“Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

By order of the Board
for Cochin International Airport Limited

sd/-

Place : Nedumbassery Saji K.George

Date :

Notes:

20" August 2018 Company Secretary

The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect of the Special
business set out in the notice is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the
Company. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. However, a member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or member. Form of
proxy is attached at the end of the Annual Report.

Instrument of Proxies, in order to be effective must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

Admission strictly restricted to members / proxies only; and members / proxies are advised to bring
the attendance slip, duly filled up & signed and handover the same at the entrance to collect the entry
pass.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
12t September 2018 to 29" September 2018, both days inclusive.

The dividend on equity shares as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company, if
declared in the Annual General Meeting will be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members as on 29" September 2018.

Members may please note that the Company has regularly paid dividend since 2003-04. The details
of members who have not encashed their dividend warrants have been uploaded at the website
of the Company (www.cial.aero). Those members who have not encashed their dividend warrants
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in respect of any of the previous seven years are requested to submit their dividend warrants to
the registered office of the Company for revalidation / re-issue. Please note that after 7 years from
the date of declaration of dividend for any financial year, the balance available in the said dividend
account would be remitted to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of Central Government
as per the provisions of Section 124(5) & Section 125(2) of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly,
the Company had already transferred Rs. 9,62,340, being the unclaimed dividend amount for the
financial year ended 31st March 2010 to IEPF on 07" December 2017. The unclaimed dividend
pertaining to the financial year 2010-11 is due for remittance to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund of Central Government in this year.

Those members who have so far not encashed their dividend warrants for the following financial
years, may approach the Company for the payment thereof, failing which the same will be transferred
to the IEPF on the respective dates mentioned there against.

Financial year ended Dates on which unclaimed divid_end amount wiI_I be credited/
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
31.03.2011 28.10.2018
31.03.2012 07.10.2019
31.03.2013 26.10.2020
31.03.2014 28.09.2021
31.03.2015 17.09.2022
31.03.2016 26.10.2023
31.03.2017 17.10.2024

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016, as amended from time to
time, members may please note that if the dividends have been unpaid or unclaimed for seven
consecutive years or more the underlying shares shall be transferred to the IEPF Account. Upon
transfer of such shares to IEPF account, all benefits accruing on such shares shall also be credited
to the IEPF Account and the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner
claims the shares. Members are also informed that shares as well as the unpaid dividends pertaining
to dividend declared for the financial year 2010-11 are also liable to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) and are requested to lodge their claims, failing which the
Company shall transfer the unpaid dividends and corresponding shares to IEPF Account.

The route map showing the directions to reach the venue of the twenty-fourth AGM is annexed.

All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company on all working days between 10.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. upto and inclusive of the date of
Annual General Meeting.

The standalone financial statements of all the subsidiary companies of CIAL as on 31t March 2018
have been displayed at the website of CIAL (www.cial.aero).

Contact details of the official responsible to address the grievances connected with remote
e-voting: Sri. Saji K. George, Company Secretary, Cochin International Airport Limited, Room
No: 35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Ernakulam, Kerala 682 031, Tel: 0484-
2374154, email:cs@cial.aero.
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14. Voting through electronic means:
The Company is providing e-voting facility and business mentioned in the Annual General Meeting
Notice may be transacted through such voting.

a)

f)

The remote voting period begins from 09.00 hours (IST) on 25" September 2018 and ends at
17.00 hours (IST) on 28" September 2018. During this period shareholders of the Company may
cast their vote electronically. The Company has fixed 24" September 2018 as the cut-off date
for determining voting right of shareholders entitled to participate in the remote e-voting process.
The remote e-voting facility shall not be allowed beyond the said date and time.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the members, the members shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the meeting and
members attending the meeting who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall
be able to exercise their right at the meeting.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend
the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. A person who is not a member as
on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only.

Sri. Sathish V, Practicing Company Secretary, B1, Periellath Apartment, Jawahar-Mahatma
Road, Vyttila, Kochi-682019 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to oversee the voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General
Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in employment of the
Company and make not later than 2 days of conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Managing Director
or a person authorized by him in writing.

The results of voting shall be declared forthwith by the Managing Director or a person authorized
by him. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Consolidated Report shall be placed
on the Company’s website (www.cial.aero) and on the website of Central Depository Services
Limited (CDSL).

For availing the remote e-voting facility, the shareholders should first logon to the e-voting
website https://lwww.evotingindia.com.

(iy  Select the ‘SHAREHOLDERS’ tab on the right side of the page.

(i)  Now enter your USER ID in the column provided. Shareholders should enter their
folio number registered with the Company as your User ID. It may be noted that the
shareholders are required to give their folio number in eight-digit format. (for example, if
the Folio No: is 23, then the shareholder has to enter in USER ID column as 00000023.
Similarly, if the folio no: is R475, then the shareholder has to enter as R0000475).

(i)  Now enter the Image Verification Code displayed on the box and click on LOGIN.

(iv) A column to enter your PAN number will appear. In this column, the total number
of characters is 10. Shareholders are required to enter their number of shares in
figures, followed by the name of shareholder as it appears in the share certificate in
CAPITAL LETTERS.
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eg: Ifyou are holding 1000 shares and your name is CV RAMESH, then enter 1000CVRAME
in the PAN field.

If the total number of characters is less than 10 digits, add required number of zeros after
the name to make it 10 digits.

eg: If you are holding 50 shares and your name is JOHN T, then enter 50JOHNTO00O in the
PAN field.

In the column to enter Bank Account Number, enter your folio number in eight-digit
format.

The column to enter Date of Birth may be left blank.
After filling up all the above details, click on SUBMIT tab.

You will reach the Investor Voting Screen. Click on the EVSN. (Current EVSN is
180726010)

On the next page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same
you can see the options “YES/NO” for voting decision. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

If you wish to view the entire Resolution details click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK”.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will appear. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, or else to change your
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote and do the same procedure.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

Click the “Click here to print” link to print the vote casted by you.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available
for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google
Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App
Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate. For any assistance, you may contact the office
of M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Limited at the telephone no:18002005533 (Monday - Friday: 10.00
IST to 18.15 IST and Saturday:10.00 IST to 14.00 IST) or email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians may take note of the following -

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
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. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (PoA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section
or mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. The contact person is Mr. Rakesh Delri, Manager/
CDSL.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013

Item No: 06

The Board of Directors of CIAL in its meeting held on 27" March 2015 appointed Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as
Additional Director (Independent) of the Company. Subsequently, during the 21%t Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 18" August 2015, the Members of the Company passed an ordinary resolution for
appointing Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as the Independent Director of the Company for a period of three years. The
term of appointment of Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul will expire on 17" August 2018.

Pursuant to Section 149(10) of the Companies Act 2013, the Independent Director shall be eligible for
reappointment and such reappointment should be disclosed in the Board’s Report. The Board of Directors
in their meeting held on 28" June 2018 considered the proposal to reappoint Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as
Independent Director for a second term of 3 (three) consecutive years with effect from 18" August 2018 on
the Board of the Company and in the opinion of the Board, the performance of the Director for the previous 3
years was found satisfactory and he fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder. Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul is independent of the management.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013
signifying his intention to propose Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as a candidate for the office of a Director. Further,
the Company has received from Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (ii) intimation in Form
DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 to the effect that he is not
disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013, and (iii) a declaration to the effect
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No.06 for the approval of the shareholders
appointing Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,
for a further period of 3 (three) years with effect from 18" August 2018 and upto the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2021.

No Directors other than Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul himself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No: 07
The Board of Directors of CIAL in its meeting held on 27" March 2015 appointed Smt. A.K.Ramani as
Additional Director (Independent) of the Company. Subsequently, during the 21t Annual General Meeting
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of the Company held on 18" August 2015, the Members of the Company passed an ordinary resolution for
appointing Smt. A.K.Ramani as the Independent Director of the Company for a period of three years. The term
of appointment of Smt. A.K.Ramani will expire on 17" August 2018.

Pursuant to Section 149(10) of the Companies Act 2013, the Independent Director shall be eligible for
reappointment and such reappointment should be disclosed in the Board’s Report. The Board of Directors in
their meeting held on 28" June 2018 considered the proposal to reappoint Smt. A.K.Ramani as Independent
Director for a second term of 3 (three) consecutive years with effect from 18" August 2018 on the Board of the
Company and in the opinion of the Board, the performance of the Director for the previous 3 years was found
satisfactory and she fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
Smt. A.K.Ramani is independent of the management.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013
signifying his intention to propose Smt. A.K. Ramani as a candidate for the office of a Director. Further, the
Company has received from Smt. A.K. Ramani (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2 pursuant
to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (ii) intimation in Form DIR 8
in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 to the effect that she is not
disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013, and (iii) a declaration to the effect
that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No.07 for the approval of the shareholders
appointing Smt. A.K. Ramani as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for
a further period of 3 (three) years with effect from 18" August 2018 and upto the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2021.

No Directors other than Smt. A.K.Ramani herself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No: 08

During the 19" Annual General Meeting of CIAL held on 27" September 2013 the Members of the Company
passed a Special Resolution to appoint Sri. M.A.Yusuffali as non-retiring Director for a period of 5 (five) years.
The period of appointment will expire on 26" September 2018. The Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 28" June 2018 considered the proposal to appoint Sri. M.A.Yusuffali as non-retiring Director for a period of
5 years from 27" September 2018. The Company has received a notice in writing and a deposit of rupees
one lakh from a member proposing the candidature of Sri. M.A.Yusuffali for the office of Director under the
provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company has received from Sri. M.A.Yusuffali (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, and (ii) intimation in
Form DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 to the effect that he
is not disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No.08 for approval of the shareholders to appoint
Sri. M.A.Yusuffali as non-retiring Director of the Company for a period of 5 years from 27" September 2018.

No Directors other than Sri. M.A.Yusuffali himself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.
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Item No: 09

During the 19" Annual General Meeting of CIAL held on 27" September 2013 the Members of the Company
passed a Special Resolution to appoint Sri. C.V. Jacob as non-retiring Director for a period of 5 (five) years.
The period of appointment will expire on 26" September 2018 and therefore, it is essential to appoint
Sri. C.V. Jacob as the Director in this Annual General Meeting whose period of office shall be liable to
determination by retirement by rotation. The Company has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing the candidature of Sri. C.V. Jacob for the office of Director under the provisions of Section 160 of
the Companies Act 2013 along with a deposit of rupees one lakh.

The Company has received from Sri. C.V.Jacob (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, and (ii) intimation in
Form DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 to the effect that he
is not disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013.

Accordingly, your Directors recommended the resolution No. 9 for approval of the shareholders appointing
Sri. C.V. Jacob as Director of the Company and the period of office of Sri. C.V. Jacob shall be liable to
determination by retirement by rotation.

No Directors other than Sri. C.V. Jacob himself or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives, are directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No: 10

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company have appointed
M/s. BBS & Associates, Cost Accountants, Ernakulam (ICAI Firm Registration No: 00273) as the Cost Auditor
of the Company for the financial year 2018 - 19 and approved the remuneration payable to them.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor should be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company. Hence, the Board recommends the resolution No: 10, for ratification of the
members of the Company.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

By order of the Board
for Cochin International Airport Limited

sd/-
Place : Nedumbassery Saji K.George
Date : 20" August 2018 Company Secretary
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As per the requirement of Secretarial Standard 2, the following information relating to the directors to
be appointed / reappointed as contained at item 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, & 9 is furnished below:

Particulars Information Information
Name Dr. T.M. Thomas Isaac (DIN: 0000507439) | Adv. Mathew T. Thomas (DIN: 0001176734)
Age 66 Years 57 Years
Qualifications PhD LLB

Chairmanships of Committees of
other Boards

Experience 44 years of Administrative experience 35 years of Administrative experience
Terms and Conditions of appointment | As per resolution at item no.03 As per resolution at item no.04
Remuneration last drawn Nil Nil

Date of first appointment on Board | 23 June 2016 23 June 2016

Shareholding in Company Nil Nil

Relationship with other Directors, | Nil Nil

Manager and other Key Managerial

Personnel

Number of Meetings of Board | 2 3

attended

Other Directorships, Memberships/ | Director in - Chairman in -

1. Vizhijam International Seaport Limited

2. Muziris Projects Limited

1. Kerala Irrigation Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited
Director in -

2. Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures
Limited

Particulars Information Information
Name Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (DIN: 0002863821) | Smt. A.K. Ramani (DIN: 0007188269)
Age 74 Years 60 Years
Qualifications IAS B.Tech

Experience

50 years of Administrative experience

32 years of Administrative experience

Terms and Conditions of appointment.

As per resolution at item no.06

As per resolution at item no.07

Remuneration last drawn

Rs.4,50,000 (Sitting Fees)

Rs.3,00,000 (Sitting Fees)

Date of first appointment on Board

27" March 2015

27" March 2015

Chairmanships of Committees of
other Boards

Shareholding in Company Nil Nil
Relationship with other Directors, | Nil Nil
Manager and other Key Managerial

Personnel

Number of Meetings of Board |4 4

attended

Other Directorships, Memberships/ | Nil Director in-

1. CIAL Infrastructures Limited
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Particulars Information Information
Name Sri. Yusuffali M.A. Sri. C.V. Jacob
(DIN: 0000364677) (DIN: 0000030106)
Age 63 years 85 years
Qualifications DBA Diploma

Experience

41 years of Administrative experience

63 years of Administrative experience

Terms and Conditions of
appointment.

As per resolution at item no.08

As per resolution at item no.09

Remuneration last drawn

Nil

INR 1,00,000 (Sitting Fees)

Date of first appointment on
Board

26" September 1995

30" March 1994

Shareholding in Company

3,72,31,779 shares

2,10,271 shares

Relationship with other Directors,
Manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel

Nil

Nil

Number of Meetings of Board
attended

Other Directorships, Memberships/
Chairmanships of Committees
of other Boards

Director and Managing Director in —

1. Emmay Projects (India) Private Limited
Emmay Ventures (India) Private Limited
Lulu Hypermarket Private Limited

Lulu Trivandrum Mall Private Limited

A

Lulu International Shopping Mall Private

Limited

6. Lulu International Convention Centre
Private Limited

7. Lulu Convention and Exhibition Center
Private Limited

8. Lulu Convention Center Calicut Private
Limited

9. Line Properties Private Limited

10. Lulu Group International Private Limited

11. Lulu Lucknow Shopping Mall Private Limited

Director in —
12. Lulu Tech Park Private Limited
13. Air Kerala International Services Limited
14. Emmay Logistics (India) Private Limited
15. Kannur International Airport Limited
16. Lulu Cyber Park Private Limited
17. UAE - India Business Council
(Section 8 Company)
18. Norka — Roots (Section 8 Company)

Director in —

1. Ezva Fashion Private Limited

2. Synthite Industries Limited

3. Cochin International Aviation Services
Limited

4. Air Kerala International Services Limited

5. CIAL Infrastructures Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Fourth Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements and accounts of the Company for the year ended 31t March 2018.
(Rupees in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total Income 553.42 487.28
Less : Operational Expenditure 165.49 188.62
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (Operating Profit) 387.93 298.66
Less: Interest 42.62 3.55
Profit before Depreciation & Tax 345.31 295 .11
Less: Depreciation 103.60 38.78
Profit before Tax 241.71 256.33
Less: Provision for Tax 83.29 75.05
Profit after Tax 158.42 181.28
Less: Other Comprehensive Income 2.43 1.84
Profit transferred to Balance Sheet 155.99 179.44

AVIATION SCENARIO IN INDIA

According to a recent report of Centre for Asia Pacific Aviation (CAPA), India is among the five fastest-growing
aviation markets globally with 275 million passengers. The civil aviation industry in India has emerged as
one of the fastest growing industries in the country during the last three years. According to International Air
Transport Association (IATA), India is likely to overtake United Kingdom for the third place in the global aviation
sector, in the year 2025.

The inflow of foreign investment has led to an acceleration in the aviation industry’s growth over the last
several years. According to the data released by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP),
FDI inflows in air transport (including air freight) between April 2000 and September 2017 stood at $1.59 billion.
With huge investments being planned in the aviation sector, our country will continue to record exponential
increase in air traffic. Growing emphasis on regional connectivity will also trigger substantial growth, as air
transport at present remains beyond the reach of most of the country’s travelling public.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

a. Financial Overview:

During the year under review, your Company has achieved commendable growth in all key
performance parameters. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2018 was Rs.553.41 crores
which recorded an impressive growth of 13.57% over the previous financial year. The Company
earned an operating profit of Rs. 387.93 crores as against Rs. 298.66 crores during 2016-17 with
a growth of 29.89%. However, the profit after tax has been decreased from Rs.181.28 crores
(financial year 2016-17) to Rs.158.42 crores (financial year 2017-18) because the operationalization
and capitalization of new International Terminal resulted in increased depreciation & interest of term
loan.
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b.

Aircraft, Passenger and Cargo Movement:

Catching up with the renewed momentum achieved by the Indian Aviation Sector, Cochin International
Airport has logged the magical figure of One Crore passengers in a single financial year. It was on
28" March 2018 when the Indigo flight 6E 563 from Chennai had docked at Terminal-2 at 12.20 pm.

The details of aircraft, passenger and cargo traffic at your airport for the financial year 2017-18 and
the corresponding movements during the preceding financial year are presented below:

Aircraft Movement (in numbers)

Aircraft Movement
Year Total
International Sector Domestic Sector
2017-18 32,947 36,718 69,665
2016-17 31,691 31,136 62,827
Increase / (Decrease) in Nos. 1,256 5,582 6,838
Increase / (Decrease) in % 3.96% 17.93% 10.88%
Passenger Movement (in numbers)
Passenger Movement
Year Total
International Sector Domestic Sector
2017-18 52,29,306 48,89,758 | 1,01,19,064
2016-17 49,98,284 39,42,914 89,41,198
Increase / (Decrease) in Nos. 2,31,022 9,46,844 11,77,866
Increase / (Decrease) in % 4.62% 24.01% 13.17%
Cargo Movement (in MTs)
International Domestic

Year Import Export Total Receipt Despatch Total
2017-18 6,068 62,794 68,862 9,765 3,658 13,423
2016-17 7,239 64,011 71,250 9,867 3,291 13,158
Increase in MTs (2,388) 265

Increase in % (3.35%) 2.01%

As you may observe from the above tables, there has been a considerable growth in all the key
operational segments of the Company except international cargo, compared to the previous year.

Dividend:

Your Board is pleased to recommend a dividend of 25% on the paid up value of equity shares as on
31t March 2018 for the year under review, to the shareholders subject to the relevant provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and if approved at the Annual General Meeting. Based
on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, Rs.95,64,36,873 and Rs.19,65,97,512 is required
for the payment of dividend and dividend distribution tax respectively for the financial year 2017-18.
Your Directors wish to inform you that the details of members who have not encashed their dividend
warrants from the financial year 2010-11 have been uploaded to the website of the Company
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(www.cial.aero). Those members who have still not encashed their dividend warrants in respect of
any of the above mentioned periods are requested to submit their dividend warrants to the registered
office of the company for revalidation / re-issue. After 7 years from the date of declaration of dividend
for any financial year, the balance available as unclaimed dividend would be remitted to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund of Central Government as per the provisions of Section
124(5) & Section 125(2) of the Companies Act 2013. The unpaid dividend pertaining to the financial
year 2010-11 is due for remittance to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of Central
Government in this year. The details pertaining to the transfer of unclaimed dividends to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund have been disclosed in the notice of the Annual General Meeting.

MAJOR INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The development strategy followed by CIAL is to pursue innovative models which are comprehensive,
sustainable and cost effective. During the year under review, CIAL was ranked the third best Airport (category
of 5 to 15 million passengers) based on the 2017 Airport Service Quality (ASQ) Survey conducted by Airports
Council International (ACI). This was CIAL’s second consecutive accomplishment in the same category.
Surpassing the 10 million passenger mark in a single financial year was another important milestone achieved
by the Company.

Your Directors are extremely happy to mention the recent visit of the Executive Director of the United
Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) Mr. Eric Solheim on 26" May 2018 to Airport’s solar power plants.
An extremely inspiring comment was recorded by him in the Visitors’ Book at the Airport, which we are proud
to reproduce below;

“l was so inspired visiting Kochi Airport, the first solar powered airport in the world.
You are writing history; others will follow.”

Executive Director of the United Nations Environment Programme also announced United Nation’s interest in
endorsing Cochin International Airport officially as the first airport in the world fully powered by solar energy.

The major initiatives of the Company during the year under review are briefly given below:

1. Renovation of existing Domestic Terminal Building

After the commissioning of the new T3 International Terminal during month of April 2017, your
company lost no time to commence the renovation works of the Domestic Terminal building which
is fast nearing completion. The total area of the new Domestic Terminal is 6 lakh square feet, a
steep increase from the existing one lakh square feet. It is expected that, the renovated Domestic
Terminal building will be commissioned during September 2018. It will have state-of-the-art facilities
including 56 check-in counters, 11 gates, 7 aerobridges etc., with a capacity to handle 2000
passengers during peak hours. It will also have a centralized air conditioning system, 4 escalators,
8 elevators, large shopping and F&B area, 700 surveillance cameras, 1,300 multi sensor fire detectors,
100% LED Lighting system and modern baggage handling facilities. The new Domestic Terminal has
been designed to cater to the projected traffic during the next 20 years.

2. Installation of 40.00 MWp capacity PV solar power plants
During the previous financial year 2017-18, your company through its subsidiary, commissioned
solar power plants of 29.10 MWp capacity at Cochin International Airport, which enabled your
Company to continue its unique and prestigious position as the first and the only airport in the world
to be fully powered by solar energy. The solar installations already commissioned include a 2.7 MWp
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capacity carport providing solar roof to more than 1,300 cars at the airport, which is the biggest
carport in India and the second biggest carport in any airport in the world. Another unique solar
installation of your Company is a 6 MWp capacity canal top solar power plant which has been
installed over a 2 KM long canal using cost-effective reinforced cement concrete structures, on the
south side of the airport runway outside the operational area. Your Company has undertaken a few
pilot research projects by installing solar trackers which will enable movement of the solar panels
from east to west for maximizing power generation and also installing solar panels in the east and
west directions to maximize the land utilization. Considering the increase in power consumption after
the commissioning of the new Domestic Terminal and to ensure that your company continues to
have the unique status as a fully solar powered airport, steps have been taken to scale up the solar
capacity to 40 MWp by September 2018.

Participation in the development of an inland waterway from Kovalam to Kasargode.

The Government of Kerala has announced the development of a navigable canal from Kovalam
to Bakel; the first phase to be completed by 2020. This will provide inland waterway connectivity
through the entire length of the state (covering 10 districts) and will give a major boost to the tourism
sector. A Special Purpose Vehicle jointly promoted by Government of Kerala and your Company has
been incorporated for this purpose. Kerala Waterways is expected to trigger huge economic activities
throughout the length of Kerala. Tourism in the State is expected to gain a major boost even in the
relatively undeveloped areas of the State.

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
During the year under review, your Company has received number of awards and recognitions from various
national as well as international forums. A few of these awards are given below:

1.

8.

Airport Council International’s Airport Service Quality award (3™ prize in 5-15 million category) in the
whole world.

Best Public Private Partnership Golf Course - the award is instituted by Golf Industry Association
(GIA).

Kerala State Pollution Control Board’s certificate of merit for substantial and sustained efforts in
pollution control and for initiatives in environmental protection.

CAPA Chairman’s order of Merit in recognition of excellence in airport performance.

Kerala Management Association’s Nasscom IT award for best innovation for installing state of the
art baggage handling system (T3).

ICI - Ultra Tech Endowment Award - for outstanding concrete structure (Terminal 3) of Kerala.

Kerala Management Association’s Corporate Social Responsibility 1t Runner up Award (for
Environment & Greenery category).

Kerala Management Association’s Excellence Award for In-House Magazine.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

According to the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act 2013 and the relevant Accounting Standards
(Ind AS 27), the consolidated audited financial statements are provided in the Annual Report. The standalone
financial statements of all the subsidiary companies of CIAL as on 31 March 2018 have been displayed at
the website of CIAL (www.cial.aero).
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CIAL has five subsidiary companies, namely Cochin International Aviation Services Limited (CIASL), Air Kerala
International Services Limited (AKISL), CIAL Infrastructures Limited (CIL), CIAL Dutyfree and Retail Services
Limited (CDRSL) and recently incorporated Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Limited (KWIL). A statement
containing the salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries / Associates Companies / Joint
Ventures in Form No: AOC 1, is attached to this report as Annexure A.

1.

Cochin International Aviation Services Limited

Cochin International Aviation Services Limited (CIASL) is a subsidiary of CIAL, which has been
incorporated for aircraft Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO) services and for Aviation Training.
CIASL is currently undertaking Line Maintenance Services for several international carriers operating
at Cochin International Airport. The organization has secured approvals from regulators like Director
General of Civil Aviation (DGCA), European Aviation Safety Agency(EASA), General Civil Aviation
Authority (GCAA - UAE), Civil Aviation Authority of Singapore (CAAS), Qatar Civil Aviation Authority,
Civil Aviation Authority of Srilanka, Civil Aviation Authority-Thailand, Civil Aviation Authority-Bahrain
and DGCA - Kuwait for line maintenance services. For base maintenance, the Company has
established two Narrow Body Hangars, with easy and direct access to the Airport Runway. The
Company has entered into an agreement with a leading MRO service provider for operationalizing
the MRO facility at Cochin Airport.

Air Kerala International Services Limited

Air Kerala International Services Limited (AKISL) is a subsidiary of the Cochin International Airport
Limited, and the primary objective of the Company is to establish a low cost airline based at Cochin
International Airport, to benefit the huge population of non-resident Keralites in the Middle East. In
the National Civil Aviation Policy 2016, the Government has decided to scrap the requirement that
mandated airlines to have five years of domestic operations to be eligible to fly overseas. However,
an airline will have to allocate 20 aircraft or 20% of their total fleet of aircraft, whichever is higher, to
the domestic sector if they wish to fly overseas.

CIAL Infrastructures Limited

CIAL Infrastructures Limited (CIL) was incorporated in the year 2012 to broaden the horizons of
CIAL to exploit the opportunities in the power and other infrastructure sectors. CIL has already
commissioned 29.10 MWp solar power plant at the airport premises, which enabled your Company
to become the World’s first fully solar powered airport. The plant now generates adequate power to
meet the energy requirements of the airport. As the requirement of power at the airport will increase
substantially with the commissioning of the new Domestic Terminal Building, CIL has taken steps to
augment the solar capacity to 40 MWp by September 2018 which will enable CIAL to continue its
status as a fully solar powered airport.

CIAL Dutyfree and Retail Services Limited

CIAL Dutyfree and Retail Services Limited (CDRSL) is a wholly owned public limited company of
CIAL. The Company was incorporated on the 01stday of March 2016, in order to clasp the maximum
benefits deriving out of the duty free and travel retail business. CDRSL is established with the major
objective to expand the duty free operations far beyond the limits of Cochin Airport to the several
travel destinations spread across the world. The Company has commenced its commercial business
activities with effect from 01 June 2016.

17



Cochin International Airport Limited

5. Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Limited
Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Limited (KWIL) was incorporated on 03 October 2017 jointly
by Government of Kerala and Cochin International Airport Limited. The Company was established
with the major objective to facilitate the development of an Inland Waterway from Kovalam to Bakel.
The waterway from Kovalam to Bakel is proposed to be developed in three phases. The first phase
will be completed during 2020, while the second and third phases are expected to be completed
during 2022 and 2025 respectively.

Your Directors wish to state that no companies have ceased to be subsidiary companies during the period
under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,
your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act 2013:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31t March 2018, the applicable
accounting standards and the instructions provided under Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013
have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation
was observed.

DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (6) of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, two-third of the total
number of Directors excluding Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation and out of which one third
has to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting. Dr. T.M. Thomas Isaac (DIN: 0000507439) and
Adv. Mathew T. Thomas (DIN: 0001176734) are therefore liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board therefore recommends their re-appointments
as Directors of the Company.

Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (DIN: 0002863821) and Smt. A.K. Ramani (DIN: 0007188269) who was appointed as
Independent Directors and hold office up to 17" August 2018 and being eligible, can be re-appointed them
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as Independent Directors of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation to hold office for a second term of 3
(three) consecutive years on the Board of the Company. Special Resolution(s) has been given in the notice of
the Annual General Meeting for the approval of the members.

During the 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27" September 2013, the Members of the
Company passed a Special Resolution under Section 268 of the Companies Act 1956 for the appointment of
Sri. M.A. Yusuffali and Sri. C.V. Jacob as non-retiring Directors for a period of 5 years from 27" September
2013. Their period of appointment will expire on 26" September 2018. Hence, it is required to appoint these
Directors in the next Annual General Meeting as the Directors of the Company. Your Directors recommend to
appoint Sri. M.A. Yusuffali as non-retiring Director for a period of 5 years from the date of this Annual General
Meeting. Your Directors also recommend to appoint Sri. C.V. Jacob as a Director who is liable to retire by
rotation.

Declaration of Independent Directors

Sri. Kuriakos Roy Paul (DIN:0002863821) and Smt. A.K. Ramani (DIN:0007188269), the Independent
Directors of the Company have furnished declaration(s) to the Board that they meet the criteria of
‘independence’ as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149.

Director’s appointment and remuneration

The policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters is in compliance with Section 178(3)
of the Companies Act 2013. The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee for this
purpose.

Pursuant to Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 read
with Article 96 of the Articles of Association of the company, the Board has fixed a sitting fees of Rs.50,000
per meeting per Director for attending the Board Meeting and Rs.25,000 per meeting per Committee Member
(Director) for attending Committee meetings of the Company.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam (Firm Registration No:001488S),
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that
their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not
disqualified for re-appointment. The Notes on standalone and consolidated financial statements referred
to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed M/s. Korah & Korah, Chartered Accountants,
Ernakulam (Firm Registration No:006138S), as Internal Auditors, pursuant to the provisions of Section
138 of the Companies Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2017-18.

Secretarial Auditor

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company is required to appoint a Secretarial
Auditor for auditing the secretarial and related records to ensure compliances of various legislations of the
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Company and to provide a report in this regard. The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed
Sri. Sathish V, Practicing Company Secretary (C.P.N0:8343) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and
the Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 is attached as Annexure B to this report. No qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company
Secretary.

Cost Auditor

M/s. BBS & Associates, Cost Accountants, Ernakulam (Firm Registration No:00273) has been appointed
as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-18. The Audit Committee unanimously
recommended to reappoint M/s. BBS & Associates, Cost Accountants, Ernakulam as the Cost Auditor
of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 at a remuneration of Rs.1,50,000 plus GST, which was
subsequently approved by the Board. As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the remuneration
to Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the Members of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and therefore, the said item has been included in the notice of AGM for the ratification of the members.

DISCLOSURES
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)
As per the requirement of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules 2014 and Schedule VIl (Activities to be included in the CSR Policies), the Company has

constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee at the Board level to monitor the CSR activities.
The CSR Policy of the Company is available in the following link: http://cial.aero/contents/viewcontent.

aspx?linkid=55

The Company understands its responsibility towards the society and environment in which it operates.
CIAL has already identified the strategic areas to achieve its corporate and social objectives.

The composition and category of the members are given below:

Sl.No. Name of the Member and Designation Category of Member
1. | Dr. TM. Thomas Isaac - Chairman Non-Executive Director
2. | Sri. C.V. Jacob - Member Non-Executive Director
3. | Smt. A.K. Ramani - Member Independent Director
4. | Sri. V.J. Kurian - Member Managing Director

Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year:
a. Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2017-18

Particulars Amount (Rs)
Profit before tax for the Financial Year 2016-2017 2,56,31,96,000
Profit before tax for the Financial Year 2015-2016 2,37,32,19,000
Profit before tax for the Financial Year 2014-2015 1,79,28,96,332
Total profit before tax for the preceding 3 years 6,72,93,11,332
Average Net Profit for the preceding 3 years 2,24,31,03,777
2% of Average Net Profit (to be spent for the Financial Year 2017-2018) 4,48,62,076
?ﬁ?;/?ag?:ﬁ ;(;r;c;unt to be spent by CIAL towards CSR obligation upto 4,48,62,076

20



24% Annual Report 2017-18

b. Total amount spent during the financial year: Rs. 6,03,32,505
c.  Amount unspent, if any: Nil.

d. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Projects or Amount
. Programs (1) Local Direct Cumulative Amount
CSR Sectorin . Outlay . . .
. . area or other (2) Specify expenditure | expenditure |spent : Direct
Sl. | Project or which the o (Budget)
. S the State and District . spent on upto the or through
No. | Activity Project is . project or . . . !
o where projects or the projects | reporting |implementing
Identified covered programs .
programs was . or programs period agency
wise
undertaken
Government
Natural Social To the victims of Kerala
- Calamity | Empowerment of Okhi (Statewise) i 5,00,00,000 | 5,00,00,000 (implementing
agency)
To take care the aged
2. | Stk Socil orphans and - 10,00,000 |5,10,00,000 |  Direct
destitute | Empowerment permanently
sick destitute
. Donation of
Medical . .
3. e Health care equipment to - 88,00,000 | 5,98,00,000 Direct
facilities .
Cancer Institute
Village Infrastructure Donation to nearby
4, ) .g panchayat for street - 2,32,505 |6,03,32,505 Direct
lighting | Development lighting

We, the members of the CSR Committee hereby declare that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

V.J. Kurian Dr. T M Thomas Isaac
Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee with the following Members:

SI.No. | Name of the Member Designation
1. Sri. K. Roy Paul / Independent Director Chairman
2. Smt. A.K. Ramani / Independent Director Member
3. Sri. E.M. Babu / Non-Executive Director Member

The purpose of constituting the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to formulate the criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a Director and recommend to
the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees by striking a balance between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders. A meeting
was held on 24" February 2018 in which all the members were present.
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Audit Committee
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee with the following members:

SI.No. | Name of the Member Designation
1. Sri. K. Roy Paul / Independent Director Chairman
2. Smt. A.K. Ramani / Independent Director Member
3. Sri. E.M. Babu / Non-Executive Director Member

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board during the period
under review.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

(i) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

(i) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

(iii) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

(iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

(v) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

(vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; and

(viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the period under report on 29.06.2017, 11.12.2017

and 24.02.2018. The composition and category of the members along with their attendance at the Audit

Committee Meetings are given below:

No. of Audit Committee Meetings
SI.No. | Name of the Member | Category of Member Held during the
- Attended
period
1. Sri. K. Roy Paul Independent Director 3 3
2. Smt. A.K. Ramani Independent Director 3 3
3. Sri. E.M. Babu Non-Executive Director 3 3

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board & its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee with
the following members:

SI.No. | Name of the Member Designation
1. Sri. K. Roy Paul / Independent Director Chairman
2. Sri. M.A. Yusuffali / Non-Executive Director Member
3. Sri. N.V. George / Non-Executive Director Member

The mandate of this Committee is to consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders of the Company.
One meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held during the period under review, on
24" February 2018 in which Sri. K. Roy Paul and Sri. N.V. George were present.
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CIAL Share Transfer Committee
CIAL has constituted a Share Transfer Committee with the following members:

SI.No. | Name of the Member Designation
1. Adv. Mathew T. Thomas / Nominee Director Chairman
2. Sri. V.J. Kurian / Managing Director Member
3. Sri. C.V. Jacob / Non-Executive Director Member
4, Sri. N.V. George / Non-Executive Director Member

This Committee is the approving authority relating to transfer of shares and related matters.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to Companies Act 2013 a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013
states that the performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of
Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. Similarly, the evaluation of all the Directors and
the Board as a whole has to be conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the
Board. The Independent Directors at its meeting held on 24" February 2018 reviewed the performance
of non-independent Directors & the Board as a whole and reviewed the performance of the Chairperson
of the Company, sub committees of the Board and assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of
information between the Company management and the Board.

Risk Management

The Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and management to ensure stable &
sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and resolving the risks
associated with the business. The Company has identified the potential risks such as financial risk, legal
& statutory risks and the internal process risk and has put in place appropriate measures for its mitigation.
At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 of the Act

There were no loans and guarantees made by the company under Section 186 of the Companies Act
2013 during the year under review. The Company has invested Rs.7,00,000 (70,000 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each) in the equity of Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Limited during the financial year 2017-18.

Secretarial Standards of ICSI

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1)
and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the
Central Government.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company in the prescribed Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure C to this Report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure D to this Report.

23



Cochin International Airport Limited

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review on 29" June 2017,
18" September 2017, 16" December 2017 and 08" March 2018.

The composition and category of the Directors along with their attendance at Board Meetings for the
financial year 2017-18 are given below:

No. of Board Meetings
SI.No.| Name of the Director Category of Director Held during
. Attended
the period
A - Chairman (Nominee Director)
1. Sri. Pinarayi Vijayan Non-Executive 4 4
2. Sri. TM. Thomas Isaac | Non-Executive (Nominee Director) 4 2
3. | Adv. V.S. Sunilkumar Non-Executive (Nominee Director) 4 4
4. | Adv. Mathew T. Thomas | Non-Executive (Nominee Director) 4 3
5. Sri. K. Roy Paul Independent Director (Non-Executive) 4 4
6. Smt. A K. Ramani Independent Director (Non-Executive) 4 4
7. | Sri. M.A. Yusuffali Non-Executive Director 4 1
8. [ Sri. C.V. Jacob Non-Executive Director 4 1
9. Sri. N.V. George Non-Executive Director 4 3
10. | Sri. E.M. Babu Non-Executive Director 4 4
11. [ Sri. V.J. Kurian Managing Director (Nominee Director) 4 4

Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions in terms of Ind AS 24 are set out in the Notes forming part of the accounts.
These transactions are not likely to have a conflict with the interest of the company. All the related party
transactions are negotiated on arm’s length basis and are intended to protect the interest of the company.
Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties are
given in Form AOC-2 as Annexure E to Directors’ Report.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. There were
no employees of the company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the limits set out under Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.
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GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
4. Change in the nature of the business of the Company.
5

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

6. There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases reported to the
Internal Complaints Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 and also, no frauds were reported by the
Auditors of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received
from Central and State Governments, Financial Institutions, Banks, various Airlines & other Agencies working
in the airport and the customers, during the year under review. Your Directors are grateful to the Company’s
valued shareholders for their unstinted support and patronage and look forward to receive the same in equal
measures in the years to come. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation
for the committed services by all the employees of the Company.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

Pinarayi Vijayan

Date : 28" June 2018 Chairman
Place : Thiruvananthapuram DIN: 0001907262
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Form AOC -1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associates Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries (Information in respect of each subsidiary to be present)

Annexure A

Sl.No. Particulars Details
Cochin International CIAL Air Kerala CIAL Dutyfree | Kerala Waterways
1 Name of the subsidiary Aviation Services Infrastructures International and Retail and Infrastructures
Limited Limited Services Limited | Services Limited Limited
2 | Date on which the subsidiary was acquired 08.09.2005 20.07.2012 21.02.2006 01.03.2016 03.10.2017
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, 03.10.2017
3 | if different from the holding company’s reporting Not Applicable | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable e
period t0 31.03.2018
Reporting currency and exchange rate as on
4 the last date of the relevant Financial Year in Not Applicable | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
the case of foreign subsidiaries
5 | Share Capital 75,31,94,000 | 1,55,33,46,220 1,06,41,200 7,00,700 7,00,070
6 |Reserves & Surplus (27,65,28,597) |  30,13,47,000 (1,50,44,360) 5,75,48,864 (13,71,400)
7 | Total Assets 50,40,73,264 | 1,93,87,83,000 10,95,890 83,14,51,573 4,86,99,670
8 | Total Liabilities 50,40,73,264 | 1,93,87,83,000 10,95,890 83,14,51,573 4,86,99,670
9 | Investments Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
10 | Turnover 11,02,12,545|  22,80,79,000 70,870 | 2,37,26,00,164 Nil
11 | Profit before taxation 15,88,647 14,74,33,000 40,620 4,31,80,592 (13,71,400)
12 | Provision for taxation (net) Nil 4,07,69,000 10,460 1,10,11,059 Nil
13 | Profit after taxation 15,88,647 10,66,64,000 30,160 3,21,69,533 (13,71,400)
14 | Proposed dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
15 | % of shareholding 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.90 99.99

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

SI.No. Particulars Details

Name of Associates / Joint Ventures Nil

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not applicable

2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was acquired Not applicable

3 Share of As§ociates / Joint Ventures hgld by thg Compapy on the yfear end . Not applicable
(a) Number; (b) Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint Venture; (c) Extend of holding %

4 Description of how there is significant influence Not applicable

5 Reason why the Associate / Joint Venture is not consolidated Not applicable

6 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet Not applicable

7 Profit / Loss for the Year - (a) Considered in Consolidation; (b) Not considered in Consolidation Not applicable

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director

(DIN:0001806859)
sd/-

(DIN:0000030106)

sd/-
Sunil Chacko Saii
I, ’ ) aji K. George
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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As per our separate report of even date attached

For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

CA.

sd/-

K.T. Mohanan
Partner

(M.No: 201484)
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SATHISH V
B.COM, LLB, PGDT, ACMA, FCS
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
B1, I FLOOR, PERIELLATH APARTMENTS, JAWAHAR - MAHATMA ROAD, VYTTILA P.O, COCHIN - 682019
Phone: 0484 — 4044551; 9961333309 Email: vsathish.cs@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3 Annexure B
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014]

To,
The Members,
Cochin International Airport Limited
Registered office: 35, 4™ Floor
GCDA Commercial Complex
Marine Drive, Cochin - 682 031
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by M/s. COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”) with
Corporate Identity No U63033KL1994PLC007803. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31t March 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/s. COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31t March 2018
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

2. | further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and the Rules made under that Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with
regard to:

a) maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

b) closure of the Register of Members;

c) forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the
Central Government;

d) service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e) notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

f)  the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;

g) the 23" Annual General Meeting held on 18" September 2017;

h)  minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;

i)  approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government
authorities, wherever required;
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SATHISH V
B.COM, LLB, PGDT, ACMA, FCS
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

B1, I FLOOR, PERIELLATH APARTMENTS, JAWAHAR - MAHATMA ROAD, VYTTILA P.O, COCHIN - 682019

Phone: 0484 — 4044551; 9961333309 Email: vsathish.cs@gmail.com

payment of remuneration to Directors, including the Managing Director;

appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors;

transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and debentures, and issue and dispatch of duplicate
certificates of shares;

declaration and payment of dividends;

transfer of amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection Fund and
uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the Company and the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs;

transfer of certain equity shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund [IEPF] Authority, in respect of
which, dividend has remained unpaid or unclaimed by the shareholders for 7 consecutive years or more;
borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

investment of the Company’s funds including inter-corporate loans and investments and loans to others;
giving guarantees in connection with loans taken by subsidiaries;

form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part |, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed under
Part Il and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule 11l to the Act;
preparation of Directors Report;

execution of contracts, affixing of common seal, registered office and publication of name of the company; and
generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

3. | further report that:-

a)

d)

e)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act.

The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts
and arrangements, shareholdings/directorships in other companies and interests in other entities.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

The company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act.

4. | further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines and that during the audit period, there were no other specific events/actions in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

sd/-

SATHISH V

Place : Cochin Practising Company Secretary
Date :28.06.2018 FCS 8005; CP 8343
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Annexure C

Annexure to Board’s Report

Form No. MGT 9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.

CIN

U63033KL1994PLC007803

Registration date

30* March 1994

Name of the Company

Cochin International Airport Limited

2.
3.
4

Category/Sub-category
of the Company

Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non Government
Company

Address of the Registered
office & contact details

Room No:35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex,
Marine Drive, Ernakulam 682 031

Telephone & Fax : 0484 2374154

Email ID : cs@cial.aero Website : www.cial.aero

Whether listed Company

No

Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Not applicable

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10% or
more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

Sl Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product / % to total turnover of
No. main Products / Services Service the Company
1 | Airport Operator 5223 100%
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Holding/ | % of .
N Na";ﬁ :’c‘:i;difss of CIN/ GLN Subsidigryl shares Agp"f.ab'e
pany Associate | held ection
1. | Cochin International Aviation
Services Limited
XI/318E, Cochin International U35303KL2005PLC018632 | Subsidiary | 99.99 2(87)
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111
2. | CIAL Infrastructures Limited
XI/318E, Cochin International o
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport U45203KL2012PLC031692 | Subsidiary | 99.99 2(87)
P O, Ernakulam 683 111
3. | Air Kerala International
Services Limited
XI/318E, Cochin International U62100KL2006PLC019227 | Subsidiary | 99.99 2(87)
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111
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4. | CIAL Dutyfree and Retail
Services Limited
XI/318E, Cochin International U52399KL2016PLC040279 | Subsidiary | 99.90 2(87)
Airport Buildings, Kochi Airport
P O, Ernakulam 683 111
5. | Kerala Waterways and Infra-
structures Limited
:\'I'HF::SZ d34é3;ipzlcl’;a:i:$?;; U61200KL2017PLC050586 | Subsidiary | 99.99 | 2(87)
682 024
IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
A) Category-wise Shareholding
No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the year o
Category of of the year [As on 01¢t April 2017] [As on 31t March 2018] Cha/:19e
Shareholders De- | Physical Total | ofTotal| De- I ppygica) Total | %0f Total tﬁgl;ggr
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual / HUF -1 210,271 2,10,271 0.05 -1 210271 2,10,271 0.05 -
b) Central Government - - - - - - - - R
c) State Governments - | 12,40,29,206 | 12,40,29,206 3242 12,40,29,206 | 12,40,29,206 3242
d) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - 37,722 37,722 0.01 - 37,722 37,722 0.01 -
Sub-Total (A) (1) - | 12,42,77,199 | 12,42,77,199 32.48 12,42,77,199 | 12,42,77,199 32.48 -
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / Fl - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub Total(A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
:?;232?;;;‘:'3&;‘%)": A 12,42,77,199 | 12,42,77,199 32.48 12,42,77,199 | 12,42,77,199 3248 -
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks / Fl - | 2,10,00,000 | 2,10,00,000 5.49 - 1 2,10,00,000 | 2,10,00,000 5.49 0.00
c) Central Government (PSUs) - | 3,81,93,829 | 3,81,93,829 9.98 -13,81,93,829 | 3,81,93,829 9.98 0.00
d) State Governments (PSUs) -| 6628442 | 6628442 1.73 -| 66,28442| 66,28442 1.73 0.00
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e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Flis

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B) (1)

6,58,22,271

6,58,22,271

17.20

- | 6,58,22,271

6,58,22,271

17.20

0.00

2. Non - Institutions

a) Body Corporates

i) Indian

-| 26383279

2,63,83,279

6.90

- | 262,770,713

2,62,70,713

6.87

(0.03)

i) Overseas

b) Resident Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital upto Rs.1 lakh

- | 1,84,69,220

1,84,69,220

4.83

- | 1,93,48,048

1,93,48,048

5.06

0.23

i) Individual  shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

-| 1,66,67,068

1,66,67,068

4.35

- 1,71,29.214

1,71,29,214

4.48

0.13

c) Others (specify)

i) Non Resident Indians

- | 13,09,55,712

13,09,55,712

34.23

- | 12,97,27,304

12,97,27,304

3391

(0.32)

i) Overseas Corporate Bodies

iif) Foreign Nationals

iv) Clearing Members

v) Trusts

vi) Foreign Bodies

Sub-total (B) (2)

- | 19,24,75,279

19,24,75,279

50.31

- | 19,24,75,279

19,24,75,279

50.31

Total Public Shareholding (B) =
(B) (1) +(B) (2)

- | 25,82,97,550

25,82,97,550

67.52

- | 25,82,97,550

25,82,97,550

67.52

C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

- | 38,25,74,749

38,25,74,749

100

- | 38,25,74,749

38,25,74,749

100

0.00

B)

Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

Sl.

No. Shareholders’ Name

No of Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
Company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total
shares

No of Shares

% of
total Shares
of the
Company

% of
Shares
Pledged/
encumbered
to total
shares

%
change in
shareholding
during the

year

Government of
Kerala

12,40,29,206

32.4196

12,40,29,206

32.4196

0.00

Kochi International
Airport Society

175

0.000045

175

0.000045

0.00

Cochin Chamber of
3. | Commerce
and Industry

25

0.0000065

25

0.0000065

0.00

Kerala Chamber
4. | of Commerce
and Industry

37,512

0.009805

37,512

0.009805

0.00
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Indian Chamber

5 | of Commerce 10 | 0.0000026 - 10| 0.0000026 - 0.00
and Industry

6 | C.V.Jacob 2,10,271 0.05496 - 2,10,271 0.05496 - -

Total 12,42,77,199 32.484

12,42,77,199 32.484 - -

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Date wise increase/ Shareholding at the end of
beginning of the year decrease in shareholding the year
Sl. | Name of the
No. | Shareholder(s) % of total % of total % of total
No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the
Company Company Company
1, | Governmentof | 45 4609906 |  32.4196 - . 12,40,29,206 |  32.4196
Kerala
Kochi
2. International 175 0.000045 - - 175 0.000045
Airport Society
Cochin
3. | Chamberof 25 0.0000065 - ; 25 0.0000065
Commerce and
Industry
Kerala
4, | Chamberof | o515 | 0009805 : : 37,512 0.009805
Commerce and
Industry
Indian
5 | Chamber of 10 0.0000026 - . 10 0.0000026
Commerce
and Industry
6. C.V. Jacob 2,10,271 0.05496 - - 2,10,271 0.05496

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the Date wise Increase/ Shareholding at the end of
beginning of the year Decrease in shareholding the year
Sl. [ Name of the
No. | Shareholder(s) % of total % of total % of total
No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the
Company Company Company
Synthite
1 Industries 2,49,84,020 6.5304 - - 2,49,84,020 6.5304
Limited
Bharath
p | Petroleum 5405000 | 343 : : 1,31,25000 | 343
Corporation
Limited
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Housing
and Urban
3 Development | 1,25,68,829 3.285 - - 1,25,68,829 3.285
Corporation
Limited
4 | Arindia 500000 | 3.267 : - 12500000 |  3.267
Limited
5 Statfngiaa”k of | 42500000 | 3267 : - 12500000 |  3.267
30,00,000
shares
purchased on
10/07/2017
Bavaguthu 8’%0’000
6 | Raghuram 1,25,688 0.033 snares 1.9604 76,25,698 1.993
Shetty purchased on
31/08/2017
37,00,010
shares
purchased on
31/12/2017
7 | TheFederal 125 55 500 1.9604 . ; 75,00,000 1.9604
Bank Limited
8 Khadeeja | - 25 16 500 1.9604 . - 75,00,000 1.9604
Zeenath
9 Shabira 55,30,284 1.445 . ; 55,30,284 1.445
Yusuffali
Amina
10 Mohamad Ali 50,27,532 1.314 - - 50,27,532 1.314
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at the Date wise increase/ Shareholding at the end of
sL. Name of the beginning of the year decrease in shareholding the year
No. | Shareholder(s) % of total % of total % of total
No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the | No of shares | shares of the
Company Company Company
1 Pinarayi ) i i ) i i
Vijayan
2 T.M. Thomas ) i i ) i i
Isaac
3 | V.S. Sunilkumar - - - - - -
4 Mathew T. ) i i ) i i
Thomas
V.J. Kurian 7,541 0.00197 - - 7,541 0.00197
C.V. Jacob 2,10,271 0.05496 - - 2,10,271 0.05496
Yusuffali M.A. | 3,72,31,779 9.7318 - - 3,72,31,779 9.7318
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V)

8 | N.V. George

4,57,78,415

11.965

30,00,000
shares sold on
10/07/2017

30,00,000
shares sold on
31/08/2017

78,000 shares
sold on
30/09/2017

76,214 shares
sold on
31/10/2017

1,66,000
shares sold on
30/11/2017

31,48,828
shares sold on
3111212017

48,000 shares
sold on
31/01/2018

43,000 shares
sold on
28/02/2018

48,000 shares
sold on
31/03/2018

(2.511)

3,61,70,373

9.4544

9 | E.M.Babu

34,94,134

0.9133

34,94,134

0.9133

10 | K. Roy Paul

11 | A K. Ramani

Sunil Chacko
12 | (Chief Financial
Officer)

Saji K. George
13 | (Company
Secretary)

INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Rupees in lakhs)

Secured Loans

Particulars excludi_ng Unl-sgg:;ed Deposits In de-tl)-z:zLess
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal amount 37,916.00 - - 37,916.00
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 310.11 - - 310.11
Total (i+ii+iii) 38,226.11 - - 38,226.11

34



24% Annual Report 2017-18

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Addition 12086.12 - - 12086.12

Reduction 310.11 - - 310.11

Net Change 11776.01 - - 11776.01

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal amount 50002.12 - - 50002.12

ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 - - 0.00

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 - - 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 50002.12 - - 50002.12

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(Amount in Rupees)

S| V.J. Kurian Total
' Particulars of Remuneration (DIN: 0001806859)
No. . . Amount
Managing Director
1 | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 35.59.800 | 35,59,800
Income Tax Act 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act 1961 3,16,000 | 3,16,000
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income Tax Act 1961 - -
2 | Stock Option - -
Sweat Equity - -
4 | Commission
- as % of profit - -
- others, specify... - -
5 | Others, Please specify (Provision for Gratuity) 3,10,745] 3,10,745
Total (A) 41,86,545 | 41,86,545

B. Remuneration to other directors

(Amount in Rupees)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Name of the Directors

Total Amount

1

Remuneration
. Sri. K. Roy Paul | Smt. A.K. Ramani

Independent Directors | o\ goa863801) | (DIN: 0007188269) -
Fee for attending Board 2,00,000 2,00,000 4,00,000
meetings

Fee for attending 2,50,000 1,00,000 3,50,000
Committee meetings

Commission -
Others, please specify -
Total (1) 4,50,000 3,00,000 7,50,000
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Other Non-Executive
Directors

Sri. Pinarayi
Vijayan
(DIN: 0001907262)

Dr.TM.
Thomas Isaac
(DIN: 0000507439)

Adv. V.S.
Sunilkumar
(DIN: 0007565293)

Adv. Mathew
T. Thomas
(DIN: 0001176734)

Fee for attending Board/
Committee Meetings

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B) = (1+2)

7,50,000

3

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Sri.Yusuffali M.A.
(DIN: 0000364677)

Sri. N.V. George
(DIN: 0000278319)

Sri. E.M. Babu
(DIN: 0000788889)

Sri. C.V. Jacob
(DIN: 0000030106)

Fee for attending Board
Meetings

1,50,000

2,00,000

50,000

4,00,000

Fee for attending
Committee Meetings

1,00,000

2,75,000

50,000

4,25,000

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (3)

2,50,000

4,75,000

1,00,000

8,25,000

Total (C) = (1+2+3) - - 15,75,000
Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD
(Amount in Rupees)

Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. . . Total
Particulars of Remuneration CS CFO
No. CEO Amount
Saji K.George | Sunil Chacko
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 28.89 211 2117.798 | 50.07 009
] Section 17(1) of the Income -Tax Act 1961 T Y Y
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
Income -Tax Act 1961 2,41,276 2,11,728 | 4,53,004
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of Income - Tax Act 1961
2 | Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - - -
Commission
4 |- as % of profit z : - -
- others, specify...
th I ify (Provision fi
5 Others, please SF.)eCIy( rovision for i 2.86.302 223642 | 500944
Leave and Gratuity)
Total (D) - 34,16,789 25,53,168 | 59,69,957
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Details of Penalty/ | Authority Appeal
Tvbe Section of the Brief Punishment/ [RD/ made,
yp Companies Act | Description Compounding NCLT/ if any (give
fees imposed Court] Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Date

: 28N June 2018

Place : Thiruvananthapuram
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Chairman

DIN: 0001907262
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Annexure D

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The following are the major energy conservation measures undertaken by your Company during the year
under review:

»

V V V VYV V V

Saved approximately 22,450 MT of CO, during the last financial year from solar initiatives.
East-West aligned solar panels with fixed and tracking facility undertaken as a part of R&D.
Energy efficient VRF AC system installed at various buildings in CIAL.

LED lights installed in Terminal Building and in Administrative and aligned buildings.

Energy efficient motors and VFD’s used for Terminal for Air Conditioning system.

LED lighting and energy efficient systems being installed in the new Domestic Terminal (T1).

Regular seminars and trainings imparted to staff and stakeholders on the importance of Energy
Conservation and Solar Energy. Training conducted on energy efficient motors and aligned
equipment’s by reputed firms.

Training classes conducted on Renewable Energy - Solar PV Systems for Schools, Colleges,
Research students, Teachers and Professors at CIAL Academy.

CIAL is committed to Energy Conservation methods by judicious utilization of energy within the
organization by design and practice. It also strives to maximize utilization of renewable energy
across the organization. Energy Conservation at CIAL aims to make this world a better place for next
generation.

Kerala State Pollution Control Board Award - CIAL was awarded ‘Excellence’ position in category of
“Others” for substantial and sustained efforts in pollution control and for initiatives in environment protection
in 2018. We have been winning this award consecutively for the last four years.

With the commissioning of 6 MWp Solar Canal Top PV Plant, the total installed capacity of Solar PV Plant
in CIAL is now 29.1 MWp. The Solar generation is more than 1,00,000 units per day.

During the period under review, CIAL has spent approximately Rs.35 lakhs towards capital expenditure
on energy conservation measures.

Power Consumption 2017-18 2016-17

1) Electricity
a) Units purchased in lakhs including solar power generations 408.23 273.98
b) Total amount (Rs. In lakhs) 3,088.34 2,107.91
c) Rate per unit (in Rs.) 7.58 7.69
d) Own generation through Diesel Generator (units in lakhs) 1.04 0.40
e) Units per litre of diesel oil (KWH/litre) 2.51 1.98
f) Cost per unit (in Rs.) 24.9 28.84

2) Coal - -

3) Furnace Oil - -

There are no activities relating to technology absorption in connection with operations of the Company.
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgoings (receipts and
payments in USD)

Foreign Exchange Earnings
Airport charges from foreign flights
Sales revenue from duty free shop
Royalty from ground handling
Royalty - Others
Others
Total
Expenditure in foreign currency
A) CIF value of Imports:
Capital Goods
Components & Spare parts
Import of Duty free goods
B) Management Fee
C) Others
Total

2017-18 2016-17
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
3.18 7.09
- 3546.44
4007.03 3323.42
1.09 9.10
4011.29 6886.05
1090.50 6903.05
- 50.00
- 665.86
- 28.82
262.75 17.63
1353.25 7665.36

Date : 28" June 2018
Place : Thiruvananthapuram
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sd/-
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Chairman
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Annexure E
Form AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of Companies Act 2013 including certain arms length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

S Particulars Details
No.
1 Name (s) of the related party Nil
2 Nature of relationship Nil
3 Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction Nil
4 Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions Nil
5 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any Nil
6 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Nil
7 Date of approval by Board Nil
8 Amount paid as advance, if any Nil
9 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General Meeting as required under first Nil
proviso to Section 188
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis
Nature Nature of contracts/ Duration of Salient terms of the contracts Date of Am.ount
Sl. | Name of the the contracts/ . paid as
of arrangements/ or arrangements or transaction | approval by
No. | related party . . . arrangements/ . . . advance,
relationship transaction . including the value, if any Board .
transactions if any
CIAL A reel;:;iﬁﬁr 9.06 30 Years For setting up of Solar PV
1 | Infrastructures | Subsidiary 9 . 01.01.2018 to carport system including civil | 27.11.2015 Nil
. acres of land dated e
Limited 31.12.2047 and structural works (Value : Nil)
on 01.01.2018
Air Kerala ROC filing fees, Payment made towards various
International Certification statutory filings with Registrar
2 . Subsidiary . N.A. of Companies and the Certifica- N.A. Nil
Services charges & Audit . . .
- tion charges in connection
Limited fees .
therewith
i R Royaly lease be G 45% of the sl revene
3 . Subsidiary | rentals and ROC N.A. ° 18.09.2017 Nil
Services filing fees and lease rentals shall be
Limited o ' Rs.10 per square feet.
Kerala ncarporatn
Waterways ex enpses and Pre and post incorporation
4 and Subsidiary Xp . N.A. expenses and investmentin | 16.12.2017 Nil
investment in .
Infrastructures . equity shares of the Company
. equity shares of
Limited
the Company
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Kochi Enterprise
International where This information forms part
5 Airort significant Miscellaneous N.A. of Companies Annual Financial N.A. Nil
. P influence Statements for the FY 2017-18.
Society (KIAS) .
exist
CIAL Taxi Enterprise
Operators’ where This information forms part of
6 | Co-operative | significant Miscellaneous N.A. Companies Annual Financial N.A. Nil
Society influence Statements for the FY 2017-18.
Limited exist
Enterprise
CIAL where This information forms part of
7 Charitable significant Miscellaneous N.A. Companies Annual Financial N.A. Nil
Trust influence Statements for the FY 2017-18.
exist
for and on behalf of the Board
sd/-
Pinarayi Vijayan
Date :28"June 2018 Chairman
Place : Thiruvananthapuram DIN: 0001907262
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Q)OO @RS)O® 2)AN) AUBUCOTTSe0 2021621 (UOGHE: HADGEWINOETOM UAdaINo  AOOEW)o
WalHe)MGIMSS 7-00 MMUB (AIGAWOo Ba0GC] OSAHE)ES @ROUV1E:EBTIMIVS Muadafleeymm).

W@ ag.od. oaenl BFlod @) @M HMITIW)OS mg‘))' WROBHSBMICOI, (AlOMm 0(3072‘76)0’(3)
QUBOBHEBO GRAIOIOS ENIMUBOESO D (AIGAQMTEY AlH0S]®HE80 MEInI0G00 @na).

Mo. 8

2013 ©MVAlgoeNId 27-0%0 GG HMITW)ES 19-00 AUOBHlE: HALGEVINABIGE (la] (VT af)o. af).
@)Manello® aflodlesaln) AlcwRIBIT B0} WROHSOIW] @RI AURMHUETIDES MQala))
OHOMBSS 60) (GO (AIEAWo @ROUEERUB aldMIBEIVIIS)ENE. Mlam #0001l 2018 eTVAIYoETLA
260 @1oyM@osM. (U0l aglo.af). @)Muaceilow allealesalm AlcwRINL@® WROHSE @RS 2018
OMValgoenid 27 MO@E @eY) ABHUEOTWES MIAlee)MTIMESs 1l8e3uUo 2018 22)6M8 2807 GalBM
WQOBHSAR0YOS BRINAT@E aldlemlaf). (O] aflo.af). @)Manellow &MIM! Mmoo 2013681 160-00
Qd)af) (000 WWOHS00W] MlwaleeMGEIMSs H0m)0 el @)HQOIW 60) Lo O)alW)o BO)
@Roo SMIMIWIGE MEdEISS) 6N,

(WO ago.af). @)TVanel©IE3 aFlM)o HMUMIWES @06Lal0OWAM GOELEUY RIEBe) &M, (i) BauUmImJ
(@RCaPWMEen8 & B:Iogladlcsnatd Boald WOOBESEMU) 0)08TY 2014 (aldd00 Gando DIR 2 @8 &Ml
WHS WROHS0W EIUAMo @RM)UCIHHIMBS MUEOA®Oo (ii) SMMITY (@RrEaPWEOnE & Hog]
adle86a:18 39al WDOBHESFIU) 0}68TT 2014 (ald000 Gando DIR 8 @3 &M mlao 2013681 Qldh)a] 164
Dalalidh)a] 2 (AlB000 @REGAOMOTIN @REWINY® HLinlleeeqslslal agm @rolwila)

@ROGTMIGY (IEBBRBIOS AUWOBESSI (VD af)o.af) )MVaNLlO® WOHSBROVYAS HOIEFAUMS (00
288 afledleseln) AlewRBHOTD GBMINIW)ES WLOEBSOIWS 2018 HTVAIYEENIG 27 RYOG3 GREM), (UdH
cO0Xe8 MHElee)MGIMESS 8-00 MMIB (aIEAo BIaOTIW)SAGEeS @RoUY BTN Muadafleeyam).

WO ago.ag). @)MVanell &Flod: 2Q0)e @O GMUTWIOS A WLOBSGRICED, (AWM BoeMEenng
QUEONBHEBO GRAIOYOS ENITUWEOESO D (AIGAQATTEY Alts0S]®HE80 MEInl0G00 @na).

&omo. 9

2013 OTMVAIYoENIB 27-00 GV HMUMW)OS 19-00 UGS O EWINEBEB (la] (101, MULAl. czRevem)lom
afledlesalln) AlCWRIBHOEm B0) WROGHSOOW] @R AUBHEOWES MIWEla)e®:0MR88 BO)
(GO (IGDWo  @RoUEBBUY mo«qgom’]@’]ggm‘é. Mleam  $oe0lW] 2018 Qmojgosmés 2607 ©@’o)M
@ma@d (0ol. mil.adl. eReemlom DD ANBHIE: HAIMELINDBTIGY HOIBSAHM (als00Mms8s alloalesain)
aflewnowl Wwoe:soow mlwelesssnzmens. (ol milall. ezesmilom &mMIM Mo 2013681 160-90
Qldhaf) (000 WWOHS00QS MaleeMTIMSS &Om)0 MHleHHal @)HWOW 60) Ao O)alW)o GO}
@RoMo BMIMIWIEY M@dBsIWIg)6ns.

Wol. cdlafl. ezesmflad amlm)o BMIMWES @OLaO@IIN GOELG:U8 LIEBe)E@)M0WS. (i) UMM
(@RCa P08 & H:Ioglabdlcsnat8 Boald WVOBESEMY) 0)08TU 2014 (aldd00 Gando DIR 2 @8 &M
WHS WROHS0W EIUAMo @RM)UCIHHIMSS MUEOA®Oo (ii) GMMITY (@RrEaPWEOnd & ®og]
adle86a18 390l WOBHESFIV) 0}03TT 2014 (ald000 Gando DIR 8 @3 &M mlao 2013681 Qldha] 164
Dalalidh)a] 2 (alB000 @REGAOMTIN @REWINY® »LinlleeeqisIslal agim @rolwila)

@RGIMOEd MEBRBYAOS WWOEESSM (0ol milall. eReemilom WOGSBRO0)OS HOIBSAHUM (00
88 alloalecail) Allewwaod)m GMIMIWIES OGS0V Malee)MEIMBS 9-0o0 MMUB (aIGAWo
B0a0ClW)SAHB)OS @R 1E:00@BIIMIWS MVaGA]lee)am).

Wol. mdladl. ez=eeem) adlod 2go0je @OM GMUNIWES AF WWOHSGRIEOI, (oM 2oeMEenng
QUBONBHEBO @RAIOYOS ENIMUBOESO D (AIGAQDTTY AlsIS]®HES0 MEInl0G00 @na.
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&Mo. 10
830Wlg &e0dlw)es U0} ldBUOBEM)TUGla] MLOMITTIE: (UGHo 2018-19 BG:02IW8ATERIBE EAETVFY enil.enil
ag)10. @RTE @REMLIMIIGYIU, EBHOPY @ROHVEMETZIY, aglOsTNIB)So (Firm Reg. No. 00273) ag)m aucoal
MOO® SHMIMWES EHOPY B0V AWOHSE GeNIOdS MIWAlEe)HW)o @RAIBBE MTBEHEMZ
(al@flanglo @RoUY1e:0lee) @0 ealdo).

2013021 &MUMl MWlao Alsa] 148, G218@ED) AOlessmz GMIMIWes (soullg @3 soslegFmy)
0)08TU 2014621 0)18 14 (k000 CHOTY BIUINBHS MTBEH:ENE (alGlaflo HMUMIWOS BAOBIW)SAS:UD
MILOIGI B0 1eEHMEMmOE. @RGIMOT3 Mo 103 MGIGIVITIEHNM (GO BIaNAIW)SABR)eS @rou)]
BHOOOBIMOIW] (0}a0BUD Sal@)M).

HNUTWOS WDOHSGRIEOI, (AlOM ROCMZEOATT USSOIBHESO, GRAIOYHS EUTWEHESO TUOMICTS
HROCWO @RJOOEWI DD (AICRWOTITD 08| HEs0 ©EInl0GO0 @ney.

cauo@a»’la(rg OBMOQ) (ald 000
0802l ABBMIauEM@B ag@ABealods eflalgavlm)catsns]

(8q])
ruoelo : HMSYMUOEYRE] el o8, 620022
@ : 20.08.2018 SHMIM HAV(HF0]
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WOHSBR00)6S 0lca|ods

(ol @RoneeRes,

HMUMWYOS DO}IOTTIMIRIAG) (UIGH]S: G16ajods)o 2018 @Ba] 3107 @AIMNVIMIa] MVIMUIET]E: UBUODD WM
00} (ATI@IUMBS)0 HEMIOHBJo WROHSORIB MVETMIaHa)Bjo MEEES16S B)MlE8 ERAIGEGA{leeaM).

(@t G0s11@3)

MLOIMIEI & aneleBRud 2017-18 2016-17

QOO QAUO)AOMo 5563.42 487.28
(aluB@EM afleinnsud (165.49) (188.62)
a1ellvo, cOWamo, MB)@1 agmlauITee) A)MNSS LI9Ro 387.93 298.66
((duB@O™M 2I19R0)

aleflvo (42.62) (3.55)
CGOWROMDBIM)o MG)@WEe)0 MM)SS £I0R0 345.31 295.11
COWRIMOBIOG allein)) s ud (103.60) (38.78)
me) @) m)M)88 £I0Ro 241.71 256.33
My afleiansud (83.29) (75.05)
M) @D E6) BLHMBS RI0BO 158.42 181.28
2Q) VARV AIE)AIMo (2.43) (1.84)
en0aImmy axlglealss 0oglw @RYIBOWo 155.99 179.44

HAMYM CAOAWIMOoo

OMBA Ganod aBaHty alMadls: agaflc@aud (CAPA) @ps)omles MsEI@ &0) 0leaods @pMMUG]a],
aBQQljo CAUN@BIEE AUSOYM CRNGEBIO! @6 aglc@atd allaleme:gl@8, 275 BUoRIG:H0 WIOEO IR0V
DO I@)o  2WBealS)M).  BFletm @ AUduaTINIswlcd  Damyeleal aggale EUNM@DIEE  AISOYM
QQAUMOWEBBSE1HRIOMOW] MAMIMB GAILOADOM QAIAITVOo AUSBIN) &E1EIm). 202503 @RYEUNIS GAULOAWOM
coalaled @)oo muoomemla) mamy, UKo aole:see)enm) @ramondat(s Galjon@om N@OIN® @RETV0
le@aud (IATA) @RENI0WOQIS)IM).

afleaue MEBUUITTIOM BB H)CO UBUEBSIW] CAILOAWIM CRILIV)OS USBae® ®ICIONGIWIRIEE).
Wlajodseand 39ad mmi(SIwed caldglmi]l @08 (aleadaded (DIPP) &:6ma@e)@ud (ald:000 2000 ag(ail@d
)@@ 2017 HTVAIQOMIB UHOW)SS H0LIWSANEE EALOAOIM N@IN® GREULIWIEGE 159 milejiend cawIslend
aflesromledtalo DEMEOWISIMNE. GOILOAWIM  6R6UAIRNE I MIedHalo @RAVY@EMo  H21YMM@)IS]
Mm226S RO Afl20M W HOYOS affiRo AUBRUIaoB0eM2WI0lee0. MRl GAlOAWOM V@IN®O
0022160 AflemoBMEUICIBSEd DEajouwd afomlwisieaisla)o, 0o ®)00] (106RUTE: &ma?s?ng’lmﬂ(oﬁ
DM@ MEIS:] alBlaN@]240G3 @R GAILOAWOIM ARG WM MO AUBRLMAT D6N3IBOM)0 MVOWIE)o.

ladUB@OM Qiltodeimo

a.  qVIMIEDE @RAIGRIIE:Mo
@RAICAINGM &HIAIWS8Aled MEBB8)OS & UM ag)2jo Mu(alwom coelRIG:S]aNno (altdomuMIWaoW
QU8B ©6HAI0a]). 31.03.20180) @RQUTVIM]a] MVOMUIODH AUBUODD ORI QUOYAIMo 553.41 GHOS]
0}, D@ HFIOD  CVOMUCTT  AUBUECODHOIB 13.57% USG2WOEN  GOELIOQIS)ODIAME).
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SMIMYOS 2016-17 MVOMIBH B AUBHDDTOL! (AIAIBEMM 1080 298.66 GIS] ©)IGd MIM) 29.89%
U8R 2JEWINS 387.93 GH0S] )al OGO ]]). af)M0IMORN0, M@ EE GUDAUNBS £I10RO 181.28 G 0S]
0)al@d (romIEmd UBaHo 2016-17) MM 158.42 @»0S] ©)al@O@] (MVOMUEDE UBaHo 2017-18)
0D al)@lQ ERMD0IHS 6sdalmelend (aldommonoco (Yl DMz ABRVI® cOWRIMAlo
U alW)S alellto®)o RI0B MaHS BeMENGEIT AlBlNEM]aj@)6E>06rBo6M.

allaom W@IN®o, WIOEHIVYOS af)eRo, alos) Meeo

MHADYM  GAULOAWOM  GALIYINS O 96MAA DUBOEHINOB:IMNE 0]l @RAMIOIaH(S
Al@aoMEMOQI80 E&F1ETm MUOMICD]E AUBMHUOHIGE BO) BHIS] WI@MEHIB af)M TVIAIM MVOANAIEIGS
af) 0 D086 BN, OV @RAVIRIR M)aN)B@Mo 2018 MIBa] 28M OaleeM]E3 MIM)88 ABWIE®NI
afll@omo (6E 563) 9aj@e) 12.20M ©S@AIMN@-208 af)OBIWE]o9I6M.

2017-18 LOMUOW ] UG o @R@IM) MM AIBauA)o MEBB1OS afABEGANASENasSW)8s Allmom
N@IN®o, WIOEHIOYIOS af)sNo, alode) MBeo agMIAUW)ES AlUdEICUIEERUE IO GalBHe)yM).

aflaom nwmon®o (og)smcom'lm'%)

allmomessg)es mleso
dato @RODIOIHU(S @REY MO OAO B0
adqylav) v Ayl
2017-18 32,947 36,718 69,665
2016-17 31,691 31,136 62,827
AWM/ (#)0al) agemaoilcd 1,256 5,582 6,838
aUdWm/ (@)0al) vomaomomlcd 3.96% 17.93% 10.88%
WO B6I0)6S M0 (og)sggwm’]m%)
IO HOIOY}OS 6RO
QB aHo @ROMIVIM(S @RI O 602 @™o
WO HRIG (WO HRIG
2017-18 52,29,306 48,89,758 [ 1,01,19,064
2016-17 49,98,284 39,42,914 89,41,198
aUdWm/ (&y0al) agemarsild 2,31,022 9,46,844 11,77,866
UBWm/ (&)0al) E2IMEMITI 4.62% 24.01% 13.17%

21096} Mls60 (ea(sle semlod)

B aso @RMMOOIM(S 21066) MIB60 @RRYINO 21086) MIe60
D0 He) O] SO QAo 622 @™o 116> @2 @ @PW 2| @ 620 @O
2017-18 6,068 62,794 68,862 9,765 3,658 13,423
2016-17 7,239 64,011 71,250 9,867 3,291 13,158
adwm/ (yoal) eaS)s: seyled (2,388) 265
adwm/ (eyoal) vo@aomomled (3.35%) 2.01%

@RDOO0H(S alode) Moo GFlos: @O MV)(AIWOM (alBEDM casnlelkgleno @M G
GOOHENHU NEM MW QAISB2 Mo OB:G 2@ Mgl M@B1WIBlee)aM aflaloeeBgled mlan)o
M6BBUBHE) B:06MOMB @FIW)0.
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c. enealfladlmo

2018 @0@a] 31M88 MLOWIEEM BAOCIBEOS @RSAT @MeyEBIOM 25% 19la0lEaV] Boand]
W)SABUBHE MTBBEMORM cenUoB) MBERUTleeMM). HMUMIW)eS ERASIEHUBMS Boad @rREMOMU]
CWaHMIORl (AINVE®ROWY  AIAIMABHUWBEN)0 UIBHH  Hald®EWINEDOM @00 1B:00EWIM)o
aflewnowlsowoleso o@). 2017-18 AUBu@mIoal 2100 £10EANOIOMIE:)@IW)o WLN(G:00
95,64,36,873 ©)al®)o 19,65,97,512 ©)al®)o @] MI1H6] AUDEH0M WOHS@ @enod v0)alodwd
0210@15)6NE. 2010-11 MLOMUOH QIBatto MO L@AUOEW)o 2196 Afllabl®o eeMm:aglwlSIelED
@roneEBg)es  aflieesud  HMIMIWes  eaneemugled  (www.cial.aero) (almaledlaflg)ens.
oMNeOMYICE 988 BO®E:1R10 AUGUHOTD 210EAN0I® AI00NE)BUD AleMROW BOYIGD @RoUIEBRUY
@eal smImlees  oFlequal  82a01Mled  B:001001Wl  al)@E6]  M@HM@IEMO  @RELIE:1TD
@PAIY®H) ald0200] a)@@al 2. @E)MEIEMI EAME] @RGAIGYH Muadafleasmenm @oeydadl
06aM). HMIM Mlao 2013-61 Ald)a] 124(5) Qo Ald)a] 125(2) Qo (alHH000 aGe@®Bs1R)0 TVIMIGTE S,
UBae®®  2108ANa0IMo, @@ (alflidalle] ®1Q®] 2O@ 7 UBHGBBUBEN)GUIAHO  @ROUVIEBBUD
al)@emaoW)o 66Ha|J1WIS100)E:13 @Y @) GHMB MVABBHICONM MeEHalsd lBJOLIMY TVOOBHEM
MWIERIEs HOHA0YM B:00 0 @RONEEBEIOS (AIE® & (LORLWIT3OAS)TTMYMN). 2010-11 TVIMIGTT|E>
AUBHOOD  ©6Ba]Q0O®  L1EAIa0IMo EHIMB MBESHIBIONE MIEEHald: AllBJoI0IV  TVOOBGHEM
mlwlelealss oD aldado 20QYM@IEN). MlEEHals All3yEL0MVo Modd:uem MIWWIERISs 66B:A0Q0
£2IQOMd MOWIOWIBS®)0 DOAUOHOW)0 HOEHAJIWISILOD®)200 210EAla0IMEERES MVoMIMWIay
aflkoB200EBRUE BMIMIW)eS AoBaHlE: Hald@)eIn eMmaglmiles saigleals)omlwls)ens.

SHMIMW)HS OV AUBRHOO® (allOM MVoMoREBS)AHS @RAIGRIIMo

mamaljeo cmuymudleao afleial $1oaTm®AIW Aflle:rum @mAIeM VOGS allmMSO}M®@). af)@ACI03S
SDemaUled eaddmoaremefleas (ACI) 2017 ag@adealods mudaflmy :10g1d] (ASQ) mudeq) @rMMUEla] 5 2)@@3
15 GUDRIGHO WI(OBOIVYOS MO aGQ)o &ldha] DYMIRODD afABCAIIRS @R MIIWIEE. @SB WOV
©6N200 MAUM®OEN EMIM] DD BMF0 HOBHAUGIH)MN®. B0} TVOMUDDE AUBRHUOIGD 10 BUORIGHO WIOHHIR
af)M @OQI) (VY(AIWIM EMFA)o HOHAIC ]IS NS,

2018 60 260 Oaf)BI00H(S MBWIONS E@REMI8 aldlmudl®] cawoallwyo, UNEP @)es afaaulsy)slal
WROBHS0YROW af)0ldh ETVIG3a0lo afWBEIORSONE MVDEEIBBER oM )B0d MUMBAWTley 000 M6EBREOS
WOBHSBRIB  MEMIata)dqjo  @ROIWIBe)M).  AlAdMEDIUSETOM  TVBARUVHOYOS Al TVO GOTHG3
QSO0 (AlG2l0BMAIY 60) @PEIAIIWo @RGGaN0 GORIOAISOTHE) al)NOIGAIEIME HalQIN@IN) MEERUdLE)
@PE@oMmMm)6eNs.

“al)@emaow)o MDEEIRRROMIGE (AIUBEWLO)MM CRIIGEIOL @REIHED AladMEMIUSAIW
8&0afl allaomomoaige MUMBAWla @@ eMIM Wdhajio al@aloGlMO6M.
m6EBU3 2101(@O2L)®IMY; 288G @R® allam)se)o.”

60®304]l AUROMODIUSo GRIIGEWIOL! @YBLOE™® MVDEEIBLROEMIG (alUBEEn)M AlAoMOEmOI8o gy
806BL0WBHA0W] (Al6}0allea)M@IMBS Hag)d: 00aH(S MIBWAS @IGIIOL0, af)d:i00aH(S MBWIOS GRHENIS
alclmuole) cawoallw)o, UNEP @)6s af)daule)slal an@oa:soino® ag)ols emuocdadlo @oolwlaflg)ens.

@RAIGRING:M AUBHOTIGE HMUMIWOS (AIWIM MVoOOREBRUZ @OOP HHOS)H)MM).

1. mlealenss epejmmo 6sdalned 6@slsemland al)mo)ELICEMo
2017 a@ladl@d 180) (aIUUB@MMA000Ee] al@® @RAMO0HS asdalmallm) (T3) Guato B30 @O
2o H8Woe® mlalnilenss @ERIMmO 6©sSRIMalend a)MOIRLIEEM  (AlIBEMMEERUB  EMIM]
@RO0EIENHWI0 AlGlMIRIGD]GRITE af)@TD16Ee6NEID]E6)EHQIREM. al)NOYRLEIE)MN @RELTDO
esdalmeilon allmio’1depo DEajo8s 1 eld¥o 2l®OWd @RSIVIE8 MM 6 eldto al®)OD
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@esl@ow]  adavlaflaflgiens.  anoes]  alemlym  @reyme  esdalmelled  (aludemmo 2018
©MaigoenIOIEd al)BEBNWOB:)OAM (Al®1&HUHH}aM). 56 Hald6) DY HOEMEOYEHUB, 11 BNQLHUB, 7 ABGOO
(enflzR) &8 ©)568510 MoalwImEEBUd aggaio @lECHHOIL MAWEEBEIEE QOO 2000 WA HHIOO
0OHHO0L0 62118 BY¥lW)EAM®)o HSBAIMENHM (AICOIBHOBHSEM. B)SO®, CH(BIBI® g@A
HNTlattMlo) MUIQYo, 4 aMISHERIQB, 8 agRIcrEQPay, aggaljo L@ caudaflot), F&B agolw,
700 MNQl:H6M & om0, 1300 A3 HAVABTVA aNWA a»’lgtﬁ‘;sog(ﬁ:(f&, 100% LED @eelg]ou‘)’ avlqyo,
MIOCNIEE ©OB:EH00L0 H2IQIMBS BRHWIMB MVDB:OL0 af)MIIW)o DENBIB:)0. BRSO 20 AUBGHUOBIO
Al2oMmI@WEs GUME] O)aldElalM 621PGISI8S®IEM Al)MOIELOIE)MM BR)ERIMMO HSBHMTR.

40 HRNINIG CLOHIW)88 MDEEIRBR glonflend mundalmo

MLOMUED® UBaHo 2017-18 &HORIWSBAGE ©B0afl GRAMOIVIaH(S ANAIMEMOUSEMIGY 29.10 HAMI
05 cLOHIW)IBS MUDEEIdZR OB oloMB®u8 milwoellem Daldauml ¢l muadaila)).
TVDEOIRLROMIGE Ao (AIAUBMWHH)AMN CRIOG@WM ORI @RYBLOHM®M AIAIMBMINUS0 af)aN GREIAIM
HO20® MudMo MaIMBE®OM8 HMIMIWes MoWla)). MOtREO20® TVDEEIBZER oond)®&1e3,
2.7 QM0 Q05 GUOaHW)BBM)0 130003 D0 BI0)EBHUBHS Al0BEH ©21QIM MOWIEe)aM MVDCORLER
aldMan®HEB0S)d)S1  CaEHe0 MuNdalle] aBIWIORl agQalo QeN®)o ced:oleal allaom
O0oU86BRSIT EMBoA00® AAlWw @08GaI0BS af)M (aldMIGIW)o EMSINY EBFIETM). &)ISIO,
Ageo  afleln)) &)OTO®)0  AfLIBANRI®  MUIAME  CHOTMBIBTY @MBUD  Dalc@ouilajoen)
all2omEmOAUSEOM O®Ee)CINOMBS HMoelleond m)6s1ed o6ns Hleana’lod MIsemIcd 6 eawo
Q05 CUOAHIW)BS MUDVEOIRZER O &UB MuNJallaj@oen) MEBBREYOS HMUMWIOS AOQI) (AIWIM
mUMEEIdER muonilwomo. MEBBEIOS BMIM] anflalBnI® G)AIMIEINEINT (al0WOMyo MTEIS;]
1906}  alSleTmo00W] ElKonoQoMd CUOHIIBSS TVDEOIRZER AldMEN®Ud (udalla] alo@0IW]
9DBe2R0eInI0BMo  LIElEOMTIMSS  NEAAHEM  alBLGIHU8  aBeQS)Om)  &Flem). Aol
@RER MO 6SARIMaNeN (alIB@mMo @REoE1EHMTIMEUIUMBS HOAUBJOG] DaleWONO &HEMES]
HRIS)OTD a)BENEOW)o MVDEOIRRROBTITE  (AIAUIBEWIEe)IM  AlladME®IASo gl  aldall mlel
M10)@®M@NM EAeNEl 2018 HAVAIQoNIB AITVEEDIOS TVDEOIBZER JoBleg GudaH] 40 HAMONINS
@YW 2WATHIMBS MSalSld:UB af)S)EmIg)6NE.

CHIUSOo A)M@ HOMVBEH:IS AUOHOWIBS OUBMISM Relald® all&IVMEBIaNSS al®:ogSlomo
GHOS0 M@ GENUSHOE UOOWIBS NMIN@EWIN AW REIald® Qld:aTVMo GHO8 TVBHHIA
(aleyoailaflg)ens. @lom @RByeaISo 202068 al)AEBTIWIH)IN@OEM. O@ MoMINIMEHON] 10
Zlaeeled 9B8MIsSM ReIN®IN®o snWlafleeomo @@l S)0lMve canleIdes AIm 9emaa]
M@3))M@IM)o MDA 0. D@IMOW] BHO8 TMVBBHOIO)o MEBBBIOS HMIMIW)0 MoW)EMAIW
§0) MUoalady@ ala]mV 6a0le6)d @MIV] ©)alle:dlaflg)ens. MoMOIMeE® OV 9UBMISM
REINOINO® ald® CHOSODNSMIBo QUM MIMICTS: H)@la] QNRILYEAM  (al®1&:HlBe)}aM).
GHOSOMOR  @OOMEGAIEM  @RANGBMII®m  (AlGBUIEBEIE  GaldRljo  (MVoMAIM  SYOITVET @S
U860 Wdo AUBRLMAT ONRIGIEAM)0 (al®1eH]lee)amn).

@RAIIBW)BHB)o @Ro1HO0EBRS)0
2017-18 MLOMUEM & AUBHEMITE MEBRSBYOS BMIMIE c3UTW - ERMMAERUDIY GRIGMITY WIS @RAIOBMW)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Cochin International Airport
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
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evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 315 March 2018 and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters:
We draw attention to the following disclosed as contingent liability in the Notes to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements:

Note 4.42.1 to the financial statements regarding service tax demands / show-cause notices amounting to
%12,735.44 lakhs, disputed income tax liability amounting to ¥ 8577.66 lakhs, setoff of MAT credit against
the current year tax provision, pending disposal of dispute regarding the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of
the Income tax Act in tax assessments amounting to ¥ 9480.97 lakhs, claims from contractors for capital
jobs amounting to ¥ 4113.84 lakhs, the demand for One Time Building Tax of new International Terminal
amounting to ¥ 200.39 lakhs and the demand for Annual building tax amounting to ¥ 112.24 lakhs, which
is not acknowledged as debt by the Company. The ultimate outcome of the above claims cannot be
determined at this stage.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 315t March 2018 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31t March
2018 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“‘Annexure B”; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 4.13.2, 4.13.3, 4.42 and 4.54 to the
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 4.55 to the financial statements.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures requirements relating to holding as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 08" November 2016 to 30" December 2016 which are not
relevant to these Standalone financial statements, hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan

Place : Kochi-16 Partner
Date :28.06.2018 (M.No: 201484)
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Vi)

vii)

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

b) We are informed that these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note
No.4.2 on plant, property and equipments, to the financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company.

We are informed that physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act 2013. Accordingly, paragraphs (iii) (a) (b) and (c) of CARO 2016 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, as applicable. The company has not provided any guarantees and
securities to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public during the year as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the
Rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company, pursuant to the Rules
prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, related to aeronautical services, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service tax, Customs Duty,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
authorities during the year. There are no arrears of outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at
the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax or Sales Tax or Wealth Tax or
Service Tax or Goods and Service Tax, duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or
cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 31t March 2018, except

for income tax and service tax dues, the particulars of the same are as given below:

Name of the
Statute

Nature of Dues

Amount (Rupees)

Period to
which it
relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

Finance Act 1994 —
Service Tax

Service Tax, Interest
and Penalty

% 1546.33 (Net of
% 36.77 lakhs paid
under protest)

2002-03 to
2008-09

Customs, Excise &
Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Finance Act 1994 —
Service Tax

Service Tax, Interest
and Penalty

% 144.95 lakhs (Net
of ¥ 0.83 lakhs
paid under protest)

2002-03 to
2012-13

Commissioner of
Central Excise &
Customs (Appeals)

Finance Act 1994 —
Service Tax

Service Tax, Interest
and Penalty

% 1413.85 lakhs
(Net of % 65 lakhs
paid under protest)

2004-05 to
2006-07

Supreme Court

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax and
Interest

% 267.60 lakhs
(Net of T 260 lakhs
paid under protest)

2007-08
(AY 2008-09)

Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Cochin Bench

Income Tax Act

Income Tax and

NIL (Net of
% 189.90 lakhs

2008-09

Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,

1961 Interest paid under protest) (AY 2009-10) Cochin Bench
Income Tax Act Income Tax and % 19.23 lakhs 2010-11 (AY Commissioner of

1961 Interest ' 2011-12) Income Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act Income Tax and % 10.87 lakhs 2010-11 Commissioner of

1961

Interest

(AY 2011-12)

Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax and
Interest

¥ 3063.68 lakhs

2012-13
(AY 2013-14)

Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act
1961

Penalty

< 1.50 lakhs

2012-13
(AY 2013-14)

Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax and
Interest

¥ 3514.28 lakhs

2012-13
(AY 2013-14)

Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax and
Interest

% 1028.82 lakhs
(Net of % 221.78
lakhs)

2014-15
(AY 2015-16)

Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

viii) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the bank. The company has not obtained any loans from
financial institution, government and debenture holders.
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ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the term loan availed by the

Xi)

Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

Company, have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. The Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer and further public offer (including debt instruments).

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the CARO 2016 order is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with them,
and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable..

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-
CA. K.T. Mohanan

Place : Kochi-16 Partner
Date :28.06.2018 (M.No: 201484)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cochin International Airport Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31t March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and Directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31t March 2018, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan

Place : Kochi-16 Partner
Date :28.06.2018 (M.No: 201484)
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PART | : BALANCE SHEET

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2018

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note No: 31+ March 2018 314 March 2017
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
a. Property, plant and equipment 4.1 168535.67 161688.12
b. Capital work in progress 4.2 9617.30 3549.12
c. Intangible assets 4.2 206.99 332.28
d. Intangible assets under development 0.00 0.00
e. Financial assets
(i) Investments 4.3 23139.75 23132.75
(ii) Other Financial Assets 4.4 435.56 0.00
f. Income tax assets (net) 4.5 4211.58 3369.55
g. Other non-current assets 4.6 1620.85 3270.63
Current Assets
a. Inventories 4.7 436.08 439.02
b. Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 4.8 14230.64 9265.50
(ii) Cash & Cash equivalents 4.9 323.54 140.91
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) 4.10 26188.47 16159.27
(iv) Loans 411 12.62 0.00
(v) Other financial assets 412 340.90 308.39
c. Other current assets 413 2519.73 3302.13
Total Assets 251819.68 224957.67
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 414 38257.47 38257.47
b. Other Equity 415 94676.84 90588.77
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 4.16 43785.00 36968.10
(i) Other financial liabilities 417 4696.52 2793.89
b. Provisions 418 1831.58 1731.78
c. Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 419 7272.93 4634.92
d. Other non current liabilities 4.20 17953.89 19121.36
Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 4.21 121712 0.00
(ii) Trade Payables 4.22 1673.24 1346.90
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4.23 16779.29 17102.76
b. Other current liabilities 4.24 23011.27 11369.43
c. Provisions 4.25 664.53 297.64
d. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 0.00 744 .64
Total Equity and Liabilities 251819.68 224957.67

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

V.J. Kurian
Managing Director
(DIN:0001806859)

sd/-

Sunil Chacko
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018

sd/-

C.V. Jacob
Director
(DIN:0000030106)

sd/-
Saji K. George
Company Secretary
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Part Il : STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2018

(Rupees in lakhs)

. Note For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars No: 31% March 2018 | 31% March 2017
Income:
| Revenue from Operations 4.26 54059.88 47363.32
Il | Other Income 4.27 1281.85 1364.32
] Total Income 55341.73 48727.65
IV | Expenses:
Purchase of Stock in Trade 0.00 1266.30
Change in Inventories of stock in trade 4.28 0.00 3154.19
Employee Benefits Expenses 4.29 5758.45 5291.24
Finance Costs 4.30 4261.79 354.94
Depreciation and amortisaton expenses 4.31 10359.78 3878.45
Other Expenses 4.32 10790.68 9150.56
Total Expenses 31170.70 23095.68
\' Profit before exceptional items and tax 24171.04 25631.96
VI | Exceptional items 4.33 728.69 0.00
VIl | Profit before tax 23442.35 25631.96
VIII | Tax expense:
a. i) Current tax 5786.46 6937.76
ii) MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note.4.53) (881.85) (1437.39)
iii) Tax expenses of earlier years (70.96) 0.00
b. Deferred tax 2766.45 2003.12
7600.10 7503.49
IX | Profit for the period from continuing operations 23442.35 24060.96
X | Tax expense of continued operations 7600.10 6959.80
XI | Profit after tax from continuing operations 15842.25 17101.16
XIl | Profit for the period from discontinuing operations 0.00 1571.00
Xlll | Tax expense of discontinuing operations 0.00 543.69
XIV | Profit after tax from discontinuing operations 0.00 1027.31
XV Profit for the year 15842.25 18128.47
XVI | Other comprehensive income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4.34 (371.13) (281.21)
(Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans)
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 128.44 97.32
to profit or loss
XVII | Total comprehensive income for the period 15599.55 17944.58
(Profit/ Loss + Other Comprehensive Income)
XVIII | Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 4.36
a) Basic 4.14 4.47
b) Diluted 4.14 4.47
XIX | Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations)
a) Basic 0.00 0.27
b) Diluted 0.00 0.27

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)

sdl- sd/-
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018

As per our separate report of even date attached
For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan
Partner

(M.No: 201484)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2018

A Equity Share Capital

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Notes | Amount S’:;:r:sf Eqa::‘s’)

Balance at April 1, 2016 38257.47 3825.75

Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance at March 31, 2017 414 38257.47 3825.75

Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance at March 31, 2018 38257.47 3825.75

B Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus Other
Particulars Capital SPeerIJT::Ll;s General Retained %:r:sﬁ;i- Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves | Earnings Income

Balance as on 01.04.2016 30605.98 | 6384.60 | 46013.93 83004.51

(A) Profits for the year 18128.47 18128.47
B) Other comprehensive income

e for the yeaE net of tax (183.89) (183.89)

(C) Transfer to retained earnings 0.00

(D) Dividend paid (including tax) (10360.33) (10360.33)

Balance as on 31.03.2017 30605.98 | 6384.60 | 53598.18 90588.77

(A) Profits for the year 15842.25 15842.25
(B) Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax (242.69) (242.69)

(C) Transfer to retained earnings 0.00

(D) Dividend paid (including tax) (11511.48) (11511.48)

Balance as on 31.03.2018 0.00 | 30605.98 | 6384.60| 57686.26 0.00 | 94676.84

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

V.J. Kurian
Managing Director
(DIN:0001806859)

sd/-

Sunil Chacko
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018

sd/-

C.V. Jacob
Director
(DIN:0000030106)

sd/-

Saji K. George
Company Secretary
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sd/-
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2018

(Amount - Rupees in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2018 31st March 2017
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit for the year 15842.25 18128.47
Adjustments for :
Tax Expenses 7471.66 7406.17
Depreciation 10359.78 3878.45
Fixed assets written off 148.07 -
Loss / (Profit) on sale of fixed assets (Net) (1.02) (11.46)
rFeaégg/r?iI:eedCisguognhF;n;nl_mal Instruments (276.47) (125.58)
Unwinding of discount 276.47 125.58
Deferred government grant (230.80) (231.34)
Re-measurements of defined benefit Plans (242.69) (183.89)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss / (Gain) (0.67) (300.10)
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances 104.15 191.14
Interest Income (857.51) (796.76)
Dividend Income (2.09) (4.01)
Interest and Finance Charges 3985.32 229.36
sub-total 20734.21 10177.57
Operating Profit before working capital changes 36576.45 28306.04
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 2.94 2998.11
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (5069.29) (2463.60)
(Increase) / Decrease in Repayments and
Other Receivables 199.61 (1929.34)
gfr::fi?a{)i(“[t’izgease) in Trade Payable / 17167.40| 1230066 1038.67| (356.16)
Cash Generated from Operations 48877 .11 27949.87
Direct Tax (payments) / refunds (Net) (6420.33) (4986.69)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 42456.79 22963.18
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets including capital
work in progress / advances (25437.68) (47396.19)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2.18 259.56
Interest Received 955.83 751.46
Dividend Received 2.09 4.01
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Investment in Mutual Funds / State
Government treasury deposits - 7000.00
Investment in Shares of subsidiary companies (7.00) -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (24484.57) (39381.16)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital including
securities premium - -
Interest Paid (4295.43) (39.23)
Increase / (Decrease) of Term Loan 6816.90 2211210
Dividend paid including dividend tax (11499.65) (10343.80)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (8978.18) 11729.07
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8994.03 (4688.91)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 16300.19 20689.00
Effect of Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain /
(Loss) on cash and cash equivalents 0.67 300.10
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25294.90 16300.19
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per above
comprises of the following
Cash and cash Equivalents (Refer Note: 4.9 26512.01 16300.19
and 4.10)
Bank Overdrafts (Refer Note: 4.21) (1217.12) -
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 25294.90 16300.19
Note: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year includes Rs.153.46 lakhs (Rs.141.63 lakhs) deposited in unpaid
dividend account which is earmarked for payment of dividend and Rs.18083.27 lakhs (Rs 9150.16 lakhs) held in
fiduciary capacity for meeting security related expenses at the airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation and cannot be used for any other purpose.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)
sd/- sd/-

Sunil Chacko

Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2018

1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Cochin International Airport Limited (referred to as “CIAL” or “the Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is Room No 35, 4™ Floor,
GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Kochi-682 031 and the principal place of business is
located in Nedumbassery, Kochi-683 111.

The Company is engaged in the Airport and Allied operations. The Company is mainly engaged in
constructing, developing, setting up, commissioning, operating, managing and maintaining an Airport
of International standards with all modern facilities for domestic and International flight operations
and all other related activities such as Cargo operation and incidental and ancillary activities to the
above.

Aero Revenues of the Company are regulated by Airport Economic Regulatory Authority of India
(AERA) established under an Act of Parliament under Airport Economic Regulation Act 2008.
According, as per AERA (Terms and Conditions of Determination of Tariff for Airport Operators)
Guidelines 2011 dated 22.02.2011, the company is required to get the Aero Tariff determined by
AERA for each control period.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 28" June
2018.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

Basis of Preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The separate financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:

1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.
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2.2

23

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2,
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(iii) Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

(iv) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

Uses of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company’s defined benefit
obligation

(i)  Useful live of Property plant and equipment
(i) Estimated useful life of intangible assets
(iv) Allowance for doubtful debts

(v) Contingencies and commitment

(vi) Impairment of investments

Property, plant and equipment

On adoption of Ind AS, the Company retained the carrying value for all of its property, plant and
equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured
as per the previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as permitted by Ind AS 101 ‘First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.

PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including
non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts and rebates. The cost of PPE includes
interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation (other than freehold land, which are stated at cost) and impairment losses, if any.
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“Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress) less their residual values over the useful lives using the straight-line method
(“SLM”). Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment, other than Expenditure incurred on Golf
Course Development, has been provided on Straight Line Method (SLM), by adopting the useful lives
prescribed as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 or technically estimated useful
lives and retaining 5% of the original cost as residual value. Each component of an item of PPE with
a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately under
Component accounting. The useful lives of the significant component of the asset are estimated by
the technical evaluation of the expert committee. The useful life of the assets are as follows-

No. Type / Category of asset Useful life
1. | Building-Civil, Earth, Pile, Masonry, Concrete, Steel, RCC works 60 years
2. | Building- False ceiling, handrails, facade works 20 years
3. | Building- Interiors, flooring, roofing, plumbing, finishing 15 years

Elevators, Escalators, VDGS, travelators, BHS, Aerobridges, Aircraft recovery
4, . 15 years
equipments
Electrical installations, DG sets, transformers, Sign boards, Fire fighting
5. 5-10 years
systems,UPS
6. | HVAC systems 4-15 years
7. | Light Fittings 5 years
8. | Apron, Approach road bridge, railway overbridge 30 years
9. | Roads, flexible pavements 10 years

10. | Flexible pavements 5 years

11 [ CUPPS, CUSS, Networking, BRS 5 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the
amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in financial statements.
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Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development
Capital work-in-progress/intangible assets under development are carried at cost, comprising direct
cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at its
cost, which shall include transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16’s requirements for cost model, i.e., at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. An investment property is de-recognised upon
disposal or when the investment property permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period which the property is de-recognised. As such the company is
not having any property to be classified as investment property as on 31.03.2018.

Intangible assets

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line over their estimated useful life of 5 years. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Financial instruments

i) Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets

a Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
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terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified
as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income based on its business model.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

d Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the financial statements, as per Ind AS 27.

e Impairment of financial assets

Trade Receivables

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of
financial asset is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit loss to be measured through a loss
allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables that
do not constitute a financing transaction. Impairment loss allowance is based on a simplified
approach as permitted by Ind AS 109. As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix
to determine the impairment loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables.

f De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is
de-recognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

The Company de-recognizes Financial liabilities only when Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. A substantial modification of the terms an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
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only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale
is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale and an active programme to locate
a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of stores, spares and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value. However, stores and spare items held for use in providing the services are not written down
below cost if the services are expected to be provided at or above cost. Cost of inventories comprises
of purchase cost and cost of procurement net of on a weighted average basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. These are reviewed at each separate balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the correct management estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will not be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent Assets are disclosed in the accounts, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Rendering of services

Revenue from airport operations are recognised on accrual basis, net of service tax, applicable
discounts and collection charges, when services are rendered and it is probable that an economic
benefit will be received, which can be quantified reliably. Aero operations include landing and
parking of aircraft, royalty on fuel supply, operation and maintenance of passenger boarding, cargo
operations and other allied services.

Income from life membership fees of the golf course is recognised over a period of forty years in
respect of individual members, being the estimated period of the membership and on the actual
period of membership of ten years in respect of corporate members.

Other incomes are recognised on accrual basis except when there are significant uncertainties.
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Royalties

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably). Royalty arrangements that are based on production,
sales and other measures are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable except the interest income received from customers for delayed
payments which is accounted on the basis of reasonable certainty/realisation.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset.

Rental income

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other-leases are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants
related to income are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the separate balance sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related
service.
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Defined Contribution Plans

The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan for
employees. The contributions paid/payable under the scheme during the year are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Defined Benefit Plans

Defined benefit plan covers the obligation of the company towards the gratuity benefits. For defined
benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately - with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
Defined benefit costs categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

- net interest expense or income; and

- remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the line ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted
as past service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the separate balance sheet
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation limited to the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset
ceiling.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The Company has a policy on compensated absence which are both accumulating and non-
accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absence is determined
by Actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using
projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result
of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absence is recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Long Term Employee Benefits is categorised as follows:
- Service Cost
- Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
- Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)
The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit

and Loss in the line ‘Employee benefits expense’. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
(asset) is charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income.
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part
of cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expenditure for the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ().

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. As at the reporting date, foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date and the exchange gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.

Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’)
The Company has opted to charge its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure to the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Exceptional Items

Incomes/Expenses which are not forming part of regular operations and are material and are in
accordance with Paras 85, 86, 97 and 98 of Ind AS 1 are classified as Exceptional Items. Such
items are disclosed as separate line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset
or liability during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current Income tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively, at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial
statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related
deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognised,
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable / no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is
written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s earnings per share comprise of the net profit
after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in
computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
deriving the basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of shares, of any
shares, which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dividend to Equity shareholders

Dividend to Equity shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from shareholders
equity in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general
meeting
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for
the effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standards issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2018 has notified the following new amendments to Ind AS which the Company has not
applied as they are effective subsequent years as mentioned below:

Ind AS 21: The effect of change in foreign exchange rates (applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after 01.04.2018)

Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with customers (applicable for annual periods beginning on or
after 01.04.2018)

Ind AS 116: Leases (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 01.04.2019)
Ind AS 21: The effect of change in foreign exchange rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transaction that include receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rates to use on initial recognition of related asset expense or income when
an entity has received or paid advance consideration in foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 01.04.2018. The Company is evaluating the impact of this
amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition
standards Ind AS 18 - Revenue, Ind AS 11 - Construction Contracts when it becomes effective.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of 5 step model for the analysis of revenue transactions.
The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when an entity transfer control of good or
services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new
standard requires enhanced disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainties of
revenue and cash flows arising from entities contract wit customers. The Company is evaluating the
requirements of the Ind AS 115 and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.

Ind AS 116 - Leases

As Ind AS 116 substantially carry forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17, a lessor
will continue to classify its leases as operating lease or finance lease and to account for those two
types of leases differently. Ind AS 116 eliminates the classification of leases for the leasees as either
operating leases or finance leases as required by Ind AS 17 and instead introduces a single lease
accounting model whereby a leasee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term i.e., greater than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value and to recognise
depreciation of leased assets separately from interest on leased liabilities in the income statements.
Ind AS 116 is effective from 01.04.2019.
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4.3 Non Current Investments
e s | (e i
Unquoted
1. Investments carried at cost
a) Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries
7,53,13,400 (31% March 2017: 7,53,13,400) Equity
shares of Rs.10 (Rs.10) each, fully paid up in Cochin 7531.34 7531.34
International Aviation Services Ltd.
15,53,34,552 (315 March 2017: 15,53,34,552;) Equity
shares of Rs.10 (10) each, fully paid up in CIAL 15533.46 15533.46
Infrastructures Limited
70,000 (318 March 2017: 70,000;) Equity Shares of 700 700
Rs.10 CIAL Dutyfree and Retail Services Ltd.
10,64,050 (31t March 2017: 10,64,050;) Equity shares
of Rs.10 (Rs.10) each, fully paid up in Air Kerala 106.41 106.41
International Services Ltd.
Less: Assessment of impairment in value of investments (106.41) (106.41)
70,000 (315t March 2017: Nil) Equity shares of Rs.10
each, fully paid up in Kerala Waterways and 7.00 0.00
Infrastructures Limited (Refer Note 4.3.2)
23078.80 23071.80
2. Investments carried at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
a) Investment in Equity Instruments of Companies
58,800 (31¢ March 2017: 58,8.00) Equity sh.ar.es of 58.80 58 80
Rs.100 each in Kannur International Airport Limited
b) Investment in Shares of Co-operative Society
215 (31t March 2017: 215) shares of Rs.1000 each,
fully paid up in Cochin International Airport Taxi 2.15 2.15
Operators’ Co-operative Society Ltd.
f;ﬁggﬁﬁéﬁt)amount of Unquoted investments (net of 23139.75 23132.75
4.31 In view of the Business Plan of the subsidiary company, Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd,
and the positive cash flows in the last three years, the management is of the opinion that no diminution
in value of investment in the subsidiary company is anticipated at this stage and hence no provision
is made for diminution in value.
4.3.2 The Government of Kerala vide Government Order dated 17.06.2017 has decided to form a special

purpose vehicle company with share holding of 49% to Government of Kerala, 49% to Cochin
International Airport Limited and 2% to others, for development of inland waterways in the State.
Cochin International Airport Limited has subscribed for initial subscription of shares in Kerala
Waterways and Infrastructures Limited as per Government Order dated 16.09.2017. Further an
amount of Rs.434.00 lakhs has been paid to Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Ltd. towards
share application money and the allotment is expected soon.
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Other Financial Assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance with Banks

Margin money deposit with bank 1.56 0.00
Application money for securities pending allotment.
Share application money pending allotment with Kerala 434,00 0.00
Waterways and Infrastructures Ltd. (Refer Note 4.3.2)
435.56 0.00

Balance with banks in deposit accounts represents deposits held under lien, with maturity period
exceeding 12 months. Refer Note N0.4.10.1 (c)

Income Tax (Assets) (net)

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Income Tax (net) (Refer Note 4.5.1 and 4.5.2) 4211.58 3369.55
4211.58 3369.55

Income tax paid (net) represents the Advance tax and Tax deducted at source relating to various years,
net of provision made and also include the payments made against disputed demands amounting to
883.78 lakhs (Rs.662 lakhs) the disputes of these are at various stages of appeal.

The Income Tax Assessments of the Company have been completed up to and including the
Assessment Year 2015-16. Assessments for the remaining periods are pending. The major area
of dispute in income tax assessment is with regard to the eligible claim of deduction u/s 80IA of the
Income Tax Act 1961. For the Assessment Years 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2010-11, 2011-12 &
2012-13 the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) [CIT(A)] had allowed the claim of deduction
u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961. Of the above, the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal had earlier
set aside the assessments with respect to AY 2005-06 to AY 2007-08 to the assessing officer for
fresh consideration. The assessing officer had disallowed the claim u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act,
for which appeals were filed with the CIT(A). The Company had also filed an appeal before the
Hon’ble High Court of Kerala against the order of the Hon’ble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The
Hon’ble High Court of Kerala has remanded the matter back to the assessing officer for consider the
matter afresh. The Company has now filed appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court against the
order of the High Court of Kerala. For the Assessment Years 2008-09 and 2009-10, the CIT(A) had
allowed the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961, against which appeal filed by the
Department is pending for disposal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT), Cochin Bench.
For the Assessment Years 2013-14 to 2015-16, the appeal filed against the assessment before the
CIT(A) is pending for disposal. The Company is hopeful of favourable decisions in the matter and
disputed liability is disclosed under contingent liability.

Other non-current Assets

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
a. Capital Advances 1497.74 3151.29
b. Security Deposits 123.12 119.35
1620.85 3270.63
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Inventories
. As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Stores & Spares 436.08 439.02
436.08 439.02
Trade Receivables
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

(Rupees in lakhs)

(Rupees in lakhs)

Secured, considered good
- Others
Unsecured, considered good
- Due from related parties (subsidiary companies)
- Others
Doubtful
- Others

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

7335.44 6166.28
6479.30
415.90 3099.22
311.41 207.56
14542.05 9473.05
311.41 207.56
14230.64 9265.50

Allowances for credit Loss

The company has considered a provisioning matrix based approach for computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix has been designed by considering
the expected credit loss on account of two factors 1. delay loss 2. Percentage probability of default
risk. Appropriate discount factors based on the time value of money has been reckoned for computing
the percentage of delay loss. For computing the percentage probability of default risk, appropriate
percentages were arrived by analysing historic credit loss experience among various customer
classes. A blended percentage by considering the average of delay loss percentage and percentage

probability of default risk has been considered for arriving at the expected credit loss provision.

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance at beginning of the year

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

Balance at the end of the year

207.56
104.15
311.71

207.56
207.56

Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts

In Deposit Accounts (maturity <3 months)
Cash on hand

322.12 96.17
0.00 43.34
1.42 1.40

323.54 140.91
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Financial Assets - Bank Balances

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance with Banks

In Deposit Accounts
(i) maturity 3-12 months
(ii) maturity >12 months)

In Earmarked Accounts
(i) unpaid/unclaimed dividend accounts
(i) margin money against bank guarantees
(iii) PSF (SC) Escrow bank balance

7754.51 5864.47
0.00 693.00
153.46 141.63
197.99 310.29
18082.51 9149.88
26188.47 16159.27

Earmarked Balances:

a Balance with banks include Rs.18082.51 lakhs (Rs.9149.88 lakhs) being the amount earmarked
for meeting security related expenses at the Airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, and cannot be used for any other purpose.

b Balances with banks in deposit accounts include time deposits [maturity period of more than
12 months from the reporting date - Rs.0 lakhs (Rs.693 lakhs) maturity period of more than 3
months but less than 12 months from the reporting date - Rs.7754.51 lakhs (Rs. 5864.47 lakhs)
which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the
principal.

c Balance with banks in deposit accounts of Rs.197.99 lakhs (Rs.310.29 lakhs), are held under
lien. Further deposit with maturity period exceeding 12 months of Rs.1.56 lakhs (0 lakhs) which
is disclosed under other non-current financial assets.

Loans

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

a. Loans to related parties
Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries -
Unsecured, Considered Good:
Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures Limited
Unsecured Considered Doubtful:
Air Kerala International Services Limited
Less: Allowance for bad & doubtful loans

12.62 0.00
54.69 54.39
(54.69) (54.39)
0.00 0.00
12.62 0.00

Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Unbilled Revenue
Interest Accrued on fixed deposits

260.54 129.70
80.37 178.69
340.90 308.39

94




413

4131

413.2

4133

24% Annual Report 2017-18

Other Current Assets

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)

Advances other than Capital Advances :
(i) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for

value to be received 799.90 230.36
(ii) iﬁ{ﬁgzﬁzglth Central Excise, Customs & Other 1719.83 3071.77
2519.73 3302.13

Advance recoverable in cash or kind includes Rs.578.10 (Nil) being the amount recoverable from
PSF (SC) account towards income tax consequent to the refund of amount utilized from PSF (SC)
account as detailed in Note no .4.53

As per the amendment to the Finance Act in the union budget 2016 all those contracts for the
original works in Airports for which the agreement was entered prior to 1.3.2015, even though
service tax has been paid, the assesse was made eligible to claim the refund of the service tax
paid to the contractor who has remitted the service tax to the Central Government account. Prior to
this amendment, Government had withdrawn the exemption of service tax for the original works in
Airports. The refund process requires submission of the certificate from the Civil Aviation Ministry
to prove that the agreement was entered into prior to 1.3.2015. The Company had entered three
such contracts with Larsen & Toubro Limited, GHV India Pvt. Ltd & Goodwill Power Pvt. Ltd.
CIAL applied for the refund as per the provision in the Finance Act and as per the amendments to the
notification. The Assistant Commissioner had initially denied our claim. However, CIAL has filed the
appeal before the Commissioner Appeals. The refund claim does not have the question of law which
needs to be interpreted but the clear matter of processing the refund based on the certificate issued
by Civil Aviation Ministry and service tax payment Invoices and the disclaimer certificate issued by
the respective contractor being the contracts for the works related to the original works of Airports.
CIAL is waiting for the hearing by Commissioner Appeals where it is hopeful that the Appellate
Authority will take cognizance of the facts and allow the refund claim. The amount of refund claim is
Rs 1163 lakhs which has been reduced from respective project assets relating to the new International
Terminal (T3) and not availed the depreciation too. The management feels that the refund claim will
sustain before the Appellate Authority and CIAL expects the refund of service tax hence reduced the
value of the respective asset to that extend. Status quo of the matter remains as such as on reporting
date.

The refund claim which was filed within the due date before the Assistant Commissioner of Central
Excise & Service Tax amounting to Rs. 674 lakhs is for the Additional Customs Duty which was
paid on the imports which were classified under Customs Tariff Heading 9801 meant for project
imports. The Company was allowed the imports for the new International Terminal (T3) construction
as project imports eligible for concession in the customs duty. The projects import is allowed by the
Government for the economic development of the country. As per the Cenvat credit rules, input credit
is allowed for the Additional Customs duty for the imports under tariff head 9801. It is also stated in
the rules that the input credit cannot be utilised to pay service tax. Since the rules has allowed the
availing of input credit but has placed restriction on its utilisation while payment of service tax on
output services, the option available to CIAL is by service refund claim which has been preferred. The
refund claim has been initially denied by the Assistant Commissioner without considering the merits
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of the case and hence CIAL has filed the appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals). Itis pertinent to
note that in GST Additional Customs duty is allowed to all the Industries including service providers.
The management feels that the refund claim would sustain before the Appellate Authority and CIAL
expects the refund claim to be ordered in favour of CIAL and hence the value of expected refund has
been deducted from the respective project assets during the financial year 2016-17 and as such no
depreciation was also claimed. Status quo of the matter remains as such as on 31.03.2018.

Equity Share Capital

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Authorised:
40,00,00,000 (40,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Par
Value Rs. 10/- each 40000.00 40000.00
Issued and Subscribed and fully paid:

st _ H
spasrere ot Mt 2017 SeasTeT By | g s
38257.47 38257.47

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars No. of Rupees No. of Rupees
shares shares
(In lakhs) (In lakhs) (In lakhs) (In lakhs)
No. of shares as at the beginning of the | 4955 75| 3805747 | 382575 38257.47
financial year
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
,;lé)érOf shares as at the end of the financial 3825 75 38057 47 3825 75 38257 47

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share carry a right to dividend. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Particulars % S,\:grgi % Sl\:grgi
His Excellency, The Governor of Kerala 32.42% | 12,40,29,206 | 32.42% | 12,40,29,206
Mr. N.V. George 9.45% | 3,61,70,373 | 11.97% | 4,57,78,415
Mr. Yusuffali M.A. 9.73% | 3,72,31,779 9.73% | 3,72,31,779
M/s. Synthite Industries Ltd. 6.53% | 2,49,84,020 6.53% | 2,49,84,020
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Particulars

(a) Securities Premium Reserve Account
Total (a)
(b) General Reserve
Total (b)
(c) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Add : Profit for the year

Add/(Less) : Remeasurement of defined employee
benefit plans (net of taxes)

Less: Appropriations
(a) Transfer to General Reserve
(b) Dividend on Equity Shares

(c) Tax on Dividend

Total (c)
Other Equity (a+b+c)

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
30605.98 30605.98
30605.98 30605.98
6384.60 6384.60
6384.60 6384.60
53598.18 46013.93
15842.25 18128.47
(242.69) (183.89)
69197.73 63958.51
9564.37 8607.93
1947.11 1752.40
11511.48 10360.33
57686.25 53598.18
94676.84 90588.76

Nature of Reserves

(a) Securities Premium Account

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(b) General Reserve

The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. As the General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component
of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the
general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividends

The dividends declared by the Company are based on the profits available for distribution as reported
in the financial statements of the Company. For the year 2016-17, the Directors had recommended
and share holders had approved a dividend of 25% (Rs.2.50 per share). The dividend was distributed
during the Financial Year 2017-18 amounting to Rs.9564.37 lakhs along with dividend distribution tax
of Rs.1947.11 lakhs which have been accounted in the current year. The Directors have proposed
a dividend of 25% for the FY 2017-18,which is subject to the approval of Shareholder in Annual
General Meeting. No provision for the same have been recognised as liability of Financial Year

2017-18 by virtue Ind AS provisions in this regard.
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Non Current Borrowings

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Secured:
Term Loans From Bank (Refer Note 4.16.1 and 4.16.2) 43785.00 36968.10
43785.00 36968.10

Term Loan represents the disbursement of the project term loan of Rs.50000 lakhs sanctioned by
M/s. Federal Bank Limited for the T3 International Terminal. The Term loan together with interest is
repayable in 156 months in equal quarterly installments and first such installment shall commence
only after a period of 36 months from March 2015 (i.e., the date of first disbursement of loan), which is
schedule on June 2018. The repayment holiday of 36 months is applicable only for Principal amount.
Interest and other charges are payable as and when due. The applicable interest rate of the loan
is the base rate of Federal bank from time to time and the present rate of interest is 8.9% p.a.
(9.63% p.a).

The term loan is secured by exclusive first charge on Project assets by way of simple mortgage
of the portion of land earmarked for the project by registration of Deed of Mortgage along with the
new international terminal building and also having second charge by way of hypothecation of fixed
assets (excluding land and building, runways, Golf course and vehicles) which were already charged

as collateral security to the overdraft limit of Rs.25.00 crores sanctioned to the Company.

Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Security Deposits including Retention Moneys

4696.52

2793.89

4696.52

2793.89

Provision (Non Current)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Provision for leave benefits
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Employee Benefits [Refer Note 4.38]:

1588.58 1427.85
243.00 303.93
1831.58 1731.78

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

A. Deferred Tax Liability

On Property, Plant and Equipment 8307.15 5454.36
B. Deferred Tax Asset

On Provisions (971.73) (759.98)

On Others (62.49) (59.46)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A-B 7272.93 4634.92
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4.19.1 The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax liabilities are
as follows :
. Recognised
Operrs | npottor | e | Closng
income
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets
in relation to :
Property, plant and equipment 5454.36 2852.78 8307.14
Provision for doubtful debts (72.21) (35.67) (107.88)
Defined Benefit Obligations (687.77) (47.64) (128.44) (863.85)
Others (59.46) (3.03) (62.49)
Total 4634.92 2766.45 (128.44) 7272.93
. Recognised
0penrs | npottor | et | Sloing
income
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets
in relation to :
Property, plant and equipment 3314.49 2139.87 - 5454.36
Defined Benefit Obligations (542.62) (47.83) (97.32) | (687.77)
Provision for doubtful debts - (72.21) - (72.21)
Others (42.75) (16.71) - (59.46)
Total 2729.12 2003.12 (97.32) 4634.92
4.20 Other Non Current Liabilities
e ) | (Panees i
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 2266.46 2348.56
Others -
(i) Deferred Revenue arising from government grants 1978.72 2209.51
(i) Deferred Revenue arising from royalty/licence fees 13491.89 14281.79
(iii) Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Retention Money 216.83 281.51
17953.89 19121.36
4.21 Borrowings
] I
Secured:
Loan repayable on demand from Bank 1217.12 0.00
1217.12 0.00
4.21.1 The working capital facility by way of bank overdraft from Bank is repayable on demand and the

sanction is for a period of one year. The rate of interest is 8.9% p.a and the said facility is having
security of Company’s inventories and other assets as mentioned in Note No.4.16.2.
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4.22 Trade Payables
: As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Others 1673.24 1346.90
1673.24 1346.90
4.22.1 There is no defined credit period. The dues are settled based on the credit policy extended by the
vendors. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
There are no amount overdue to any enterprises which qualify under the definition of micro and small
enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006.
4.23 Other Financial Liabilities
. As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 4.16.1 5000.00 947 90
and 4.16.2)
Security Deposits including Retention 4011.39 4296.90
Interest accrued 0.00 310.11
Unpaid Dividends (refer Note No.4.23.1) 153.46 141.63
Other Payables - Liability towards Capital Contracts 7614.44 11406.21
16779.29 17102.76
4.23.1 Unpaid dividends do not include any amount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor
Education Protection Fund.
4.24 Other Current Liabilities
; As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club 82.10 82.25
Revenue received in advance -
Deferred Revenue arising from government grants 217.80 217.80
Deferred Revenue arising from royalty/ licence fees 1318.09 136.20
Other Payables -
Statutory Dues 1489.97 603.81
Advance from Customers 96.77 84.42
Others (Refer note 4.24.1) 19806.55 10244.95
23011.27 11369.43
4.24.1 Other liabilities include Rs.18872.92 lakhs (Rs.9906.52 lakhs) representing liability (Net of expenses

incurred) towards security related expenses to be incurred out of the security component of Passenger
Service Fees (PSF-SC) collected by the Company from embarking passengers in fiduciary capacity,
in accordance with guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India. Balance
in separate escrow bank accounts operated exclusively for this purpose are disclosed in Note
4.10. During the year, an amount of Rs 7321.91 lakhs (Rs.6681.90 lakhs) collected as the security
component of PSF (SC)(Net of service tax) has been treated as liability towards security related
expenses and an amount of Rs.5853.13 lakhs (Rs.4214 lakhs) (excluding taxes) was incurred as
security expenses.
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits [Refer Note 4.38] -
Provision for Pay Revision
Provision for leave benefits
Provision for Gratuity

300.00 0.00
217.60 214.38
146.93 83.27
664.53 297.64

Revenue from operations

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

A. Sale of Services

Aero Revenue
Landing Fee
Parking & Housing Fee
Aerobridge Charges
Passenger Service Fee
Income from CUTE
X-Ray Inspection Charges
Inline X Ray Screening Charges
Royalty *

Income from Cargo Operations

*includes Rs.95.85 lakhs (Rs.60.45 lakhs) Notional
Income on account of Ind AS adjustments

Non Aero Revenue
Royalty income from CDRSL
Rent & Services *
Royalty
Security Charges
Public Admission Fees
Income From Trade Fair Centre

Income from Golf Course and Facilities

*includes Rs.164.99 lakhs (Rs.53.21 lakhs) Notional
Income on account of Ind AS adjustments

B. Sale of Products
Sale of Duty Free Products

Total Revenue from Operations

9246.83 6279.61
111.42 80.91
705.35 625.41
3942.57 3597.94
4161.62 3323.33
135:53 111.62
2367.43 2396.58
9841.58 6266.20
2981.66 2254.85
33493.99 24936.46
10034.78 6830.32
9263.16 7566.76
401.69 612.37
16.57 22.28
235.85 398.66
373.53 259.72
240.30 252.56
20565.89 15942.67
0.00 6484.20
54059.88 47363.32
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4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

Other Income

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Interest / Income received on financial assets -
Carried at amortised cost

Interest Income

Income/Gain from Current Investments
Others:

Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net)

Other non-operating income

Reversal of provision no longer required

Fair Valuation Gain - Retention Money

Deferred Government Grants

857.51 796.76
2.09 4.01
0.67 125.30

175.16 180.65
0.00 14.34

15.63 11.92

230.80 231.34

1281.85 1364.32

Other Income

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Opening Stock in Trade

Less: Closing Stock in Trade
Changes in stock in trade

0.00 3154.19
0.00 0.00
0.00 3154.19

Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Salaries & Wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses

Less: Reimbursement on Secondment of Employees

5847.89 5295.61
441.27 394.40
167.20 167.21

(697.91) (565.98)

5758.45 5291.24

Finance Costs

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Interest Expenses:
Other borrowing Cost

(i) Unwinding of discount on security deposits
including retention money

3985.32 229.36
276.47 125.58
4261.79 354.94

Depreciation & Amortisation expenses

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Amortization expenses

10196.97 3572.72
162.82 305.73
10359.78 3878.45
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Repairs to Building

Repair to Plant, Equipment & Runway
Repairs to Office Equipments

Safety, Security & Immigration Expenses
Management Fees (Duty Free Shop)
Discount allowed (Duty Free Shop) (Net)
Power, Water and Fuel Charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Housekeeping Expenses

Consumption of Stores, Spares & Consumables
Insurance

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Postage and Telephone

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 4.43)
Directors Sitting Fees

Advertisement and Publicity

Loss on Fixed Assets sold/demolished/discarded
Professional and Consultancy charges
Bank Charges

Bad Debts

Provision for doubtful debts

Miscellaneous Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
(Refer Note.4.51)

835.25 727.36
1638.16 1153.64
52.30 31.14
672.85 393.99
0.00 149.36
0.00 76.58
B28910Y 2178.78
91.60 89.25
998.43 728.72
331.01 205.01
365.74 209.90
5.59 4.52
274.73 104.56
57.40 52.06
2817 26.41
191.57 171.06
8.12 7.51
16.27 14.57
169.22 352.64
148.25 0.36
125.70 81.45
16.57 19.52
0.00 1058.88
104.15 191.14
831.51 722.14
589.00 400.00
10790.68 9150.56

Exceptional item

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Exceptional Item -
Differential value of assets consequent to refunding
of the amount utilised for asset acquisition from
PSF (SC) Escrow account - (Refer Note N0.4.53)

Less: Consequent reversal of Provision for Income
Tax relating to above

Net Amount

1306.79

(578.10)

728.69
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4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

Other Comprehensive Income-ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Particulars

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars

Profit before tax

Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2016-17:
34.608%)

Effect of exceptional items debited to Statement of
Profit and Loss

Effect of expense that are not deductible in
determining taxable profit

Effect of Transitional Adjustment to Schedule III of
Companies Act to Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Effect of Increase in PBT due to Ind AS adjustment
Effect of Interest included in Tax Expense
Others

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation
to current tax of prior years

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
(371.13) (281.21)
(371.13) (281.21)
As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
23442.35 25631.96
8112.93 8870.71
252.18 -
189.13 110.75
- 30.00
(27.69) (2.33)
26.35 (68.25)
8552.91 8940.88

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2016-17 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of
34.608% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

Disclosure Ind AS 33 - Earnings per Share

Particulars

Profit after taxation (Amount in Lacs)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each (fully paid-up)

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
15842 17101
3826 3826
414 4.47

Disclosure under Ind AS 17: Leases

The Company does not have any investment properties as on year ended 31t March 2018. All
operating leases contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its
option to renew. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the

lease period.

Non Cancellable operating lease receivables

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
Later than 5 years

315025 315025
1260100 1260100
4410350 4410350
5985475 5985475
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During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on

account of defined contribution plans:

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Employers contribution to Provident Fund

441.27

394.40

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity: Funded Obligation

a. Key Assumptions

One of the principal assumptions is the discount rate, which should be based upon the market
yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the

liabilities.

The financial and demographic assumptions employed for the calculations as at the end of previous

period and current period are as follows -

Actuarial Assumptions

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Discount Rate (per annum)
Expected return on plan assets
Salary escalation rate*

Attrition Rate

Mortality rate

7.63%
7.63%
6.50%
4.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

7.17%
717%
6.50%
4.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b. Reconciliation of present value of obligation

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Benefits Paid

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

1528 1174
132 115
115 93
230 156
(44) (10)

1962 1528

c. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain / (loss)

Contributions

Benefits paid

Assets distributed on settlement (if applicable)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

1141 984
100 78
(13) 89
387 -
(44) (10)

1572 1141
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4.38.3

d. Description of Plan Assets

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Insurer Managed Funds (SBI Life)

1572

1141

e. Net (Asset) / Liability recognized in the Balance
Sheet as at year end

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized as
(asset) / liability in the Balance Sheet

1962 1528
1572 1141
(390) (387)

f. Expenses recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
Past Service Cost (if applicable)

Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit
and loss for the year

Actual Return on Planned Assets

132
115
(100)

147
88

115
93
(78)

131
167

g. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Demographic
Assumption changes in DBO

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Financial
Assumption changes in DBO

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Experience on DBO

Return on Plan Assets (Greater) / Less than Discount
rate

Return on reimbursement rights (excluding interest
income)

Changes in asset ceiling / onerous liability (excluding
interest Income)

Immediate Recognition of (Gain) / Losses - Other
Long Term Benefits

Total actuarial (gain) / loss included in OCI

(87)
317
13

243

115
41
(89)

67

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences (Vesting and Non Vesting): Unfunded Obligation

a. Key Assumptions

One of the principal assumptions is the discount rate, which should be based upon the market
yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the

liabilities.
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The financial and demographic assumptions employed for the calculations as at the end of previous

period and current period are as follows -

Actuarial Assumptions

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Discount Rate (per annum)

Salary escalation rate*

Attrition Rate

Mortality rate

Leave Accounting & Consumption Technique

Proportion of leave availment

Proportion of encashment in service / Lapse

Proportion of encashment on separation

7.63% for Earned
Leave 7.63% for
Sick Leave
6.5% F5Y & 6.5%
TA for Earned
Leave and Sick
Leave
4.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate
LIFO

5% for Earned
Leave 100% for
Sick Leave
0%

95% for
Earned Leave
0% for Sick Leave

7.17% for Earned
Leave 7.17% for
Sick Leave
6.5% F5Y & 6.5%
TA for Earned
Leave and Sick
Leave
4.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate
LIFO

5% for Earned
Leave 100% for
Sick Leave
0%

95% for
Earned Leave
0% for Sick Leave

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b. Reconciliation of present value of obligation

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Transfer of liability

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Benefits Paid

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

1642 1378
122 110
118 100
128 214

(203) (160)

1806 1642

c. Net (Asset) / Liability recognized in the Balance
Sheet as at year end

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized as
(asset) / liability in the Balance Sheet

1806

1642

1806

1642
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4.38.4

d. Expenses recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
Past Service Cost (if applicable)

Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit
and loss for the year

122 110
118 100
128 214
367 424

e. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit

128
128

214
214

and loss for the year

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied
upon by the auditors.

Description of plan characteristics and associated risks

Gratuity

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the period of service at the time of separation and paid as lump sum. There is a vesting
period of 5 years.

Earned Leave

The leave scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the leave count at the time of separation and paid as lump sum.

Sick Leave

The sick leave scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the sick leave count at the time of separation and paid as lump sum.

These plans typical expose the Company to actuarial risks such as : investment risk, interest rate
risk, longevity risk, salary risk, demographic risks and asset liability mismatch.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the

return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the

plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life

expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.
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The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.

This is the risk of volatility of results due to unexpected nature of
decrements that include mortality attrition, disability and retirement.
The effects of these decrement on the DBO depends upon the
combination salary increase, discount rate, and vesting criteria and
therefore not very straight forward. It is important not to overstate
withdrawal rate because the cost of retirement benefit of a short
caring employees will be less compared to long service employees.

Salary risk

Demographic risk

Asset Liability Mismatch This will come into play unless the funds are invested with a term of the

assets replicating the term of the liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31tMarch 2018 by Actuary. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee
benefits expense’ line items in the statement of profit and loss

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

Disclosures under Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

: As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Borrowing costs capitalised 0.00 3436.95
0.00 3436.95

Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Indian Accounting Standard — 24 on
Related Party Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting standards) Rules 2006.

Related parties and nature of relationship

a) Subsidiaries

Proportion of ownership
princioal | i Place °tf interest and voting power
Name of Subsidiary rincipal | IneorPoralion | held by the Company
activity and
operation As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Cochin International Aviation Aircraft .
. o . India 99.99% 99.99%
services Limited Maintenance
. P .
CIAL Infrastructures Limited ower India 99.99% 99.99%
Generation
Air Kerala International Services Airline .
" rhat ! riine India 99.99% 99.99%
Limited Operation
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C_IA.L Dutyfree and Retail Services Dutyfree India 99 90% 99 90%
Limited Business
Ei:i'j dwatem’ays and Infrastructures || o structure India 99.99% 0.00%

b) Enterprises where significant influence of Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives exists:
Kochi International Airport Society (KIAS)
Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators’ Co-operative Society Ltd.
CIAL Charitable Trust

c) Key Managerial Personnel
Sri. V.J. Kurian - Managing Director
Sri. Sunil Chacko - CFO
Sri. Saji K. George - Company Secretary

4.40.2 Description of Transactions
(Rupees in lakhs)

Enterprises having

Subsidiary significant influence/ Total
. Company .
Nature of Transaction where control exists
31stMarch | 31t March | 31t March | 31%t March | 31%t March | 31¢ March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Investment in Equity during the year

Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures 7.00 - - - 7.00 -
Limited
Subscription of share application of equity 434.00 - - - 434.00 -

shares of KWIL pending for allotment
Debit for meeting expenses& others

CIAL Duty Free & Retail Services Ltd. 797.16 685.82 - - 797.16 685.82
Air Kerala International Services Ltd. 0.30 0.57 - - 0.30 0.57
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 3.04 2.98 - - 3.04 2.98
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 0.04 0.23 - - 0.04 0.23
Kochi International Airport Society - - 1.02 1.14 1.02 1.14
Contribution to CIAL Charitable Trust out 85.00 - - - 85.00 -
of CSR Funds

Kerala Waterways and Infrastructures 12.62 - - - 12.62 -
Limited

Providing of services - - = - - -

Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd.

a) Lease Rent received 3.72 3.62 - - 3.72 3.62

b) Energy charges 13.97 8.39 - - 13.97 8.39

c) Others 0.66 0.05 - - 0.66 0.05
CIAL Infrastructures Limited

a) Lease Rent received 9.52 9.01 - - 9.52 9.01
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Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

a) Surcharge received - - 54.19 51.53 54.19 51.53
CIAL Duty Free & Retail Services Limited

a) Lease Rent received 77.37 59.50 - - 77.37 59.50

b) Royalty 11790.40 | 7854.87 - -| 11790.40 | 7854.87

c) Sale of Stock 0.00 | 2388.12 - - -| 2388.12

Receipt of Services
(a) Cochin International Aviation Services

Ltd.

a)Training Fees 5.86 13.15 - - 5.86 13.15
b) Room Rentals 18.10 0.40 - - 18.10 0.40
c) Others 0.00 0.40 - - 0.00 0.40

(b) Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

a) Taxi Hire Charges - - 6.42 5.30 6.42 5.30
C) CIAL Infrastructures Limited
a) Power supply 2188.18 | 1506.57 - -1 2188.18 | 1506.57

Outstanding as on Balance sheet date

Investments:
Air Kerala International Services Ltd. 106.41 106.41 - - 106.41 106.41
(Fully provided in books)
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 7531.34 | 7531.34 - -| 7531.34| 7531.34
Cochin International Airport Taxi - - 2.15 215 2.15 215
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 15533.46 | 15533.46 - -| 15533.46 | 15533.46
CIAL Duty Free Retail Services Limited 7.00 7.00 - - 7.00 7.00
E(;:ideatenNays and Infrastructures 700 ) _ ) 700 )
Receivable:
'(L}:'LI*f;;fvi'g;r?:tt';gi's?e”"ces L 5439|  54.39 - .| 5439| 5439
CIAL Duty Free Retail Services Limited 6531.26 | 3932.26 - -| 6531.26 | 3932.26
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 0.00 31.99 - - - 31.99
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 8.71 9.01 - - 8.71 9.01
Kochi International Airport Society - - 7.64 6.61 7.64 6.61
Opersors Co.operaie Socily L : st ssT(Asl s
E?T:ideatemays and Infrastructures 12.62 ) _ ) 12.62 )
Payable:
Cochin International Aviation Services Ltd. 0.77 3.44 - - 0.77 3.44
CIAL Infrastructures Limited 244.96 184.35 - - 244.96 184.35
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4.40.3

4.40.3

4.41

4.42

4.421

Details of transactions with Key Managerial Personnel

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Salary, allowances & other benefits
To Sri. V.J. Kurian, Managing Director*
To Sri. Sunil Chacko, Chief Financial Officer
To Sri. Saji K. George, Company Secretary

41.87
25.53
34.17

3.19
2413
33.39

been paying him salary w.e.f 15t March 2017 onwards.

* During the FY 2016-17, Sri. V.J. Kurian, Managing Director, has not claimed/paid any salary and
allowance except medical reimbursements of medical expenditures till 28" February 2017 as he was
drawing salary/remuneration from Government of Kerala as an Additional Chief Secretary. CIAL has

Sitting Fees paid to Non Executive Directors

As at 31.03.2018
(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2017
(Amount in Rupees)

Sri. Babu Erumala Mathew

Sri. K. Roy Paul (Independent director)
Smt. Ramani A.K. (Independent director)
Sri. George Nereaparam Vareed

Sri. C.V. Jacob

4,75,000 2,75,000
4,50,000 3,75,000
3,00,000 375000
2,50,000 2,50,000
1,00,000 1,50,000
15,75,000 14,25,000

Power Purchase agreement with CIAL Infra

The Company has entered into an arrangement with Kerala State Electricity Board Ltd. (KSEB) for
power evacuation and banking of solar energy generated by the Company or through its subsidiary.
The solar power generation is being undertaken by one of the subsidiary Company by name CIAL
Infrastructures Ltd. Accordingly the power evacuation and banking arrangements with KSEB is being
managed by the said subsidiary, interfacing with KSEB for all practical/technical aspects related to
this activity. A Power Purchase Agreement has been executed between Cochin International Airport
Limited (CIAL) and CIAL Infrastructures Limited on 5" December 2015 for purchasing the power
generated from Solar Power Plant commissioned by CIAL Infrastructures Limited.

The details of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are as under. (Disclosed in terms of Ind AS-37
on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs)

1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as
debts:

(i)  Service tax demands pending on appeal #
(including Rs.1534.51 lakhs (Rs.1505.96 lakhs)
in respect of which favourable orders have been
received, though further contested by department
and Rs. 1475.51 lakhs (Rs.1457.25 lakhs) in
respect of which favourable orders have been
received on similar issues in earlier years
Rs.102.94 lakhs (Rs.104.21 lakhs) remitted
against the above demands under protest has
been carried under Loans & Advances.

3207.75 3231.37
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(i)  Income tax demands pending on appeal (in
respect of which favourable orders have been
received on similar issues in earlier years,
though further contested by the department).
Rs.883.78 lakhs (Rs.662 lakhs) remitted
against the above demands under protest has
been carried under Loans & Advances.

(i)  Setoff of MAT credit against the current year
tax provision pending disposal of dispute
regarding the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of
the Income tax Act in tax assessments

(iv)  Claims for higher compensation on Acquisition of
land (excluding interest) disputed by the Company
and pending before various courts.

(v)  Claims from Contractors for capital jobs payable
as per Arbitration award, disputed by the
Company before various courts.

2 Claims from Director General of Police, Kerala towards
deputation of manpower in earlier years, not accepted
by the Company.

3 Ministry of Civil Aviation vide its order has claimed
refund of capital expenditures met out of PSF (Security
Component)/Escrow Fund. The operation ofthe order
was stayed by High Court of Kerala. Any unfavourable
decision of High Court can lead refund of capital
expenditures incurred from inception of fund to fill
date. During the year under report the amount has
been refunded. The demand for payment of interest
is pending for resolution. (Refer Note 4.53)

4 Local authorities while raising the demand notice for
One Time Building Tax of new International Terminal
(T3) has included the areas of buildings in the airport
for which already one time taxes up to the period
of FY 2016 was paid by CIAL. Further the tax rate
applied for this area is also at the revised rate. An
appeal was filed against this demand notice with
R D O, Fort Kochi, which is pending for final disposal.

5 Annual building tax claimed by Angamaly Municipality
based on wrong building classification has been
disputed by the Company and appealed with LSGD
Tribunal, Trivandrum.

6 Letter of Credit.

7 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company.

Total

8577.66 7481.04
9480.97 4264.46
0.00 23.77
4113.84 3889.57
0.00 74.52
0.00 8499.13
200.39 0.00
112.24 0.00
1103.10 102.36
231.35 1880.72
27027 29447

# Show cause notices received from service tax authorities aggregating
(Rs.5950.88 lakhs), (including interest and penalty) have not been considered as contingent
liability, since formal demands have not been raised and in the opinion of the management these

notices are not sustainable.

to Rs.9527.69 lakhs

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account - Rs. 13156.32 lakhs

(Rs.16180.81 lakhs)
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4.43 Provision and/or payments in respect of Auditor’s Remuneration
e s | (e i
a. Statutory Audit Fees 7.00 7.00
b. Other services 1.12 0.51
8.12 7.51
4.44 Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued operations
The combined results of the discontinued operations included in the profit for the year are set out
below. The comparative profit and cash flows from discontinued operations have been presented as
if these operations were discontinued in the prior year as well.
Particulars (Rupess in lakhs) | (Rupoes in iakhs)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Revenue - 4096.68
Depreciation - (10.88)
Other items debited to profit or loss - (2514.80)
Profit before tax (I) - 1571.00
Attributable income tax expense (ll) - 543.69
Profit from discontinued operations before tax (I+I1l) - 1571.00
Tax expense of discontinued operations (Il + IV) - (543.69)
Profit for the. year from discontinued operations - ) 1027.31
after tax (attributable to owners of the Company)
4.45 Disclosures under Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments
Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues.
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Company.
No client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31t March
2018 and 31st March 2017.
4.46 In the opinion of the Management, short term loans and advances and other current Assets, have the
value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.
4.47 Expenditure in foreign currency:
Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupces in iakhs)
A) CIF Value of Imports -
Capital Goods 1090.50 6903.05
Components & spare parts - 50.00
Import of Duty free goods - 665.86
B) Management Fee - 28.82
C) Others 262.75 17.63
1353.25 7665.36
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Airport charges from Foreign flights
Sales revenue from Duty Free Shop
Royalty from Ground handling
Royalty-Others

3.18 7.09

- 3546.44
4007.03 3323.42
1.09 9.10
4011.29 6886.05

The Airports Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA), established under AERA Act 2008, regulate
the aeronautical charges of Cochin International Airport (CIAL). As per existing tariff determination
orders, CIAL has submitted the multi year tariff proposal (MYTP) for the second control period
i.e., financial year commencing from 01t April 2016 to 31t March 2021 (05 Year Period) to AERA.
AERA has issued a final tariff order on 13" July 2017 wherein the Authority has approved an
aggregate revenue requirement (ARR) of Rs 159617.00 lakhs for the period from Financial Year
2016-17 to Financial Year 2020-21. Accordingly the revised aeronautical charges such as landing
charges, parking charges, aerobridge charges, x-ray, cargo and royalty on fuel throughput charges
of CIAL has been fixed and it has been made effective w.e.f 01.08.2017.

The financial statements of the Company do not include accounts for Passenger Service Fee
(Security Component (PSF-SC)) as the same are maintained separately in the fiduciary capacity by
the Company on behalf of Government of India and are governed by Standard Operating Procedure
issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India from time to time.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, a CSR
committee has been formed by the Company. The areas of CSR activities include education, drinking
water supply, health care, social empowerment, infrastructure support through adoption of villages,
etc. and those specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013. The utilisation of CSR funds
are partly done through the Charitable Trust constituted by Company and also by direct spending as
per the recommendation of the CSR Committee. The details of amount required to be spend and the
amount utilised are given below:

Particulars (Rupces in lakhs) | (Rupess in Iakhs)
a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the
Company during the year :
i) Annual CSR allocation for the year 446.68 380.78
ii) Carry forward from Previous year - -
Total 446.68 380.78
b) Amount spent during the year :
i) By contribution to the Trust 85.00 -
ii) Contribution to CM’s Relief Fund 500.00 -
" Gonton et s |
iv) By other than the above 4.00 -
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4.52

4.53

Considering the Airport Operation as an Infrastructural project, the Company was claiming deduction
u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961 for the Income from airport operations for a period of 10 years
ended 31/03/2014. Accordingly, during these years, the payment of tax was based on Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT), which is eligible for set off against future tax liability. However, the Company
had not recognized MAT credit as an asset in its books of accounts, as a matter of prudence. During
the current year, MAT credit to the extent of Rs.881.85 lakhs (Rs.1437.39 lakhs) had been setoff
against the provision for Income Tax. Claim of deduction u/s 80IA have been disputed by the Income
Tax department and these disputes are at various levels of appeals for different years. However, the
Company based on legal opinion, is confident of getting a favourable decision and hence set off of
MAT credit is done during the year as in earlier years.

The Ministry of Civil Aviation on 09-05-2006 had passed an order allowing collection of Passenger
Service Fee (Security Component) by Greenfield and private airports operators on behalf of
Government of India. The utilisation of funds so collected and the holding of such funds by the airport
operator was in a fiduciary capacity and a separate Escrow account was opened for operation
and maintenance of this fund. The Ministry of Civil Aviation and BCAS has issued various orders
regarding the purposes for which the funds can be utilised. The utilisation so permitted is for meeting
security related expenditures of the airport, which includes expenditure in the nature of capital and
revenue.

Accordingly, the Company was incurring year on year capital expenditures, from the PSF (SC)
Escrow account and are being recorded in the books of accounts of PSF (SC) maintained separately
as per direction of the Ministry. The year on year capital expenditure and annual depreciation recorded
in the PSF (SC) books is as noted below:

Year Capital Ex_penditure Annual De_preciation
(Rupees in lakhs) (Rupees in lakhs)

2006-07 0.00
2007-08 37.63 0.68
2008-09 109.71 3.44
2009-10 222.89 18.91
2010-11 97.05 40.41
2011-12 512.30 54.25
2012-13 245.85 81.58
2013-14 309.97 99.66
2014-15 1945.72 295.20
2015-16 2365.08 338.82
2016-17 2652.93 373.85
Total up to 31/03/2017 8499.13 1306.79
2017-18 531.17 *
TOTAL 9030.30 1306.79

** Current year capital expenditure considered as addition to Property, Plant and Equipments of the
Company during the year.
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Ministry of Civil Aviation vide order dated 18-02-2014 had instructed the airport operators to reimburse
the capital expenditures incurred out of PSF (SC) Escrow account maintained and operated by the
airport operators in the fiduciary capacity to the respective escrow account stating that the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India has raised objection on incurrence of capital expenditures out of PSF
(SC) funds. CIAL has approached the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala and had obtained a Stay on the
operation of the above order and had been continued to use the fund for security related expenditures
including capital expenditures.

The capital expenditures and the periodical depreciation therein had formed part of the PSF (SC)
books until the financial year 2016-17. During the current financial year, Ministry of Civil Aviation
has convened a meeting of the airport operators and requested for out of court settlement on the
matter. They have further impressed the fact that the sole authority to decide the utilization of these
PSF (SC) funds vests with the Ministry of Civil Aviation itself and in case the airport operators continue
to incur capital expenditures out of PSF (SC) funds and also fail to reimburse the already incurred
capital expenditures, the Government can withdraw the entire funds from the airport operator as
they are the principal of this account and the airport operators are operating the account on fiduciary
capacity only.

In the backdrop of these developments and also based on the decision reached at the meeting held
on 07/07/2017, the Company has refunded the capital expenditures incurred from financial years
2006 - 07 to 2017 - 18 amounting to Rs.9030.30 lakhs, which is the value of the original cost of
such capital expenditure. Accordingly the entire assets are recorded in the books of accounts of the
Company at its original cost, the amount being Rs. 8499.13 lakhs and also the depreciation provided
for such assets in the books of accounts of PSF (SC) amounting to Rs. 1306.79 lakhs, to arrive at the
present book value considering the useful life as originally defined.

The proportionate income tax on the depreciation in the books of accounts of PSF (SC) has been
considered as recoverable from PSF (SC) account, the amount being Rs.578.10 lakhs. The net
impact of these, amounting to Rs.728.69 lakhs is shown as Exceptional item in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in compliance with para 85, 86, 97 and 98 of Ind AS 1.

Litigation: The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in
the MCA notification G.S.R.308 (E) dated 31stMarch 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes
(SBN) held and transacted during the period from 08" November 2016 to 30" December 2016, the
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification given below:
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(Rupees in lakhs)

Other
Particulars SBNs | denomination | Total
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08" November 2016 5.75 1.47 7.21
(+) Permitted receipts - 5.16 5.16
(-) Permitted payments - 4.69 4.69
(-) Amount deposited in banks 5.75 1.33 7.08
Closing cash in hand as on 30t December 2016 0.61 0.61
4.57 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated

are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in

conformity with current year’s layout.

Signatures to Note 1 to 4.57 forms integral part of accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)
sd/- sd/-

Sunil Chacko

Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Cochin International Airport
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31t March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the
Act’) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there
under. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
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the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred
to below in the Other Matters paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at
31t March 2018, and their consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

Note 4.38.1 to the financial statements regarding service tax demands / show-cause notices amounting
to 12735.44 lakhs, disputed income tax liability amounting to ¥ 8577.66 lakhs, setoff of MAT credit against
the current year tax provision, pending disposal of dispute regarding the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of the
Income tax Act in tax assessments amounting to ¥ 3008.83 lakhs, claims from contractors for capital jobs
amounting to ¥ 4113.84 lakhs, the amount of award passed by the arbitrator which has been disputed in
appeal amounting to ¥ 1339.24 lakhs, annual building tax claimed by Angamaly Municipality disputed by
the Company amounting to ¥112.24 lakhs and Local authorities claiming one time building tax disputed
by the Company amounting to ¥ 200.39 lakhs. The ultimate outcome of the above claims cannot be
determined at this stage.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other Matters
a.  We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥19885.79 lakhs as at 315t March 2018, total revenues of ¥ 2281.50 lakhs and net decrease
in cash flows amounting to ¥ 3164.87 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include
the Group’s share of net loss of ¥1125.25 lakhs for the year ended 315t March 2018, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
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the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries referred in the Other Matters
paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31%t March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
Directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31t March 2018 from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group Companies and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 4.12.1, 4.12.2, 4.38 and 4.51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

i. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts. Refer Note 4.52 to the consolidated financial statements.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

iv. The disclosures requirements relating to holding as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 08" November 2016 to 30" December 2016 which are not
relevant to these Consolidated financial statements, hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan
Place : Kochi-16 Partner

Date :28.06.2018 (M.No: 201484)
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
Section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31 March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Cochin International Airport Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to
in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31t March 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to three subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such companies
incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.

for Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan

Place : Kochi-16 Partner
Date :28.06.2018 (M.No: 201484)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31¢t MARCH 2018

Particulars Note No: As at 315t March 2018 As at 315 March 2017
ASSETS
1 | Non Current Assets
a. Property, plant and equipment 41 188395.82 176104.58
b. Capital work in progress 42 12285.69 8010.94
c. Intangible assets 42 207.98 333.96
d. Intangible assets under development 0.00
e. Financial assets
(i) Investments 43 60.95 60.95
(ii) Other Financial Assets 44 284.06 1.49
f. Income tax assets (Net) 4.5 6190.06 4391.04
g. Other non-current assets 4.6 1640.83 3071.56
2 | Current Assets
a. Inventories 4.7 4639.20 4359.96
b. Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 48 7953.15 5665.59
(i) Cash & Cash equivalents 49 1665.89 3002.33
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) 4.10 26732.37 17828.34
(iv) Other financial assets 4.11 374.88 348.37
c. Other current assets 4.12 4839.51 4076.57
Total Assets 255270.40 227255.70
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 4.13 38257.47 38257.47
b. Other Equity 414 95477.26 90007.57
Equity attributable to owners of the company 133734.73 128265.04
Non Controlling Interest 20.82 9.71
Total Equity 133755.55 128274.75
Liabilities
1 | Non Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 415 43785.00 36968.10
(ii) Other financial liabilities 416 4845.48 2795.05
b. Provisions 417 1872.56 1754.03
c. Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4.18 7592.80 4846.30
d. Other non current liabilities 4.19 17969.53 19121.73
2 | Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 4.20 1218.86 0.00
(ii) Trade Payables 4.21 2164.32 2142.96
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4.22 17764.28 18094.63
b. Other current liabilities (Net) 4.23 23633.56 12212.62
¢. Provisions 4.24 668.45 300.89
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 0.00 744.64
Total Equity and Liabilities 255270.40 227255.70

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)

;d/- o Chack sd/-
uni acko Saji K. George
Chief Financial Officer Co!npany Secr%tary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31+t MARCH 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No: 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Income
. Revenue from Operations 4.25 68610.59 57100.94
Il. | Other Income 4.26 1502.68 2164.80
1l Total Revenue 70113.27 59265.74
Expenses:
Purchase of stock in trade 10935.18 11158.67
Change in Inventories of stock in trade 4.27 (282.95) (746.50)
Employee Benefits Expenses 4.28 7045.94 6298.91
Finance Costs 4.29 4262.08 356.00
Depreciation and amortisaton expenses 4.2 11210.69 4640.01
Other Expenses 4.30 10862.57 10307.19
V. Total Expenses 44033.52 32014.28
\' Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 26079.75 27251.46
VI | Exceptional Items 4.31 728.69 0.00
VIl | Profit before tax 25351.06 27251.46
VIII | Tax expense:
a. Current tax 6222.53 7390.47
b. MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note No.4.49) (1198.27) (1710.39)
c. Tax expenses of earlier years (97.62)
d. Deferred tax 3191.37 2285.82
8118.01 7965.90
IX. | Profit for the period (VII - VIII) 17233.05 19285.56
X. | Other comprehensive income
- Items that will not be reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 4.32 (369.36) (297.05)
(Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans)
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Consolidated 128.29 97.02
Statement of Profit or Loss
XI. | Total comprehensive income for the period 16991.98 19085.53
(Profit/ Loss + Other Comprehensive Income)
XIl. | Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company 17221.94 19276.03
Non Controlling Interests 11.11 9.51
XIil. | Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the company (241.07) (200.01)
Non Controlling Interests 0.00 (0.02)
XIV | Total Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 16980.87 19076.02
Non Controlling Interests 11.11 9.51
XV | Earnings per equity share 4.33
Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 (Rs.10/-)
a. Basic 4.50 5.04
b. Diluted 4.50 5.04

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)

sd/- sd/-
Sunil Chacko Saii

aji K. George
Chief Financial Officer Co!npany Secr%tary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2018

A Equity Share Capital

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars b:‘lo:a No. of Equity Shares | Amount
Balance at April 1, 2016 3825.747 | 38257.47
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2017 414 3825.747 | 38257.47
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2018 3825.747 | 38257.47

B Other Equity

Attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Non
Particulars Capital Secur.ities General | Retained Controlling Total
Reserves ;remlum Reserves | Earnings Total Interest
eserves
Balance as on 01.04.2016 159.71 30605.98 | 6384.60 | 44140.29 [ 81290.59 0.39 | 81290.98
Capital Reserve on account of consolidation 1.09 1.09 1.09
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 19276.25 | 19276.25 9.30 | 19285.55
Other Comprehensive Income net of taxes (200.03) |  (200.03) 0.02 (200.01)
Add/ (Less):Transfer to retained eamings 0.00 0.00
Dividend paid (including tax) (10360.33) | (10360.33) (10360.33)
Balance as on 31.03.2017 160.80 30605.98 | 6384.60 | 52856.18 | 90007.57 9.71| 90017.28
Capital Reserve on account of Consolidation 0.29 0.29 0.29
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 17221.95 | 17221.95 1MA1] 17233.05
Other Comprehensive Income, net of taxes (24107 | (241.07) 0.00 (241.07)
Dividend paid (including tax) (11511.48) | (11511.48) (11511.48)
Balance as on 31.03.2018 161.09 | 30605.98 | 6384.60 | 58325.59 |95477.25 20.82 | 95498.07

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)
sd/- sd/-

Sunil Chacko

Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018

As per our separate report of even date attached
For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)

sd/-

CA. K.T. Mohanan
Partner

(M.No: 201484)
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31-3-2018 31-3-2017

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit for the year 17233.05 19285.56

Adjustments for :

Tax Expenses 7989.72 7709.18

Depreciation 11210.69 4640.01

Fixed assets written off 148.07 0.00

Loss / (Profit) on sale of fixed assets (Net) 0.73 (12.14)

Fair Value Gain on Financial Instruments (276.59) (125.58)

recongnised through P & L

Unwinding of discount 276.59 125.58

Deferred Government grant (230.80) (231.34)

Remeasurements of defined benefit Plans (241.07) (200.03)

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss / (Gain) (25.60) (55.27)

Allowance for Doubtful Debts and Advances 104.15 191.14

Interest Income (1001.19) (1333.64)

Dividend Income (2.09) (4.01)

Interest and Finance Charges 3985.50 230.42

sub-total 21938.12 10934.33

Operating Profit before working capital changes 39171.17 30219.89
Adjustments for :

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (279.24) (900.55)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (2391.71) 1161.09

(Increase) / Decrease in Repayments

and Other Receivables (1193.77) (2482.30)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable /

Other Liabilities 16817.12 12952.41 3952.71 1730.94

Cash Generated from Operations 52123.58 31950.83
Direct Tax (payments) / refunds (Net) (7786.59) (6118.68)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 44337.00 25832.15
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B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets including
Capital work in progress

Sale of Fixed Assets
Interest Received

Dividend Received

Investment in Mutual Funds / State
Govt.treasury deposits

Other Non-Current Investments

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital
including securities premium

Interest Paid
Increase / (Decrease) of Term Loan

Dividend paid including dividend tax

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain /
(Loss) on cash and cash equivalents

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(30157.38) (54150.15)
2.46 269.58
1117.32 1371.10
2.09 4.01

0.00 7000.00

0.00 0.00
(29035.51) (45505.46)
0.00 0.00
(4295.61) (40.29)
6816.90 22112.10
(11499.65) (10343.80)
(8978.36) 11728.01
6323.13 (7945.30)
20830.67 28720.70
25.60 55.27
27179.40 20830.67

Note: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year includes Rs.153.46 lakhs (Rs.141.63 lakhs) deposited in unpaid dividend
account which is earmarked for payment of dividend and Rs.18083.27 lakhs (Rs.9150.16 lakhs) held in fiduciary capacity
for meeting security related expenses at the airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation

and cannot be used for any other purpose.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob
Managing Director Director
(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106)
sd/- ) sd/-

Sunil Chacko Saji K. George

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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Cochin International Airport Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March 2018

1

2.2

Corporate Information

Cochin International Airport Limited (referred to as “CIAL” or “the Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is Room No 35,
4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Kochi - 682 031 and the principal place of
business is located in Nedumbassery, Kochi - 683 111

The company is engaged in the Airport & Allied operations. The company is mainly engaged in
constructing, developing, setting up, commissioning, operating, managing and maintaining an
Airport of International standards with all modern facilities for Domestic and International flight
operations and all other related activities such as cargo operation, duty free operations and incidental
and ancillary activities to the above.

Aero revenues of the company are regulated by Airport Economic Regulatory Authority of India
(AERA) established under an Act of Parliament under Airport Economic Regulation Act 2008.
According, as per AERA (Terms and conditions of determination of tariff for Airport Operators)
guidelines 2011 dated 22.02.2011, the company is required to get the aero tariff determined by
AERA for each control period.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 28" June 2018.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.
These financial statements of the group has been consolidated using uniform accounting policies.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period and
defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2,
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the company:

1. has power over the investee
2. is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
3. has the ability to use its power to affect his returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary over the
subsidiary and ceases when the company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements of Profit and Loss from the date the company gains control until the date when
the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or Loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company’s defined benefit obligation
(i) Useful life of property plant and equipment

(iii) Estimated useful life of intangible assets

(iv) Allowance for doubtful debts

(v) Contingencies and commitment

(vi) Impairment of investments
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2.5

Property, plant and equipment

On adoption of Ind AS, the Company retained the carrying value for all of its property, plant and
equipment as recognised in the consolidated financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind
ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as permitted by Ind AS
101 ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.

PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including
non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts and rebates. The cost of PPE includes
interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation (other than freehold land, which are stated at cost) and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress) less their residual values over the useful lives using the straight- line method
(“SLM”). Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than expenditure incurred on Golf
Course Development, has been provided on Straight Line Method (SLM), by adopting the useful lives
prescribed as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 or technically estimated useful
lives and retaining 5% of the original cost as residual value. Each component of an item of PPE with
a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately under
Component accounting. The useful lives of the significant component of the asset are estimated by
the technical evaluation of the expert committee. The useful life of the assets are as follows -

No. Typel/Category of asset l("lf‘e;gla:,i;(;
1. | Building - Civil, Earth, Pile, Masonry, Concrete, Steel, RCC works 60
2. | Building - False ceiling, handrails, facade works 20
3. | Building - Interiors, flooring, roofing, plumbing, finishing 15
4 Elevators, Escalators, VDGS, travelators, BHS, Aerobridges, Aircraft recovery 15

equipments
5. | Electrical installations, DG sets, transformers, Sign boards, Fire fighting systems, UPS 5-10
6. | HVAC systems 4-15
7. | Light Fittings 5
8. | Apron, Approach road bridge, railway overbridge 30
9. | Roads, flexible pavements 10

10. | Flexible pavements 5
11. | CUPPS, CUSS, Networking, BRS 5
12. | Solar Power Plant 25
13. | Solar Power Plant Inverters 10
14. | Leasehold Improvement 5
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The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the
amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. Fully
depreciated assets still in use are retained in financial statements.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development
Capital work-in-progress/intangible assets under development are carried at cost, comprising direct
cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at its
cost, which shall include transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16’s requirements for cost model, i.e., at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. An investment property is de-recognised upon
disposal or when the investment property permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period which the property is de-recognised. As such the company is
not having any property to be classified as investment property as on 31.03.2018.

Intangible assets

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line over their estimated useful life of 5 years. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
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2.10.2

2.1

measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified
as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income based on its business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade Receivables

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of
financial asset is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit loss to be measured through a loss
allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables that
do not constitute a financing transaction. Impairment loss allowance is based on a simplified
approach as permitted by Ind AS 109. As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix
to determine the impairment loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company’s Balance
Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.
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The Company de-recognizes financial liabilities only when Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale and an
active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of stores, spares and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value. However, stores and spare items held for use in providing the services are not written down
below cost if the services are expected to be provided at or above cost. Cost of inventories comprises
of purchase cost and cost of procurement net of on a weighted average basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
correct management estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will not be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the accounts, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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2.15.2

2.15.3

2154

2.15.5

2.15.6

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Rendering of services

Revenue from airport operations are recognised on accrual basis, net of service tax, applicable
discounts and collection charges, when services are rendered and it is probable that an economic
benefit will be received, which can be quantified reliably. Aero operations include landing and
parking of aircraft, royalty on fuel supply, operation and maintenance of passenger boarding, cargo
operations and other allied services.

Income from life membership fees of the golf course is recognised over a period of forty years in
respect of individual members, being the estimated period of the membership and on the actual
period of membership of ten years in respect of corporate members.

Other incomes are recognised on accrual basis except when there are significant uncertainties.

Royalties

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably). Royalty arrangements that are based on production,
sales and other measures are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable except the interest income received from customers for delayed
payments which is accounted on the basis of reasonable certainty/realisation.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset.

Rental income

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants
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related to income are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, Government grants whose primary condition is that the
Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the balance sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
systematic basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan for
employees. The contributions paid/payable under the scheme during the year are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Defined Benefit Plans

Defined benefit plan covers the obligation of the company towards the gratuity benefits. For defined
benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately - with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
Defined benefit costs categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

- net interest expense or income; and

- remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the line ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted as
past service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation limited to the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The Company has a policy on compensated absence which are both accumulating and non-
accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absence is determined
by Actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using
projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of
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unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating
compensated absence is recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Long Term Employee Benefits is categorised as follows:
- Service Cost
- Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

- Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of cost
of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expenditure for the period in
which they are incurred.

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (3).

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. As at the reporting date, foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date and the exchange gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.

Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’)
The Company has opted to charge its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure to the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Exceptional Items

Incomes/Expenses which are not forming part of regular operations and are material and are in
accordance with paras 85, 86, 97 and 98 of Ind AS 1 are classified as Exceptional items. Such items
are disclosed as separate line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liability during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
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considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and laws)
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related
deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses,
only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets-unrecognized or recognised,
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable / no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is
written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s Earnings per share comprise of the net
profit after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in
computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
deriving the basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of shares, of any
shares, which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dividend to Equity shareholders
Dividend to Equity shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from shareholders equity
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Standards issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2018 has notified the following new amendments to Ind AS which the Company has not
applied as they are effective subsequent years as mentioned below:

Ind AS 21: The effect of change in foreign exchange rates (applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after 01.04.2018)

Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with customers (applicable for annual periods beginning on or
after 01.04.2018)

Ind AS 116: Leases (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 01.04.2019)
Ind AS 21: The effect of change in foreign exchange rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transaction that include receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rates to use on initial recognition of related asset expense or income when
an entity has received or paid advance consideration in foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 01.04.2018. The company is evaluating the impact of this
amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition
standards Ind AS 18 - Revenue, Ind AS 11 - Construction Contracts when it becomes effective.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of 5 step model for the analysis of revenue transactions.
The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when an entity transfer control of good
or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainties of
revenue and cash flows arising from entities contract wit customers. The company is evaluating the
requirements of the Ind AS 115 and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.”

Ind AS 116 - Leases

As Ind AS 116 substantially carry forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17, a lessor
will continue to classify its leases as operating lease or finance lease and to account for those two
types of leases differently. Ind AS 116 eliminates the classification of leases for the leasees as either
operating leases or finance leases as required by Ind AS 17 and instead introduces a single lease
accounting model whereby a leasee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term i.e., greater than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value and to recognise
depreciation of leased assets separately from interest on leased liabilities in the income statements.
Ind AS 116 is effective from 01.04.2019.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.51

4.5.2

Non Current Investments

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Unquoted

Investments carried at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
1. Investment in Equity Instruments of Companies

58,800 (58,800) shares of Rs.100 (100) each in
Kannur International Airport Limited

2. Investment in Shares of Co-operative Society

215 (215) shares of Rs.1000 each, fully paid up
in Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators'
Co-operative Society Ltd.

Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments

58.80 58.80
2.15 2.15
60.95 60.95

Other Financial Assets (Non Current)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

a. Balance with Banks
Margin Money Deposits
b. Others
Bank Deposits with Maturity more than 12 months

Bank Deposits with Maturity More than 12 months
(which are held under lien with Commercial tax
authorities)

1.56 0.00
281.57 0.00
0.93 1.49
284.06 1.49

Income Tax (Assets)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Income Tax Paid (net) (Refer Note 4.5.1 & 4.5.2)

6190.06

4391.04

6190.06

4391.04

Income tax paid (net) represents the Advance tax and Tax deducted at source relating to various
years, net of provision made based on book profit tax and also include the payments made against
disputed demands amounting to 883.78 lakhs (Rs.662 lakhs), the disputes of these are at various
stages of appeal.

The Income Tax Assessments of the Company have been completed upto and including the
Assessment Year 2015-16. Assessments for the remaining periods are pending. The major area
of dispute in income tax assessment is with regard to the eligible claim of deduction u/s 80IA of the
Income Tax Act 1961. For the Assessment Years 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2010-11, 2011-12 &
2012-13 the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) [CIT(A)] had allowed the claim of deduction
u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961. Of the above, the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal had earlier
set aside the assessments with respect to AY 2005-06 to AY 2007-08 to the assessing officer for
fresh consideration. The assessing officer had disallowed the claim u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act,

142



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.81

24% Annual Report 2017-18

for which appeals were filed with the CIT(A). The Company had also filed an appeal before the
Hon’ble High Court of Kerala against the order of the Hon’ble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The
Hon’ble High Court of Kerala has remanded the matter back to the assessing officer to consider the
matter afresh. The Company has now filed appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court against the
order of the High Court of Kerala. For the Assessment Years 2008-09 and 2009-10, the CIT(A) had
allowed the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961, against which appeal filed by the
Department is pending for disposal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT), Cochin Bench.
For the Assessment Years 2013-14 to 2015-16, the appeal filed against the assessment before the
CIT(A) is pending for disposal. The Company is hopeful of favourable decisions in the matter and
disputed liability is disclosed under contingent liability.

Other non-current Assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

a. Capital Advances
b. Security Deposits

1497.74 2934.09
143.10 137.48
1640.83 3071.56

Inventories: (measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value)

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Stock in Trade 4183.64 3900.70
Stores & Spares 455.56 459.27
4639.20 4359.96

Trade Receivables
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

(Rupees in lakhs)

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

7335.44 3220.69
617.71 2444 .90
311.41 207.56

8264.56 5873.15
311.41 207.56

7953.15 5665.59

Allowances for credit Loss

The company has considered a provisioning matrix based approach for computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix has been designed by considering
the expected credit loss on account of two factors 1. delay loss 2. Percentage probability of default
risk. Appropriate discount factors based on the time value of money has been reckoned for computing
the percentage of delay loss. For computing the percentage probability of default risk, appropriate
percentages were arrived by analysing historic credit loss experience among various customer
classes. A blended percentage by considering the average of delay loss percentage and percentage
probability of default risk has been considered for arriving at the expected credit loss provision.
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4.8.2

4.9

4.10

4.101

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance at beginning of the year

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

Balance at the end of the year

207.56 0.00
104.15 207.56
311.71 207.56

Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts

In Deposit Accounts (maturity < 3 months)
Cash on hand

1453.70 732.90
191.23 2250.40
20.97 19.03
1665.89 3002.33

Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance with Banks

In Deposit Accounts
(i) maturity 3-12 months
(i) maturity > 12 months)

In earmarked accounts
(i) unpaid/unclaimed dividend accounts
(ii) margin money against bank guarantees
(iii) PSF (SC) Escrow bank balance

8297.91 7533.04
0.00 693.50
153.46 141.63
198.49 310.29
18082.51 9149.88
26732.37 17828.34

Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks include Rs.18082.51 lakhs (Rs.9149.88 lakhs) being the amount earmarked
for meeting security related expenses at the Airport in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India, and cannot be used for any other purpose.

b Balances with banks in deposit accounts include time deposits [maturity period of more than
12 months from the reporting date - Rs.0 lakhs (Rs.693 lakhs) maturity period of more than 3
months but less than 12 months from the reporting date - Rs.8297.91 lakhs (Rs7533.04 lakhs)]
which can be withdrawn by the company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the

principal.

c Balance with banks in deposit accounts of Rs.197.99 lakhs (Rs.310.29 lakhs), are held under
lien. Further deposit with maturity period exceeding 12 months of Rs.1.56 lakhs (0 lakhs) which
is disclosed under other non-current financial assets.
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Unbilled Revenue

Interest Accrued on fixed deposits

Security Deposits

Other Receivables (under contractual rights receivable)

260.54 129.70
100.79 216.93
0.00 1.75
13.55 0.00
374.88 348.37

Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Advances other than Capital Advances :

(i) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received

(i) Balances with Central Excise, Customs &
other Authorities

1267.64 588.84
3571.87 3487.73
4839.51 4076.57

As per the amendment to the Finance Act in the union budget 2016 all those contracts for the original
works in Airports for which the agreement was entered prior to 1.3.2015, even though service tax has
been paid, the assesse was made eligible to claim the refund of the service tax paid to the contractor
who has remitted the service tax to the Central Government account. Prior to this amendment
Government had withdrawn the exemption of service tax for the original works in Airports. The
refund process requires submission of the certificate from the Civil Aviation Ministry to prove that
the agreement was entered into prior to 01.03.2015. The company had entered three such contracts
with Larsen & Toubro Limited, GHV India Pvt. Ltd & Goodwill Power Pvt. Ltd. CIAL applied for the
refund as per the provision in the Finance Act and as per the amendments to the notification. The
Assistant Commissioner had initially denied our claim. However, CIAL has filed the appeal before
the Commissioner (Appeals). The refund claim does not have the question of law which needs
to be interpreted but the clear matter of processing the refund based on the certificate issued by
Civil Aviation Ministry and service tax payment Invoices and the disclaimer certificate issued by
the respective contractor being the contracts for the works related to the original works of Airports.
CIAL is waiting for the hearing by Commissioner Appeals where it is hopeful that the Appellate
Authority will take cognizance of the facts and allow the refund claim. The amount of refund claim is
Rs 1163 lakhs which has been reduced from respective project assets relating to the new International
Terminal (T3) and not availed the depreciation too. The management feels that the refund claim will
sustain before the Appellate Authority and CIAL expects the refund of service tax hence reduced the
value of the respective asset to that extend. Status quo of the matter remains as such as on reporting
date.

The refund claim which was filed within the due date before the Assistant Commissioner of Central
Excise & Service Tax amounting to Rs. 674 lakhs is for the Additional Customs Duty which was
paid on the imports which were classified under Customs Tariff Heading 9801 meant for project
imports. The Company was allowed the imports for the new International Terminal (T3) construction
as project imports eligible for concession in the customs duty. The projects import is allowed by the
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Government for the economic development of the country. As per the Cenvat credit rules, input credit
is allowed for the Additional Customs duty for the imports under tariff head 9801. It is also stated in
the rules that the input credit cannot be utilised to pay service tax. Since the rules has allowed the
availing of input credit but has placed restriction on its utilisation while payment of service tax on
output services, the option available to CIAL is by service refund claim which has been preferred. The
refund claim has been initially denied by the Assistant Commissioner without considering the merits
of the case and hence CIAL has filed the appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals). Itis pertinent to
note that in GST Additional Customs duty is allowed to all the Industries including service providers.
The management feels that the refund claim would sustain before the Appellate Authority and CIAL
expects the refund claim to be ordered in favour of CIAL and hence the value of expected refund has
been deducted from the respective project assets during the financial year 2016-17 and as such no
depreciation was also claimed. Status quo of the matter remains as such as on 31.03.2018.

Equity Share Capital:

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)

Authorised:
40,00,00,000 (40,00,00,000) Equity Shares of

40000.00 40000.00
Par Value Rs. 10/- each
Issued and Subscribed and fully paid:
38,25,74,749 (38,25,74,749) Equity Shares of Par Value

38257.47 38257.47
of Rs. 10/- each"

38257.47 38257.47

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars No. of shares Rupees No. of shares Rupees
(In lakhs) (In lakhs) (In lakhs) (In lakhs)
No. of shares as at the beginning of
i : 3825.75 38257.47 3825.75 38257.47
the financial year
Add: Shares issued during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
No. of shares as at the end of the
) . 3825.75 38257.47 3825.75 38257.47
financial year

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share carry a right to dividend. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars
% No. of shares % No. of shares
His Excellency, The Governor of Kerala 32.42% 12,40,29,206 | 32.42% 12,40,29,206
Mr. N.V. George 9.45% 3,61,70,373 11.97% 4,57,78,415
Mr. Yusuffali M.A. 9.73% 3,72,31,779 9.73% 3,72,31,779
M/s. Synthite Industries Ltd. 6.53% 2,49,84,020 6.53% 2,49,84,020
Other Equity - Other Equity consist of the following:
Particulars (Rupess in iakhs) | (Rupess in iakha)
(a) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 160.80 159.71
Transitional Adjustment of Ind AS
égﬂs(g%(;t:gz to Capital Reserve on account of 0.29 1.09
Total (a) 161.09 160.80
(b) Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance 30605.98 30605.98
Total (b) 30605.98 30605.98
(c) General Reserve
Opening Balance 6384.60 6384.60
Total (c) 6384.60 6384.60
(d) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 52856.18 44140.29
Add: Profit for the year 17233.05 19285.56
R e Reressrementofdfned enviree | eton| @00
Less: Non Controlling Interests 11.10 9.31
69837.06 63216.51
Less: Appropriations
(a) Dividend on Equity Shares (9564.37) (8607.93)
(b) Tax on Dividend (1947.11) (1752.40)
(11511.48) (10360.33)
Total (d) 58325.58 52856.18
Total attributable to owners of the Company (at+b+c+d) 95477.26 90007.57
(e) Non-Controlling Interest *
(a) Share Capital 0.61 0.61
O bess) o e e yonsens
Total (e) 20.82 9.71
TOTAL 95498.07 90017.28

*Non-controlling interest represents the shares subscribed by the persons as the Officers of Holding
Company as subscribers to the Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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4.151

4.15.2

4.16

Nature of Reserves

(a) Capital Reserve
Under the previous Indian GAAP, grants in the nature of promoters contribution which are not
repayable are treated as Capital Reserve.

(b) Securities Premium Reserve
Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is
utilised in accordance of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(c) General Reserve
The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component
of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the
general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividends

The dividends declared by the Company are based on the profits available for distribution as reported
in the financial statements of the company. For the year 2016-17, the directors had recommended
and shareholders had approved a dividend of 25% (Rs.2.50 per share). The dividend was distributed
during the Financial Year 2017-18 amounting Rs.9564.37 lakhs along with dividend distribution tax
of Rs.1947.11 lakhs which have been accounted in the current year. The Directors have proposed
a dividend of 25% for the FY 2017-18, which is subject to the approval of shareholders in Annual
General Meeting. No provision for the same have been recognised as liability of Financial Year
2017-18 by virtue of Ind AS provisions in this regard.

Non Current Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Secured:

Term Loans From Bank (Refer Note 4.15.1 and 4.15.2)

43785.00

36968.10

43785.00

36968.10

Term Loan represents the disbursement of the project term loan of Rs.50000 lakhs sanctioned by
M/s. Federal Bank Limited for the T3 International Terminal. The Term loan together with interest is
repayable in 156 months in equal quarterly installments and first such installment shall commence
only after a period of 36 months from March 2015 (i.e., the date of first disbursement of loan),which is
schedule on June 2018. The repayment holiday of 36 months is applicable only for Principal amount.
Interest and other charges are payable as and when due. The applicable interest rate of the loan is
the base rate of Federal bank from time to time and the present rate of interest is 8.9% p.a. (9.63% p.a).

The term loan is secured by exclusive first charge on Project assets by way of simple mortgage of
the portion of land earmarked for the project by registration of Deed of Mortgage along with the new
International Terminal building and also having second charge by way of hypothecation of fixed
assets (excluding land and building, runways Golf course and vehicles) which were already charged
as collateral security to the overdraft limit of Rs.25.00 crores sanctioned to the Company.

Non Current Borrowings

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
Security Deposits including Retention Moneys 4845.48 2795.05
4845.48 2795.05
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Provision for leave benefits
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Employee Benefits (Note No: 4.35)

1620.73 1442.53
251.83 311.50
1872.56 1754.03

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

A. Deferred Tax Liability

B. Deferred Tax Asset
On Provisions
On Others

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A-B

On Property, Plant and Equipment

11265.05 7987.88
(978.51) (767.77)
(2693.75) (2373.82)
7592.80 4846.29

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax liabilities are

as follows :

Recognised in

201718 Opening Reco_gnlsed N1 other comprehensive Gtosiiy
balance profit or loss . Balance
income
Deferred tax (liabilities) /
assets in relation to :
Property, plant and equipment 7987.88 327717 0.00 11265.05
Defined Benefit Obligations (695.56) (46.63) (128.44) (870.63)
Provision for doubtful debts (72.21) (35.67) 0.00 (107.88)
Unused Tax Credits (596.71) (316.42) 0.00 (913.13)
Unused Tax Losses (1722.88) 0.00 (1722.88)
Others (54.23) (3.51) 0.00 (57.74)
Total 4846.29 2874.94 (128.44) 7592.80
Obenin Recognised Recognised in Closin
2016-17 P g in profit or | other comprehen- g
balance . Balance
loss sive income
Deferred tax (liabilities) /
assets in relation to :
Property, plant and equipment 5657.91 2329.97 0.00 7987.88
Defined Benefit Obligations (543.21) (55.03) (97.32) (695.56)
Provision for doubtful debts 0.00 (72.21) 0.00 (72.21)
Unused Tax Credits (436.21) (160.50) 0.00 (596.71)
Unused Tax Losses (1815.60) 92.72 0.00 (1722.88)
Others (44.58) (9.65) 0.00 (54.23)
Total 2818.31 2125.30 (97.32) 4846.30
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4.20

4.21

4.211

4.22

Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club
Others -
(i) Deferred Revenue arising from Government grants
(ii) Deferred Revenue arising from royalty/licence fees

(iii) Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Retention Money

2266.46 2348.56
1978.72 2209.51
13491.89 14281.79
232.47 281.87
17969.53 19121.73

Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Secured Loans

Loan repayable on demand from Bank

1218.86

0.00

1218.86

0.00

Trade Payables

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Trade Payables
Others (Refer Note No: 4.22.1)

0.00 0.00
2164.32 2142.96
2164.32 2142.96

There is no defined credit period. The dues are settled based on the credit policy extended by the
vendors. The company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables

are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

There are no amount overdue to any enterprises which qualify under the definition of micro and small
enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006.

Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note
4.15.1 and 4.15.2)

Security Deposits including Retention
Interest accrued
Unpaid Dividends (Refer Note No.4.22.1)
Other Payables

i) Liability towards Capital Contracts

5000.00 947.90
4996.38 5288.78
0.00 310.11
153.46 141.63
7614.44 11406.21
17764.28 18094.63
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Unpaid dividends do not include any amount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor

Protection Fund.

Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Unexpired Membership fees for CIAL Golf Club

Revenue Received in advance

- Deferred Revenue arising from Government
grants

- Deferred Revenue arising from royalty/licence
fees

Other Payables
- Statutory Dues
- Advance from Customers

- Others

82.10 82.25
217.80 217.80
1332.50 136.21
1781.67 1046.34
96.77 670.38
20122.72 10059.65
23633.56 12212.62

Other liabilities include Rs.18,872.92 lakhs (Rs.9906.52 lakhs) representing liability (Net of expenses
incurred) towards security related expenses to be incurred out of the security component of Passenger
Service Fees (PSF- SC) collected by the Company from embarking passengers in fiduciary capacity,
in accordance with guidelines issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India. Balance in
separate escrow bank accounts operated exclusively for this purpose are disclosed in Note 4.10.

During the year, an amount of Rs 7321.91 lakhs (Rs.6681.90 lakhs) collected as the security
component of PSF (SC)(Net of service tax) has been treated as liability towards security related
expenses and an amount of Rs.5853.13 lakhs (Rs.4214 lakhs) (excluding taxes) was incurred as
security expenses.

Short-term provisions

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits
(Refer Note No.4.35)

Provision for pay revision 300.00

Provision for leave benefits 221.04 217.26

Provision for Gratuity 147.41 83.63
668.45 300.89
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Revenue from operations

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Sale of Services
Aero Revenue

Landing Fee
Parking & Housing Fee
Aerobridge Charges
Passenger Service Fee
Income from CUTE
X-Ray Inspection Charges
Inline X Ray Screening Charges
Royalty*
Income from Cargo Operations
Aircraft Certification
Headset Services
Rentals for MRO Hangar / Ground support services
Aircraft Parking

*includes Rs.95.85 lakhs (Rs.60.45 lakhs) Notional
Income on account of Ind AS adjustments

Non Aero Revenue
Rent & Services *
Rental Income from Office Space
Royalty
Security Charges
Public Admission Fees
Income From Trade Fair Centre
Income from Golf Course and Facilities
Sale of Electricity
Diploma Courses
Others

*includes Rs.164.99 lakhs (Rs.53.21 lakhs) Notional
Income on account of Ind AS adjustments

Sale of Duty Free Products

Revenue from Operations

9246.83 6279.61
111.42 80.91
705.35 625.41
3942.57 3597.94
4161.62 3323.33
135:53 111.62
2367.43 2396.58
9841.58 6266.20
2981.05 2254.81
526.64 510.53
293.60 275.07
163.28 21.14
4.15 -
34481.05 25743.16
9173.79 7488.94
9.82 4.84
401.69 612.37
16.57 22.28
235.85 398.66
373.53 259.72
240.30 252.56
0.00 0.00
28.56 38.93
13.23 5.53
10493.34 9083.84
23636.20 22273.94
68610.59 57100.94
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Interest/ Income received on financial assets-
carried at amortised cost

Interest Income

Income/Gain from Current Investments
Others:

Sale of Tender Documents

Foreign Exchange Rate Variance (net)

Other non-operating income

Reversal of provision no longer required

Fair valuation gain - Retention Money

Deferred Government Grants

1001.19 1333.64
2.09 4.01
2.55 3.77
25.60 370.12
224.57 195.66
0.15 14.34
15.74 11.92
230.80 231.34

1502.68 2164.80

Change in Stock in Trade

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Opening Stock in Trade
Less: Closing Stock in Trade

Changes in stock in trade

3900.70 3154.19
(4183.64) (3900.70)
(282.95) (746.50)

Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses

6367.63 5624.38
483.10 478.55
195.20 195.98

7045.94 6298.91

Finance Costs

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Interest Expenses:
Other borrowing costs

(i) Unwinding of discount on security deposits

3985.50 230.42
276.59 125.58
4262.08 356.00

153




Cochin International Airport Limited

Other Expenses

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Repairs to Building

Repair to Plant, Equipment & Runway
Repairs to Office Equipments

Operation & Maintenance for Solar Plant
Farming Expenses, net of Income

Share Issue Expenses

Safety, Security & Immigration Expenses
Management Fees (Duty Free Shop)
Discount allowed (Duty Free Shop) (Net)
Hangar Operational Expenses

Power, Water and Fuel Charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Housekeeping Expenses

Consumption of Stores, Spares & Consumables
Insurance

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Postage and Telephone

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note No: 4.39)
Advertisement and Publicity

Loss on Fixed Assets sold/demolished/discarded
Professional and Consultancy charges
Bank Charges

Bad debts written off

Allowance for Doubtful Debts/Advances
Renewal and Registration Charges
Sitting Fee - Directors

Preliminary Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Note No: 4.48)

835.26 739.19
1696.70 1188.30
52.34 34.42
81.23 50.28
7.61 11.80
0.00 112.50
719.74 435.89
760.12 808.14
483.16 245.77
8.36 0.00
1057.27 676.73
105.52 101.24
1083.27 796.40
347.95 280.41
382.09 251.61
38.25 33.37
584.65 1142.47
62.08 56.78
30.70 28.40
230.44 195.07
14.21 11.30
221.92 377.91
149.99 2.72
156.43 106.94
92.29 77.99
0.00 1058.88
104.15 191.14
29.22 22.21
22.32 20.37
13.04 64.22
884.60 774.46
607.67 410.29
10862.57 10307.19
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Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Exceptional Item

Differential value of assets consequent to refunding of
the amount utilised for asset acquisition from PSF (SC)
Escrow account - (Refer Note No.4.44)

Less: Consequent reversal of Provision for Income Tax
relating to above

Net Amount

1306.79 0.00
578.10 0.00
728.69 0.00

Other Comprehensive Income-ltems that will not be reclassified to profit

or loss

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans

(369.36)

(297.05)

(369.36)

(297.05)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 - Earnings per Share

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Profit after taxation ( Amount in lakhs)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each (fully paid-up)

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted

17233.05 19276.03
3825.75 3825.75
4.50 5.04

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Profit before tax

Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2016-17:
34.608%)

Effect of exceptional items debited to Statement of
Profit and Loss

Effect of expense that are not deductible in determining
taxable profit

Effect on deferred tax balances due to change in
income tax rate

Effect of Increase in PBT due to Ind AS adjustment

Effect of difference in WDV as per Companies and
Income Tax Act

Effect of Interest included in Tax Expense

Effect of Non Taxable subsidiaries and effect of
differential tax rate

Effect of unused Tax Credits
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation

to current tax of prior years

25351.06
8773.50

252.18
198.45

0.00
0.00
(1.03)
0.00
(1.83)
0.00
(97.62)

27251.46
9431.19

0.00
127.16

(57.72)
0.00
0.00

30.00

(53.79)

270.00
0.00
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4.35
4.351

4.35.2

Others

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation
to current tax of prior years

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

(26.16) (2.33)
316.41 (68.25)
9413.89 9676.26

The tax rate used for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of
34.608% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

Disclosures required under Ind AS 19 - “Employee Benefits”

Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on

account of defined contribution plans:

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Employers contribution to Provident Fund

483.10

478.55

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity: Funded Obligation

a. Key Assumptions

One of the principal assumptions is the discount rate, which should be based upon the market
yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the

liabilities.

The financial and demographic assumptions employed for the calculations as at the end of previous

period and current period are as follows

Actuarial Assumptions As at As at
315t March 2018 31t March 2017
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.63% 7.17%
Expected return on plan assets 7.63% 8.00%
Salary escalation rate* 6.50% 6.50%
Attrition Rate 4.00% 4.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Mortality rate Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate | (2006-08) Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b. Reconciliation of present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Benefits Paid

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)
1536.44 1179.43
133.60 117.02
115.59 93.99
229.65 155.84
(44.06) (9.84)
1971.23 1536.44
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c. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1141.30 983.85
Expected return on plan assets 100.17 78.31
Actuarial gain / (loss) (12.64) 88.98
Contributions 387.20 0.00
Benefits paid (44.06) (9.84)
Assets distributed on settlement (if applicable) 0.00 0.00
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1571.97 1141.30

d. Description of Plan Assets

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Insurer Managed Funds (SBI Life)

1571.97

1141.30

e. Net (Asset) / Liability recognized in the Balance
Sheet as at year end

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized
as (asset) / liability in the Balance Sheet

1971.23 1536.44
1571.97 1141.30
399.25 395.14

f. Expenses recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
Past Service Cost (if applicable)

Total expenses recognized in the statement of profit
and loss for the year

Actual Return on Planned Assets

133.60 117.02
115.59 93.99
(100.17) (78.31)
0.00 0.00
149.03 132.69
87.53 167.29

d. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Demographic Assumption

changes in DBO B 0.00
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Financial Assumption

changes in DBO (87.15) (131.66)
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Experience on DBO 318.60 (41.32)
Return on Plan Assets (Greater) / Less than Discount rate 12.64 88.97
Return on reimbursement rights (excluding interest 0.00 0.00
income)

phanges in asset ceiling / onerous liability (excluding 0.00 0.00
interest Income)

Immediate Recogmtlon of (Gain) / Losses - Other Long 0.00 0.00
Term Benefits

Total actuarial (gain) / loss included in OCI 244.09 (84.01)
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4.35.3

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences (Vesting and Non Vesting): Unfunded Obligation

a. Key Assumptions

One of the principal assumptions is the discount rate, which should be based upon the market
yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the

liabilities.

The financial and demographic assumptions employed for the calculations as at the end of previous

period and current period are as follows -

Actuarial Assumptions

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Discount Rate (per annum)

Salary escalation rate*

Attrition Rate
Mortality rate

Leave Accounting & Consumption Technique
Proportion of leave availment

Proportion of encashment in service/Lapse
Proportion of encashment on separation

7.63% for Earned
Leave 7.63% for
Sick Leave
6.5% F5Y & 6.5%
TA for Earned
Leave and Sick
Leave
4.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate
LIFO
5% for Earned
Leave 100% for
Sick Leave
0%

95% for
Earned Leave
0% for Sick Leave

7.17% for Earned
Leave 7.17% for
Sick Leave
6.5% F5Y & 6.5%
TA for Earned
Leave and Sick
Leave
4.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate
LIFO
5% for Earned
Leave 100% for
Sick Leave
0%

95% for
Earned Leave
0% for Sick Leave

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotions and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b. Reconciliation of present value of obligation

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Transfer of liability

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Benefits Paid

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

1733.06 1471.20
139.16 122.52
119.07 100.23
138.84 227.40

(214.00) (188.29)

1916.13 1733.06
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c. Net (Asset) / Liability recognized in the Balance
Sheet as at year end

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net present value of unfunded obligation recognized
as (asset) / liability in the Balance Sheet

1916.13 1733.06
0.00 0.00
1916.13 1733.06

d. Expenses recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
Past Service Cost (if applicable)

Total expenses recognized in the statement of
profit and loss for the year

139.16 122.52
119.07 100.23
138.84 227.40

0.00 0.00
397.07 450.15

e. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period

Total expenses recognized in the statement of
profit and loss for the year

(127.07)

(213.05)

(127.07)

(213.05)

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied

upon by the auditors.

Description of plan characteristics and associated risks

Gratuity

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the period of service at the time of separation and paid as lump sum. There is a vesting
period of 5 years.

Earned Leave

The leave scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the leave count at the time of separation and paid as lump sum.

Sick Leave

The sick leave scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at
the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn
salary and the sick leave count at the time of separation and paid as lump sum.

These plans typical expose the company to actuarial risks such as : investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk, salary risk, demographic risks and asset liability mismatch.

159



Cochin International Airport Limited

4.36

4.37

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan
liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the
return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference tothe bestestimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the
plan's liability.

Demographic risk

This is the risk of volatility of results due to unexpected nature of
decrementsthatinclude mortality attrition, disabilityand retirement.
The effects of these decrement on the DBO depends upon the
combination salaryincrease, discountrate, and vesting criteriaand
therefore not very straight forward. It is important not to overstate
withdrawal rate because the cost of retirement benefit of a short
caring employees will be less compared to long service
employees.

Asset Liability Mismatch

This will come into play unless the funds are invested with a term
of the assets replicating the term of the liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31stMarch 2018 by Actuary. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The current service cost and the
benefits expense’ line items in the

net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee
statement of profit and loss

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

Disclosures under Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Borrowing costs capitalised

0.00

3436.95

0.00

3436.95

Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Indian Accounting Standard — 24 on
Related Party Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting standards) Rules 2006.
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4.37.1 Related parties and nature of relationship
a) Subsidiaries
Proportion of ownership
L Place of interest and voting power
Name of Subsidiary P;::Tf\;irt)al incorporation held by the Company
y and operation As at As at
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Qoghm International Aviation services Alrcraft India 99.99% 99 99%
Limited Maintenance
CIAL Infrastructures Limited Power India 99.99% | 99.99%
Generation
Alr Kerala International Services A|rI|n§ India 99 99% 99.99%
Limited Operation
C.IA.L Dutyfree and Retail Services Dutyfree India 99 90% 99 90%
Limited Business
Inland
Kgrgla Waterways and Infrastructures waterways India 99 99% Nil
Limited :
transportation
b) Enterprises where significant influence of Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives exists:
Kochi International Airport Society (KIAS)
Cochin International Airport Taxi Operators’ Co-operative Society Ltd.
CIAL Charitable Trust
c) Key Managerial Personnel
Sri. V.J. Kurian - Managing Director
Sri. Sunil Chacko - CFO
Sri. Saji K. George - Company Secretary
4.37.2 Description of Transactions

Enterprises having
significant influence/
where control exists

Total
Nature of Transaction

31t March 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

31t March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs)

31t March 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

31t March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Debit for meeting expenses
Kochi International Airport Society

Contribution to CIAL Charitable Trust
out of CSR Funds

Providing of services

Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

a) Surcharge received

1.02

85.00

54.19

1.14

0.00

51.53

1.02

85.00

54.19

1.14

0.00

51.53
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Receipt of Services

(a) Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

a) Taxi Hire Charges
Outstanding as on Balance sheet date
Investments:

Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

Receivable:
Kochi International Airport Society

Cochin International Airport Taxi
Operators' Co-operative Society Ltd.

Payable:

Kochi International Airport Society

6.42
0.00

215

7.64

4.31

0.00

5.30
0.00

2.15

6.61

3.57

0.00

6.42 5.30
0.00 0.00
2.15 2.15
7.64 6.61
4.31 3.57
0.00 0.00

Details of transactions with key managerial personnel

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

Salary, Allowances and Other Benefits
To Sri. V.J. Kurian, Managing Director*
To Sri. Sunil Chacko, Chief Financial Officer
To Sri. Saji K. George, Company Secretary

41.87 3.19
25.53 24.13
34.17 34.18
101.57 61.49

*(Sri. V.J. Kurian, Managing Director, has not claimed/paid any salary and allowance except
medical reimbursements of medical expenditures till 28" February 2017 as he was drawing salary/
remuneration from Government of Kerala as an Additional Chief Secretary. CIAL has paid him
salary w.e.f 015t March 2017 onwards.)

Sitting Fees paid to Non Executive Directors As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Sri. Babu Erumala Mathew 4,75,000.00 2,75,000.00
Sri. Roy Paul (Independent Director) 4,50,000.00 3,75,000.00
Smt. Ramani A.K. (Independent Director) 3,00,000.00 3,75,000.00
Sri. George Nereaparam Vareed 2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00
Sri. C.V. Jacob 1,00,000.00 1,50,000.00

15,75,000.00 14,25,000.00
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4.38 The details of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are as under. (Disclosed in terms of
Ind AS -37 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets)

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts:

(i) Service tax demands pending on appeal # 3207.75 3231.37
(including Rs.1505.96 lakhs (Rs. 1474.56
lakhs) in respect of which favourable orders
have been received, though further contested
by department and Rs.1457.25 lakhs - (Rs.
1362.35 lakhs) in respect of which favourable
orders have been received on similar issues
in earlier years Rs.104.21 lakhs (Rs.102.83
lakhs) remitted against the above demands
under protest has been carried under Loans
& Advances.

(i)  Income tax demands pending on appeal (in 8577.66 7481.04
respect of which favourable orders have been
received on similar issues in earlier years,
though further contested by the department).
Rs.662 lakhs remitted against the above
demands under protest has been carried
under Loans & Advances.

(i)  Setoff of MAT credit against the current year 3008.83 4264.46
tax provision pending disposal of dispute
regarding the claim of deduction u/s 80IA of
the Income Tax Act in tax assessments.

(iv)  Claims for higher compensation on Acquisition 0.00 23.77
of land (excluding interest) disputed by the
company and pending before various courts.

(v)  Claims from Contractors for capital jobs payable 4113.84 3889.57
as per Arbitration award, disputed by the
Company before various courts.

(vi)  Claims from Director General of Police, Kerala 0.00 74.52
towards deputation of manpower in earlier
years, not accepted by the Company.

2 Ministry of Civil Aviation vide its order has claimed 0.00 8499.13
refund of capital expenditures met out of PSF
(Security Component) / Escrow Fund. The operation
of the order was stayed by High Court of Kerala.
Any unfavourable decision of High Court can lead
refund of capital expenditures incurred from inception
of fund to till date.

3 Annual Building tax claimed by Angamaly Municipality 112.24 0.00
based on wrong building classification has been
disputed by the company and appealed with LSGD
tribunal, Trivandrum.
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4.38.2

4.38.3

4.39

4.40

4.41

4 Local authorities while raising the demand notice for
One Time Building Tax of new international Terminal
(T3) has included the areas of buildings in the airport
for which already one time taxes up to the period
of FY 2016 was paid by CIAL. Further the tax rate
applied for this area is also at the revised rate. An
appeal was filed against this demand notice with
R D O, Fort Kochi, which is pending for final disposal.

5 Letter of Credit.
6 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the group.

7 Award passed by the Arbitrator which has been
disputed in appeal.

Total

200.39 0.00
1103.10 102.36
236.85 1894.78
1339.24 1339.24
21899.90 30800.23

# Show cause notices received from service tax authorities aggregating to Rs.9527.69 lakhs
(Rs.5950.88 lakhs), (including interest and penalty) have not been considered as contingent
liability, since formal demands have not been raised and in the opinion of the management these

notices are not sustainable.

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account - Rs.20189.81 lakhs

(Rs. 22017.42 lakhs).

Provision and/or payments in respect of Auditor’s Remuneration

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018
(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2017
(Rupees in lakhs)

a. Statutory Audit Fees
b. For Other Services

10.49 10.79
3.72 0.51
14.21 11.30

Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in
the MCA notification G.S.R.308(E) dated 31stMarch 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes
(SBN) held and transacted during the period from 08" November 2016 to 30" December 2016, the
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification given below:

Particulars SBNs denomiggt]i%rn notes (;T(t:;)
Closing cash in hand as on 08" November 2016 11.66 1.65 13.31
(+) Permitted receipts 6.1 6.1
(-) Permitted payments 4.83 4.83
(-) Amount deposited in banks 11.66 2.23 13.89
Closing cash in hand as on 30" December 2016 0.00 0.71 0.71

Disclosures under Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments

Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the company. No client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the

year ended 31stMarch 2018 and 31tMarch 2017.
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In the opinion of the Management, short term loans and advances and other current Assets, have the
value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

The Airports Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA), established under AERA Act 2008, regulate
the aeronautical charges of Cochin International Airport. As per existing tariff determination orders,
CIAL has submitted the multi year tariff proposal (MYTP) for the second control period i.e., financial
year commencing from 01t April 2016 to 31t March 2021 (05 Year Period) to AERA. AERA has
issued a final tariff order on 13" July 2017 wherein the Authority has approved an aggregate revenue
requirement (ARR) of Rs. 159617 lakhs for the period from FY 2016-17 to FY 2020-21. Accordingly the
revised aeronautical charges such as landing, parking, aerobridge charges, x-ray, cargo and royalty
on fuel throughput charges of CIAL has been hiked and it has been implemented w.e.f 01.08.2017.

The Ministry of Civil Aviation on 09-05-2006 passed an order allowing collection of Passenger Service
Fee (Security Component) by Greenfield and private airports operators on behalf of Government of
India. The utilisation of funds so collected and the holding of such funds by the airport operator was in
a fiduciary capacity and a separate Escrow account was opened for operation and maintenance of this
fund. The Ministry of Civil Aviation and BCAS has issued various orders regarding the purposes for the
funds can be utilised. The utilisation so permitted meeting of security related expenditures of the airport
which includes expenditure in the nature of capital and revenue. Accordingly, CIAL had been incurring
year on year capital expenditures, from the PSF (SC) Escrow account and are being recorded in the
books of accounts of PSF (SC) maintained separately as per direction of the Ministry. The year on year
capital expenditure and annual depreciation recorded in the PSF (SC) books is as noted below:

Year Capital Expenditure | Annual Depreciation
(Rupees in lakhs) (Rupees in lakhs)
2006-07 0.00 0.00
2007-08 37.63 0.68
2008-09 109.71 3.44
2009-10 222.89 18.91
2010-11 97.05 40.41
2011-12 512.30 54.25
2012-13 245.85 81.58
2013-14 309.97 99.66
2014-15 1945.72 295.20
2015-16 2365.08 338.82
2016-17 2652.93 373.84
Total up to 31/03/2017 8499.13 1306.79
2017-18 531.17 *
TOTAL 9030.30 1306.79

** Current year capital expenditure considered as addition to Property, Plant and Equipments of the
Company during the year.

In the meanwhile, Ministry of Civil Aviation vide order dated 18-02-2014 has instructed the airport
operators to reimburse the capital expenditures incurred out of PSF (SC) escrow account maintained
and operated by the airport operators in the fiduciary capacity to the respective escrow account
stating that the Comptroller and Auditor General of India has raised objection on incurrence of capital
expenditures out of PSF (SC) funds. CIAL has approached the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala and
obtained a Stay on the operation of the above order and has been continuing to use the fund for security
related expenditures including capital expenditures.

165



Cochin International Airport Limited

4.45

4.46

The capital expenditures and the periodical depreciation therein had formed part of the PSF (SC) books
until the financial year 2016-17. Further, during the current financial year, Ministry of Civil Aviation has
convened a meeting of the airport operators and requested for out of court settlement on the matter.
They have further impressed the fact that the sole authority to decide the utilization of these PSF
(SC) funds vests with the Ministry of Civil Aviation itself and in case the airport operators continue to
incur capital expenditures out of PSF (SC) funds and also fail to reimburse the already incurred capital
expenditures, the Government can withdraw the entire funds from the airport operator as they are the
principal of this account and the airport operators are operating the account on fiduciary capacity only.

In the backdrop of these developments and also based on the decision reached at the meeting held on
07/07/2017, the company has refunded the capital expenditures incurred from the financial years 2006
- 07 to 2017-18 amounting to Rs.9030.30 lakhs, which is the value of the original cost of such capital
expenses. Accordingly the entire assets are recorded in the books of accounts of the Company at its
original cost, the amount being Rs. 8499.13 lakhs and also the depreciation provided for such assets
in the books of accounts of PSF (SC) amounting to Rs. 1306.79 lakhs, to arrive at the present book
value considering the useful life as originally defined. The proportionate income tax on the depreciation
in the books of accounts of PSF (SC), has been considered as recoverable from PSF (SC) account,
the amount being Rs.578.10 lakhs. The net impact of these, amounting to Rs.728.69 lakhs is shown as
Exceptional item in the Statement of Profit and Loss in compliance with para 85, 86, 97 and 98 of Ind AS 1.

The Financial statements of the Company do not include accounts for Passenger Service Fee [Security
Component] as the same are maintained separately in the fiduciary capacity by the Company on behalf
of Government of India and are governed by Standard Operating Procedure issued by Ministry of Civil
Aviation, Government of India from time to time.

a) In the case of Subsidiary (CIASL), during the financial year 2008-09, the company entered into
an agreement with M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private Limited (KAAEPL) for the
operation and management of AME Institute. Though M/s. KAAEPL started the course during August
2010, they could not continue running the institute as they failed to obtain the necessary approval
from Director General of Civil Aviation. Consequent to this, during 2011-12 CIASL invoked a Bank
Guarantee for Rupees one crore submitted by M/s. Kairali Aviation Aeronautical Engineering Private
Limited (KAAEPL) for non performance and to recover expenses incurred on their behalf and other
receivables due from KAAEPL. The amount received from Bank on invocation of Bank Guarantee
and the amount determined as receivable from M/s. KAAEPL have been netted off and the balance
receivable is shown under non-current receivables. KAAEPL has disputed the claim in arbitration. The
arbitration proceedings were completed and award was passed on 21/03/2016. As per the award,
the claimants (KAPL & KAAEPL) have been allowed to recover from the respondents (CIASL) an
amount of Rs.1,339.24 lakhs with future interest at the rate of 9% per annum from the date of award till
realisation, if paid within 3 months from the date of the Award. If the awarded amount is not paid within
3 months from the date of Award, interest shall be paid on the said amount at the rate of 14% per annum
till realisation. The company sought a legal opinion on the maintainability of the award and as per the
opinion received, the company has challenged the award before the appellate authority. Pending final
disposal of the case, no provision has been made in the accounts for the award amount.

b) In the case of Subsidiary (CIASL), during the year 2011 -12, the company received a letter from
Corporation Bank directing it not to remove the assets and equipments of M/s. Kairali Aviation
Aeronautical Engineering Pvt. Ltd. (KAAEPL) from the space that the Company had leased out
to KAAEPL, on the grounds that these assets and equipments were hypothecated to Corporation
Bank. The Company in turn had raised a demand for Rs.20.22/- lacs on Corporation Bank towards
rent for the space occupied by the assets and equipments of KAAEPL till 30" September 2012.
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Corporation Bank has rejected the Company’s claim for rent vide letter No. OR:1049:2012 dated
01.10.2012. No rental income has been recognized considering the above dispute, w.e.f. 01.10.2012.
Further provision has been created in the accounts for the entire amount of rent during earlier years
itself.

Transitional provisions have been prescribed in the Goods and Service tax (GST) law which provides
tax treatment for transitional matters on transitional credits. It allows existing taxpayers to transfer the
input tax credit available as closing balance in the existing tax returns to the GST returns. Therefore,
assessees were able to transfer the closing balance of credit in respect of Central Excise duty,
Service Tax, Local VAT, etc. as the opening credit balance in the GST returns.

The subsidiary company, CIAL Infrastructures Ltd. had, on 30.06.2017 an amount of Rs. 41.23 lakhs
as input tax credit eligible for being carried forward. The company has taken an option not to carry
forward the credit on service tax as it has no significant taxable services under GST.

The Service Tax and Krishi Kalyan cess of Rs. 41.23 lakhs pertaining to services lying in Capital
Work-in-Progress has been capitalised and remaining written off to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, a CSR
committee has been formed by the Company. The areas of CSR activities include education, drinking
water supply, health care, social empowerment, infrastructure support through adoption of villages,
etc. and those specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013. The utilisation of CSR funds
are partly done through the Charitable Trust constituted by Company and also by direct spending as
per the recommendation of the CSR Committee. The details of amount required to be spend and the
amount utilised are given below:

As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017

Particulars (Rupees in lakhs) | (Rupees in lakhs)

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year:-

i) Annual CSR allocation for the year 465.33 391.07
i) Carry forward from Previous year 0.00 0.00

Total 465.33 391.07

b) Amount spent during the year:-

i) By contribution to the Trust 85 0.00
i) By Construction to CM's relief 500.00 0.00
iii) Contribution to Suchitwa Mission Govt. of Kerala - 400.00
iv) By other than the above 22.67 10.29

Considering the Airport Operation as an Infrastructural project, the Company was claiming deduction
u/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961 for the Income from airport operations for a period of 10 years
ended 31/03/2014. Accordingly, during these years, the payment of tax was based on Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT), which is eligible for set off against future tax liability. However, the Company
had not recognised MAT credit as an asset in its books of accounts, as a matter of prudence. During
the current year, MAT credit to the extent of Rs.1437.39 lakhs (3126.62 lakhs) is setoff against
the provision for Income Tax. Claim of deduction u/s 80IA have been disputed by the Income Tax
department and these disputes are at various levels of appeals for different years. However, the
Company based on legal opinion, is confident of getting a favourable decision and hence setoff of
MAT credit is done during the year.
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4.51 Litigation: The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations.

4.52 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

4.53 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated
are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in
conformity with current year’s layout.

Signatures to Note 1 to 4.53 forms integral part of accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our separate report of even date attached
sd/- sd/- For Krishnamoorthy & Krishnamoorthy
V.J. Kurian C.V. Jacob Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001488S)
Managing Director Director

(DIN:0001806859) (DIN:0000030106) sd/-
sd/- sd/- CA. K.T. Mohanan
Sunil Chacko Saji K. George Partner

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary (M.No: 201484)

Place: Kochi
Date : 28.06.2018
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Route Map

Venue of 24" Annual General Meeting
Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall
Fine Arts Avenue, Ernakulam 682 020
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COCHIN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office: 35, 4" Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Cochin 682 031. Phone 0484 — 2374154
Website: www.cial.aero, e-mail: cs@cial.aero, CIN: U63033KL1994PLC007803

Form No: MGT - 11 PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

CIN U63033KL1994PLC007803
Name of the Company Cochin International Airport Limited
Registered Office 35, 4 Floor, GCDA Commercial Complex, Marine Drive, Cochin 682 031
Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
e-mail ID
Folio No
I/We, being the member(s) of ----------mm-mmmmmmenean shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. | Name
Address
e-mail ID
or failing him Signature
2. [ Name
Address
e-mail ID
or failing him Signature
3. [ Name
Address
e-mail ID Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my or our behalf at the 24" Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Saturday, the 29" day of September, 2018 at 04.00 p.m. at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts
Avenue, Ernakulam 682 020 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:
Resolution Nos:

[ 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.

Signed this ------ day of --------eeeeee 2018 affix Re.1

revenue
stamp

Signature of shareholder:

Signature of Proxy holder(s) :
Note : The form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

- — — — — — — — — <X —€UFHERE-
ATTENDANCE SLIP

24* Annual General Meeting of Cochin International Airport Limited
| certify that | am a registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. | hereby record my
presence at the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the Company at Kerala Fine Arts Society Hall, Fine Arts Avenue, Ernakulam
682 020 on Saturday, the 29" day of September, 2018 at 04.00 p.m.
Reg. Folio No. .................. Member’s / Proxy’s name in blOCK [EHErS ........oocueiiiiiiieeeee e
MemMDEr’s / ProXy’s SIGNATUIE ......ccuiiiiiiiiit ittt eae et ae

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the Entrance of the Hall.
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